
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, September 16, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  1 


Location:   Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 


 Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 


 600 South Fourth Street 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589 


Members Present: Citizen Member Kym Ackerman, Alderperson Ben Heili, Alderperson Regina 


Hirsch, Alderperson Greg Jenson, Citizen Member John Kallas, Mayor Tim 


Swadley (Vice-Chair) 


Excused: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair) 


Absent: None 


Others Pressent: Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller Jamin Friedl, Stoughton Utilities 


Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Water System Supervisor Kent 


Thompson, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss, Stoughton Assistant Director of 


Finance & City Treasurer Ryan Wiesen 


Call to Order:  Utilities Committee Vice-Chairperson Tim Swadley called the regular Stoughton Utilities 


Committee Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities 


Committee consent agenda items.  


Weiss informed the committee that the visitation for Odean Teigan was being held tonight and may pose a 


conflict with the tour that was scheduled followed the meeting.  The Committee chose to postpone the tour. 


Ackerman informed the committee that she had provided her notice of resignation from the committee due to a 


personal scheduling conflict, and that this would be her last meeting.  Ackerman has been a member of the 


committee for just under two years.  Committee members thanked Ackerman for her service.  


Motion by Ackerman, the motion seconded by Heili, to approve the following consent agenda items as presented:  


a. Draft Minutes of the August 19, 2019 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


b. Stoughton Utilities August Payments Due List Report 


c. Stoughton Utilities July Financial Summary 


d. Stoughton Utilities July Statistical Report 


e. Stoughton Utilities August Activities Report 


f. Communications 


The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 


approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 



bhoops

Highlight







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 19, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  1 


Location:   Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 


 Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 


 600 South Fourth Street 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589 


Members Present: Citizen Member Kym Ackerman, Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), 


Alderperson Ben Heili, Alderperson Greg Jenson, Mayor Tim Swadley (Vice-Chair) 


Excused: Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Citizen Member John Kallas 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller Jamin Friedl, Stoughton Utilities 


Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Energy Services 


Representative Cory Neeley, Stoughton Utilities Electric System Supervisor Bryce 


Sime, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Utilities Committee Chairperson David Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 


Meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities 


Committee consent agenda items.  City of Stoughton staff presented and discussed preliminary draft details of 


the proposed 2019 borrowing, and informed the committee that the final figures will be provided at the September 


meeting. 


Motion by Ackerman, the motion seconded by Heili, to approve the following consent agenda items as presented:  


a. Draft Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


b. Draft Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Special Joint Meeting of the Utilities Committee and Stoughton Public 


Works Committee 


c. Stoughton Utilities July Payments Due List Report 


d. Stoughton Utilities June Financial Summary 


e. Stoughton Utilities June Statistical Report 


f. Stoughton Utilities July Activities Report 


g. Communications 


The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 


approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


Consent Agenda: 


1. Minutes of the June 17, 2019 Utilities Committee Meeting 


2. Stoughton Utilities June Payments Due List Report 


3. Stoughton Utilities May Financial Summary 


4. Stoughton Utilities May Statistical Report 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 19, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  2 


Business:  


1. Amending Zoning Code Section 78-718 (3) (i) of the Stoughton Municipal Code related to the 


placement of fencing in utility easements 


Declaration of Official Intent 2019-2:  Stoughton Utilities and City of Stoughton staff presented and discussed 


the declaration of official intent to reimburse an expenditure with proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings 


authorized by the issuer.  This is the second declaration for the year 2019 and preserves the ability to borrow 


funds up to $900,000 for the 2020 water infrastructure project, lead meter replacements, lead service 


replacements, an upcoming water system study, and replacement of water service truck #23.  Discussion 


followed.   


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Ackerman, to approve the Declaration of Official Intent No. 2019-2.  The 


motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Licensing Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility Poles Between the City of Stoughton 


Utilities and TDS Metrocom, LLC:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the proposed licensing 


agreement.  Our existing pole attachment license agreement was most recently updated in 2019 when another 


communications provider expanded their footprint within our service territory, and was approved by the 


Stoughton Utilities Committee and Common Council at that time. The agreement with TDS Metrocom, LLC is 


substantially the same as past agreements.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve the Licensing Agreement for Communications 


Attachments to Utility Poles Between the City of Stoughton Utilities and TDS Metrocom, LLC, and recommend 


approval to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0   


Change Order No. 1 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented 


and discussed the ongoing 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project and the opportunity it provides the utility 


to address the ongoing problem of clearwater entry into the sanitary sewer collection system.  A section of West 


Main Street that is significantly impacted by clearwater entry is scheduled to be closed for a period of time in 


August and September due to the construction project already underway.  This closure provides an opportune 


time to address the problem, and the current project contractor has agreed to complete the work.  Discussion 


followed. 


The City of Stoughton Purchasing Policy allows staff to approve project change orders with the approval of the 


City Finance Director and the Mayor.  Such approval was received, and Change Order No. 1 to the 2019 Street 


and Utility Construction Project in the amount of $96,602.58 was effected.  The purchasing policy directs that 


the Stoughton Common Council approve the change order prior to submittal of the final project payment. 


Motion by Jenson, the motion seconded by Heili, to approve Change Order No. 1 to the 2019 Street and Utility 


Construction Project, and recommend approval to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried 


unanimously 5 to 0   


Wisconsin Energy Independent Community Partnership Program:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the Wisconsin Office of Energy Independence’s (OEI) creation of a Wisconsin Energy Independent 


Community Partnership program in April 2008.  This program was launched to energize the state’s “25 x 25” 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 19, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  3 


goal of generating 25% of electricity and transportation fuels from renewable sources by the year 2025, and was 


one component of Governor Jim Doyle’s Clean Energy Wisconsin plan.   


On July 14, 2008, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved participation in the Wisconsin Energy Independent 


Community Partnership Program, and on July 22, 2008 the City of Stoughton Common Council also approved 


participation. 


Staff informed the committee that it is expected by 2021 that Stoughton standard wholesale power supply 


provided by WPPI Energy will include over 22% generated by renewable sources.  This percentage continues 


to increase as current purchased power contracts expire.  Staff further informed the committee that 40% of all 


electrical usage for City of Stoughton municipal facilities is provided by renewable sources through a mixture of 


the standard power supply resources as well as supplemental blocks purchased through our Choose Renewable 


program. 


Heili informed the committee that he plans to continue conversations on what the municipality can do to reduce 


their carbon footprint at upcoming meetings of the Community Affairs / Council Policy Committee. 


Discussion followed. 


Results of the Stoughton Utilities 2019 Lead and Copper Sampling Program:  Stoughton Utilities staff 


presented and discussed the results of the 2019 lead and copper sampling program.  In accordance with 


Wisconsin regulation, Stoughton Utilities collects water samples from 30 homes each year, and tests those 


samples to determine the amount of lead and copper that is present in those homes’ drinking water. This water 


quality monitoring recently found elevated levels of lead that exceed the action level in six of those 30 homes.   


Staff informed the committee that the utility is viewing this as an opportunity to continue to further educate the 


community about the danger of lead and what they can do to determine if their home is affected to minimize any 


risk, as well as develop ways for the utility and municipality to eliminate lead from the drinking water system.  


Discussion followed. 


Invitation to Attend the WPPI Energy Annual Meeting:  Stoughton Utilities staff invited members of the 


Stoughton Utilities Committee to WPPI Energy’s Annual Meeting, to be held in Elkhart Lake Wisconsin on 


Thursday, September 19, 2019.  If a quorum of the Utilities Committee may be present, the appropriate public 


notice will be posted as required by law.  Discussion followed. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Staff informed the committee that upcoming meeting topics include 


an education presentation on the utility rate design process, update and action on the proposed borrowing for 


upcoming projects, the continuation of scheduled tours of various utility facilities as weather permits, a proposed 


ordinance related to the mandatory replacement of customer-owned lead service lines, the Stoughton Utilities 


20-year Capital Improvements Plan, the Stoughton Utilities proposed 2020 operating budget, the Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources response to our submitted 2018 Wastewater Compliance Maintenance Annual 


Report (CMAR), and a continuing discussion of upcoming 5G technology.  Discussion followed. 


Tour of the Stoughton Utilities West Substation:  Stoughton Utilities staff invited the committee members to 


participate in a tour of the Stoughton Utilities West Substation immediately following the meeting.  Discussion 


followed. 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 19, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  4 


Adjournment:  Motion by Jenson, the motion seconded by Ackerman, to adjourn the regular Stoughton Utilities 


Committee Meeting at 6:37 p.m.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Following the meeting, Ackerman, Erdman, Heili, and Jenson joined Stoughton Utilities staff for a tour of the 


Stoughton Utilities West Substation.  Swadley joined the tour late as Erdman exited early. 


Respectfully submitted 


Brian R. Hoops 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


08:19AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 9/5/2019


Thursday, September 05, 2019


Description


7430Company:


VO for check batch: 309158EP001850 516 WELLS FARGO BANK8/7/2019  22,937.58


WPPI-Renewable Energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar 


Credit/WPPI-Large Power/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services


HC001851 009 WPPI8/9/2019  1,330,469.51


Alliant Energy - Aug Ach/Alliant Energy - Aug 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Aug Ach/Alliant Energy - Aug 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Aug Ach/Alliant Energy - Aug 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Aug Ach


HC001852 003 Alliant Energy - Ach8/30/2019  227.74


Charter Comm-Aug Ach/Charter Comm-Aug 


Ach/Charter Comm-Aug Ach/Charter Comm-Aug 


Ach


HC001853 547 Charter Communications-Ach8/30/2019  422.03


EBC - Aug Ach/EBC - Aug Ach/EBC - Aug 


Ach/EBC - Aug Ach


HC001854 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach8/30/2019  742.20


TDS Metrocom - Aug Ach/TDS Metrocom - Aug 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - Aug Ach/TDS Metrocom - Aug 


Ach


HC001855 007 TDS Metrocom - Ach8/30/2019  466.68


AT&T-Aug Ach/AT&T-Aug AchHC001856 952 AT&T8/30/2019  155.67


Delta Dental - Aug Ach/Delta Dental - Aug 


Ach/Delta Dental - Aug Ach


HC001857 001 Delta Dental - Ach8/30/2019  1,294.50


Gordon Flesch-Aug Ach/Gordon Flesch-Aug 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-Aug Ach/Gordon Flesch-Aug 


Ach


HC001858 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC.8/30/2019  214.16


Us Cellular - Aug Ach/Us Cellular - Aug Ach/Us 


Cellular - Aug Ach/Us Cellular - Aug Ach


HC001859 004 Us Cellular - Ach8/30/2019  712.49


First Data-Aug Ach/First Data-Aug Ach/First 


Data-Aug Ach/First Data-Aug Ach


HC001860 421 FIRST DATA CHARGES8/30/2019  30.52


Client Analysis-Aug Ach/Client Analysis-Aug 


Ach/Client Analysis-Aug Ach/Client Analysis-Aug 


Ach


HC001861 020 Wells Fargo Bank-Ach8/30/2019  8,742.45


Dept of Revenue-Aug Ach/Dept of Revenue-Aug 


Ach


HC001862 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach8/30/2019  55,097.78







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


08:20AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 9/5/2019


Thursday, September 05, 2019


Description


State Taxes-Aug Ach/State Taxes-Aug AchHC001863 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach8/30/2019  7,099.55


Federal Taxes-Aug Ach/Federal Taxes-Aug 


Ach/Federal Taxes-Aug Ach/Federal Taxes-Aug 


Ach


HC001864 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach8/30/2019  37,970.76


First Supply-Curb Stop repairVC023873 550 FIRST SUPPLY LLC MADISON8/30/2019 -51.00


A Clayton-Public BenefitsVC024028 527 DIVISION OF ENERGY HOUSING AND COMM8/30/2019 -373.00


General heating-Helical antennVC024451 377 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC8/30/2019 -14.00


Energy Services-Customer RefVC024529 457 ENERGY SERVICES8/30/2019 -12.44


WHEDA-Customer refundVC024656 433 DIVISION OF ENERGY HOUSING AND COMM8/30/2019 -276.06


Wi Div-Customer RefundVC024872 659 DIVISION OF ENERGY HOUSING AND COMM8/30/2019 -150.95


Stoton Elec-Bulk WaterCK026430 146 STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTIL.8/7/2019  214.92


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest - Trenching/Midwest - 


Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Mi


dwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenc


hing


CK026431 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC8/7/2019  9,840.00


Lube EZ-OilCK026432 335 LUBE E-Z LLC8/7/2019  1,200.00


Wi Dnr-Env FeesCK026433 651 WISCONSIN DNR - ENVIRONMENTAL FEES8/7/2019  6,493.05


Brown Wood-InventoryCK026434 733 BROWN WOOD PRESERVING CO., INC.8/7/2019  11,194.00


E Hammond-ScholarshipCK026435 349 ELIZABETH HAMMOND8/7/2019  1,000.00


M Hintz-Customer RefundCK026436 876 MIKE HINTZ8/7/2019  50.00


St Ann-DonationCK026437 935 ST. VINCENT DE PAUL - ST. ANN8/7/2019  1,000.00


Diggers Hotline-LocatesCK026438 143 DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC.8/7/2019  2,412.80


Rosenbaum-Top soil/Rosenbaum-Top soilCK026439 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.8/7/2019  168.00


Kunz-Gloves/Kunz-Gloves/Kunz-Gloves/Kunz-Glov


es


CK026440 358 KUNZ GLOVE CO., INC.8/7/2019  686.76







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


08:20AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 9/5/2019


Thursday, September 05, 2019


Description


Resco-Supplies/Resco-Inventory/Resco-Supplies/R


esco-Inventory/Resco-Supplies/Resco-Inventory


CK026441 400 RESCO8/7/2019  1,977.98


Strand-WWTP ExtrasCK026442 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.8/7/2019  688.91


WI SCTF-SupportCK026443 133 WISCONSIN SCTF8/8/2019  456.77


A Hermes-Customer RefundCK026444 203 AMY HERMES8/12/2019  177.82


J Rust-Customer RefundCK026445 465 JOHN RUST8/12/2019  649.41


R Neville-Customer RefundCK026446 701 ROBERT NEVILLE8/12/2019  10.79


Rent Assistance-Cust RefCK026447 736 RENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM8/12/2019  162.84


First Choice-Customer RefundCK026448 914 FIRST CHOICE DENTAL8/12/2019  1,111.63


Border States-Inventory/Border 


States-Inventory/Border States-Supplies/Border 


States-Supplies/Border States-Supplies


CK026449 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY8/12/2019  1,278.72


Rosenbaum-Limestone sandCK026450 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.8/12/2019  232.48


Wright-Tree Trimming/Wright Tree-Tree 


Trimming/Wright Tree-Tree Trimming


CK026451 489 WRIGHT TREE SERVICE8/12/2019  21,914.15


1901 INC.-2nd installmentCK026452 798 1901 INC.8/12/2019  10,370.00


Boardman - Prof ServicesCK026453 865 BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP8/12/2019  61.00


City Stoton-St Open Permit/City Stoton-June 


Mechanical/City Stoton-Wa Twr Rental/City 


Stoton-May Mechanical/City Stoton-May 


Mechanical/City Stoton-June Mechanical/City 


Stoton-July Rent/City Stoton-St Open Permit/City 


Stoton-July Rent/More...


CK026454 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON8/12/2019  278,877.03


Border States-SuppliesCK026455 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY8/21/2019  54.78


Resco-Supplies/Resco-Transformers/Resco-Invento


ry


CK026456 400 RESCO8/21/2019  9,638.05


Dept of Admin-Pub BenefitsCK026457 539 DEPT OF ADMIN-WISMART VENDOR #396028867 E8/21/2019  15,920.55







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


08:20AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 9/5/2019


Thursday, September 05, 2019


Description


GLS Utility-July Locates/GLS Utility-July 


Locates/GLS Utility-July Locates


CK026458 727 GLS UTILITY LLC8/21/2019  10,055.25


Courier Hub- Renewal/Courier Hub- 


Renewal/Courier Hub- Renewal


CK026459 961 STOUGHTON COURIER HUB8/21/2019  77.00


Harvest Farms-Emb Credits/Harvest Farms-Emb 


Credits/Harvest Farms-Emb Credits


CK026460 084 HARVEST FARMS, LLC8/21/2019  1,840.00


City Stoton-StormwaterCK026461 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON8/21/2019  48,538.90


Mulcahy -  Water classCK026462 673 MULCAHY SHAW WATER8/21/2019  195.00


Boardman-Attrn feesCK026463 865 BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP8/21/2019  1,528.00


City Stoton-Aug Retirement/City Stoton-Aug 


Retirement/City Stoton-Aug Retirement


CK026464 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON8/22/2019  18,910.54


WI SCTF-Aug B SupportCK026465 133 WISCONSIN SCTF8/22/2019  456.77


Midwest-Trenching/Mid West-Trenching/Mid 


West-trenching/Mid West- Trenching/Mid West- 


Trenching/Mid West- Trenching/Mid West- 


Trenching/Mid West- Trenching


CK026466 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC8/22/2019  27,652.20


Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-FuelCK026467 451 INSIGHT FS8/22/2019  2,334.00


1901 INC.-Air UnitCK026468 798 1901 INC.8/22/2019  23,789.00


Energy Services-Customer Ref/Void ck 024529ZC026469 457 ENERGY SERVICES8/30/2019  0.00


WHEDA-Customer refundCK026470 433 DIVISION OF ENERGY HOUSING AND COMM8/30/2019  276.06


A Clayton-Public BenefitsCK026471 527 DIVISION OF ENERGY HOUSING AND COMM8/30/2019  373.00


Wi Div-Customer RefundCK026472 659 DIVISION OF ENERGY HOUSING AND COMM8/30/2019  150.95


void ck 024451/General heating-Helical antennZC026473 377 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC8/30/2019  0.00


First Supply-Curb Stop repair/Void ck 023873/void 


023873


ZC026474 550 FIRST SUPPLY LLC MADISON8/30/2019  0.00


CTW Corp-OilCK101856 135 CTW CORPORATION8/8/2019  250.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


08:20AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


5 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 9/5/2019


Thursday, September 05, 2019


Description


Hanson Pest-Maint.CK101857 310 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT8/8/2019  28.00


Great West-Aug A Def CompCK101858 463 GREAT-WEST8/8/2019  4,460.00


N Shore BK-Aug A Def CompCK101859 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.8/8/2019  450.00


MEUW-Safety Program/MEUW-Safety 


Program/MEUW-Safety Program


CK101860 995 MEUW8/8/2019  5,903.91


Forster-Roby Rd 51 reloc/Forster-Tech 


assist/Forster-Tech Assist/Forster-Tech 


assist/Forster-Tech assist/Forster-Tech 


assist/Forster-Tech assist


CK101861 157 FORSTER ELEC. ENG.,INC.8/22/2019  8,335.80


Great West-Aug B Def CompCK101862 463 GREAT-WEST8/22/2019  4,460.00


B & H-Well 4 mowing/B & H-North Sub mowing/B & 


H-West Sub mowing/B & H-Admin Mowing/B & 


H-Well 5 mowing/B & H-Well 6 mowing/B & H-Twr 2 


mowing/B & H-WW mowing/B & H-South Sub 


mowing/B & H-East Sub mowing/B & H-Admin 


Mowing/B & H-Admin Mowing


CK101863 519 B & H LAWN CARE8/22/2019  1,655.00


SEERA-CTC fundsCK101864 603 SEERA-WIPFLI LLP8/22/2019  5,613.87


N Shore Bk-Aug B Def CompCK101865 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.8/22/2019  450.00


Company Total  2,011,331.86







Date:


Time:


User:


Wednesday, August 07, 2019


08:41AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000101'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


Import ID: 009010 Import # : 0000000101


-95.00143 000000  - DINGES FIRE COMPANY MOTO261 07/03/2019REFUND FROM JUNE 74007450


-95.00143 000000  - DINGES FIRE COMPANY MOTO261 07/03/2019REFUND FROM JUNE 74007450


 443.85107.14 000000 190303XX - 1NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE- IN974 07/01/2019PARADISE POND TESTING 83007460


 669.62833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 07/03/2019LAB SUPPLIES 83007460


 190.93833 000000  - U.S. PLASTIC CORPORATION994 07/08/2019SILICON TUBING 83007460


 10.50143 000000  - U.S. PLASTIC CORPORATION994 07/08/2019SILICON TUBING - SALES TAX 83007460


 89.99854 000000  - FARM & FLEET OF MADISON841 07/08/2019SAFETY BOOTS 83007460


 467.03833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 07/11/2019LAB SUPPLIES 83007460


 16.45107.14 000000 190303XX - 1SPEE-DEE DELIVERY SERVICE937 07/22/2019PARADISE POND TESTING 83007460


 16.45107.14 000000 190303XX - 1SPEE-DEE DELIVERY SERVICE937 07/29/2019PARADISE POND TESTING 83007460


 114.95921 000000  - DISCOUNTASP.NET854 07/03/2019SSL wildcard certificate renewal - annual 52507430


 41.80921 000000  - DISCOUNTASP.NET854 07/03/2019SSL wildcard certificate renewal - annual 52507450


 52.25851 000000  - DISCOUNTASP.NET854 07/03/2019SSL wildcard certificate renewal - annual 52507460


 43.97903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 07/03/2019Credit card processing - Recurring and desktop 52507430


 15.83903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 07/03/2019Credit card processing - Recurring and desktop 52507450


 21.10840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 07/03/2019Credit card processing - Recurring and desktop 52507460


 7.05233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 07/03/2019Credit card processing - Recurring and desktop 52507430


 31.90921 000000  - MSFT   E04008ITLQ836 07/03/2019SOFTWARE LICENSING - HOSTED MS SKYPE BUSINESS - MONTHLY 52507430


 11.60921 000000  - MSFT   E04008ITLQ836 07/03/2019SOFTWARE LICENSING - HOSTED MS SKYPE BUSINESS - MONTHLY 52507450


 14.50851 000000  - MSFT   E04008ITLQ836 07/03/2019SOFTWARE LICENSING - HOSTED MS SKYPE BUSINESS - MONTHLY 52507460


 60.07903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 07/03/2019Credit card processing - Online MyAccount 52507430


 21.62903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 07/03/2019Credit card processing - Online MyAccount 52507450


 28.83840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 07/03/2019Credit card processing - Online MyAccount 52507460


 9.63233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 07/03/2019Credit card processing - Online MyAccount 52507430


 8.25921 000000  - MSFT   E04008IXMJ836 07/04/2019SOFTWARE LICENSING - HOSTED MSONEDRIVE - MONTHLY 52507430


 3.00921 000000  - MSFT   E04008IXMJ836 07/04/2019SOFTWARE LICENSING - HOSTED MSONEDRIVE - MONTHLY 52507450


 3.75851 000000  - MSFT   E04008IXMJ836 07/04/2019SOFTWARE LICENSING - HOSTED MSONEDRIVE - MONTHLY 52507460


 9.99633 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 07/24/2019WELL 5 EXHAUST FAN PULLEY 84007450


 124.95652 000000  - CHEMWORLD994 07/02/2019CHEMICAL CHECK VALVES 87007450


 14.48675 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 07/08/2019REPLACED NUT DRIVERS 87007450


 105.00673 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 07/03/2019PULSAFEEDER FOOT VALVE 74007450


 26.00642 000000  - WI STATE HYGIENE LAB675 07/03/2019FLOURIDE ANALYSIS 74007450


 956.64641 000000  - HAWKINS INC309 07/08/2019CHEMICALS 74007450


 92.46677 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 07/11/2019HYDRANT REPAIRS 74007450


 100.00642 000000  - NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE- IN974 07/11/2019SAMPLE ANALYSIS 74007450


 120.80642 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 07/25/2019DAILY SAMPLE STANDARDS 74007450


 1,529.18641 000000  - HAWKINS INC309 07/26/2019CHEMICALS 74007450


 521.84652 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 07/31/2019CHEMICAL PUMP SUPPLIES 74007450


 693.57107.14 000000 190901XX - 1HYDRO DESIGNS354 07/31/2019CROSS CONNECTIONS 74007450


 59.97834 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 07/15/2019NEW BOILER DISCONNECT 87107460


 170.10832 000000  - LW ALLEN207 07/01/20198TH ST LS REPAIR 82007460


 259.96832 000000  - LW ALLEN207 07/01/2019VENEVOLL LS REPAIR 82007460







Date:


Time:


User:


Wednesday, August 07, 2019


08:41AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000101'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 1,451.86833 000000  - LW ALLEN207 07/01/2019REPLACE POWER SUPPLY 82007460


 32.98932 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 07/02/2019UTILITY OFFICE FUEL TANK REPAIRS 82007430


 11.99932 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 07/02/2019UTILITY OFFICE FUEL TANK REPAIRS 82007450


 15.01834 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 07/02/2019UTILITY OFFICE FUEL TANK REPAIRS 82007460


 2.68932 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/02/2019PAINT FOR FUEL TANKS 82007430


 0.97932 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/02/2019PAINT FOR FUEL TANKS 82007450


 1.24834 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/02/2019PAINT FOR FUEL TANKS 82007460


 78.75932 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/02/2019PAINT FOR FUEL TANKS 82007430


 28.63932 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/02/2019PAINT FOR FUEL TANKS 82007450


 35.81834 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/02/2019PAINT FOR FUEL TANKS 82007460


 431.34834 000000  - ALLEGHENY TRADERS SUPPL075 07/02/2019YEARLY WINCH INSPECTION 82007460


 103.57932 000000  - COMPLIANCESIGNS COM936 07/04/2019FUEL TANK WORK 82007430


 37.66932 000000  - COMPLIANCESIGNS COM936 07/04/2019FUEL TANK WORK 82007450


 47.09834 000000  - COMPLIANCESIGNS COM936 07/04/2019FUEL TANK WORK 82007460


 95.00834 000000  - DINGES FIRE COMPANY INTER994 07/04/2019GAS MONITOR CALIBRATION 82007460


 161.91834 000000  - FIRST SUPPLY WFPG MAD550 07/04/2019PLUMBING FOR FLOOR DRAIN 82007460


 163.28932 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/09/2019PAINT FOR FUEL TANKS 82007430


 59.37932 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/09/2019PAINT FOR FUEL TANKS 82007450


 74.23834 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/09/2019PAINT FOR FUEL TANKS 82007460


 10.89834 000000  - AMZN MKTP US MH5P145I2422 07/11/2019DTM CONNECTOR 82007460


 77.46832 000000  - AMZN MKTP US MH12R4V80422 07/15/2019BARBERRY LS REPAIRS 82007460


 600.30832 000000  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 130134 07/19/2019PAD FOR VENNEVOLL LS 82007460


 216.25851 000000  - MADISON NEWSPAPERS270 07/19/2019NEWSPAPER SUBSCRIPTION 82007460


 3.29833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 07/30/2019DIGESTER FLOW METER REPAIRS 82007460


 8.06833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 07/30/2019DIGESTER FLOW METER REPAIRS 82007460


 189.54833 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 07/31/2019PAINT FOR PLANT 82007460


 10.22642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0337514601824 07/04/2019SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 10.22642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230391770065824 07/11/2019SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 77.45921 000000  - STAPLS7221708392000001352 07/12/2019KITCHEN AND MEETING SUPPLIES 36807430


 28.16921 000000  - STAPLS7221708392000001352 07/12/2019KITCHEN AND MEETING SUPPLIES 36807450


 35.21851 000000  - STAPLS7221708392000001352 07/12/2019KITCHEN AND MEETING SUPPLIES 36807460


 46.86921 000000  - STAPLS7221707907000001352 07/12/2019GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807430


 16.86921 000000  - STAPLS7221707907000001352 07/12/2019GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807450


 22.49851 000000  - STAPLS7221707907000001352 07/12/2019GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807460


 7.51233 001099  - STAPLS7221707907000001352 07/12/2019GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807430


 10.22642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0312931313824 07/18/2019SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 10.22642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0313360509824 07/18/2019SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 388.20642 000000  - AMAZON.COM MA5523N21422 07/25/2019LEAD FILTRATION PITCHERS FOR AT-RISK CUSTOMERS 36807450


 39.99594 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 07/09/2019DRILL BITS 69607430


 40.47594 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 07/17/2019POP UP TENT 69607430


 359.01593 000000  - CVTC CHIPPEWA CAMPUS894 07/29/2019APPRENTICE TUITION 52967430


 359.02594 000000  - CVTC CHIPPEWA CAMPUS894 07/29/2019APPRENTICE TUITION 52967430


 18.99834 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 07/25/2019HVAC UNIT REPAIRS 69307460


 149.99934 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 07/30/2019TRUCK 14 BATTERY 69307430







Date:


Time:


User:


Wednesday, August 07, 2019


08:41AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000101'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 300.00926 000000  - HOFFMAN BOOTS398 07/01/2019SAFETY BOOTS 69807430


 55.22143 000000  - HOFFMAN BOOTS398 07/01/2019SAFETY BOOTS 69807430


 250.00831 000000  - JENSEN EQUIPMENT994 07/08/2019RENTAL FOR COLLECTION SYSTEM WORK 87407460


 37.95831 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 07/17/2019MISC COLLECTION SYSTEM ITEMS 87407460


 19.47593 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 07/16/2019BUG SPRAY FOR LINE CREW 69407430


 8.21107.14 000000 190195XX - 1PLAINFIELD T/P-CITGOVEL P894 07/23/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 73.70107.14 000000 190195XX - 1KWIK TRIP  34700003475894 07/24/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 20.95107.14 000000 190195XX - 1241 HARDEES WI RAPIDS894 07/25/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 3.52107.14 000000 190195XX - 1EXXONMOBIL    97397079894 07/25/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 7.88107.14 000000 190195XX - 1KWIK TRIP  12800001289894 07/26/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 39.78107.14 000000 190195XX - 1KWIK TRIP  12800001289894 07/26/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 5.25107.14 000000 190195XX - 1KWIK TRIP  12800001289894 07/29/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 6.09107.14 000000 190195XX - 1MCDONALD'S F2256894 07/29/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 39.09107.14 000000 190195XX - 1KWIK TRIP  12800001289894 07/29/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 36.87107.14 000000 190195XX - 1KWIK TRIP  12800001289894 07/29/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69407430


 53.76593 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 07/05/2019SAW BLADES AND SCREWDRIVER 69707430


 21.69107.14 000000 190195XX - 1241 HARDEES WI RAPIDS894 07/24/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69707430


 113.50107.14 000000 190195XX - 1SLEEP INN WI RAPIDS894 07/24/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69707430


 113.50107.14 000000 190195XX - 1SLEEP INN WI RAPIDS894 07/24/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69707430


 113.50107.14 000000 190195XX - 1SLEEP INN WI RAPIDS894 07/25/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69707430


 19.31107.14 000000 190195XX - 1APPLEBEES 989863698989894 07/29/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69707430


 227.00107.14 000000 190195XX - 1SLEEP INN WI RAPIDS894 07/29/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69707430


 340.50107.14 000000 190195XX - 1SLEEP INN WI RAPIDS894 07/29/2019WI RAPIDS MUTUAL AID 69707430


 136.82926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/01/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 20.08926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/01/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 15.61854 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/01/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 116.19926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/05/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 20.08926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/05/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 15.61854 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/05/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 533.89934 000000  - UTILITY SALES & SERV269 07/10/2019TRUCK 2 MAINT 40007430


 136.82926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/15/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 20.08926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/15/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 15.61854 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/15/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 116.19926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/22/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 7.88926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/22/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 15.61854 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/22/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 280.50932 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 07/23/2019JANITORIAL 40007430


 102.00932 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 07/23/2019JANITORIAL 40007450


 127.50834 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 07/23/2019JANITORIAL 40007460


 122.00926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/29/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 20.08926 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/29/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 15.60854 000000  - CINTAS  60A SAP809 07/29/2019UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 1,795.50232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 07/02/2019ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 435.60232 001099  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 087134 07/02/2019ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430







Date:


Time:


User:


Wednesday, August 07, 2019


08:41AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000101'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 67.20594 000000  - STUART C IRBY355 07/04/2019SWITCHGEAR LUGS 41007430


 879.00594 000000  - STUART C IRBY355 07/08/2019SWITCHGEAR FUSES 41007430


 982.72232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 07/10/2019ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 14.95594 000000  - STUART C IRBY355 07/10/2019SWITCHGEAR LUGS 41007430


 618.75932 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING331 07/11/2019SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSPECTION 41007430


 225.00932 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING331 07/11/2019SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSPECTION 41007450


 281.25834 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING331 07/11/2019SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSPECTION 41007460


 147.97232 001099  - BORDER STATES ELECTRIC327 07/11/2019ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 61.60232 001099  - FIRST SUPPLY WFPG MAD550 07/12/2019WATER INVENTORY 41007450


 195.15232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 07/15/2019ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 50.36593 000000  - AMAZON.COM MH2SV89Q1 AMZN422 07/17/2019MISC 41007430


 69.00934 000000  - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT994 07/17/2019FORK LIFT MAINT 41007430


 64.35232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 07/18/2019ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 10.94163 000000  - UPS 1ZD4W91T0321263050824 07/19/2019RETURNED LUGS 41007430


 43.99673 000000  - AMZN MKTP US MA7DN1C12 AM422 07/19/2019WATER BARRICADE LIGHT BATTERIES 41007450


 689.25232 001099  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 087134 07/31/2019ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 22,937.58Total:







Stoughton Utilities 
Financial Summary 


July 2019 YTD 
 


Highlights/Concerns 
 
The following items are meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary 
from the prior-YTD period. 
 
Overall Summary: 
YTD 2019 net income is 21% (or $174,000) higher than prior year YTD. This is a 
marked improvement from the 2.2% (or $16,600) increase experienced last month. This 
is due to improved performance from all three utilities but particularly from the electric 
utility. 
 
Electric Summary: 
Operating revenues YTD are about 3.0% lower than YTD 2018, but 82% of lost revenue 
was offset by lower purchase power costs. YTD kWh sold has decreased by 0.1 million 
but that is a marked improvement from a 1.4 million kWh decrease in June 2019 YTD.  
 
Non-power operating expenses were down $3,700 YTD. Decreases in labor expenses 
are offsetting increases in depreciation and taxes. 
 
The rate of return is currently 2.18% compared to 3.06% at this point in time in 2018. 
Unrestricted cash balances are $4.5 million (3.7 months of sales). 
 
Water Summary: 
Operating revenues were up $140,800 or 11.5%, from prior YTD due to the October 
2018 rate increase. Total gallons sold YTD has decreased by 3.9 million gallons or 
1.5%. July 2019 gallons sold were 472,000 less than July 2018. 
 
Operating expenses were up 1.5% YTD or $17,000. About $13,000 of the increased 
expenses is from additional depreciation and special assessment charges. Water net 
income is up $125,000, or about 99%, at $251,300 YTD.   
 
The rate of return is currently 2.45% compared to 1.26% at this point in time in 2018. 
Unrestricted cash balances are $0.3 million (1.7 months of sales). A water debt issue to 
cover 2019 and 2020 capital projects is pending. 
 
Wastewater Summary: 
Operating revenue YTD is $1.23 million and is up a moderate 1.5% from YTD 2018. 
The additional revenue was from a $34,000 (or 82%) increase in surcharge revenue, 
which offset a $16,000 decrease in regular sales.   
 







Operating expenses were $1,067,000, down 0.7% from the prior year. However, there 
was a $35,700 pump rehab expense in July 2018 that is making July 2019 YTD 
expenses look lower. Adjusting for the pump expense, expenses have increased by 
$28,000 in 2019 due to additional depreciation, the insurance amortization factor and 
miscellaneous expenses.  
 
Unrestricted cash balances are $1.4 million (8.6 months of sales).  
 
Submitted by: 
Ryan Wiesen 
 







Electric Water Wastewater Combined
Assets
Cash & Investments 5,658,810$         1,007,543$         2,808,108$         9,474,461$         
Customer A/R 1,956,632           243,372              200,535              2,400,538           
Other A/R 74,465                 152                      15                        74,632                 
Other Assets 1,176,992           317,581              219,018              1,713,591           
Plant in Service 29,981,881         15,694,958         30,426,508         76,103,347         
Accumulated Depreciation (14,203,181)        (5,438,641)          (11,968,893)        (31,610,715)        
Plant in Service - CIAC 3,727,768           7,962,587           -                      11,690,355         
Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (1,842,529)          (2,226,591)          -                      (4,069,121)          
Construction Work in Progress 448,382              196,637              283,344              928,363              
GASB 68 Deferred Outflow 584,707              199,447              221,465              1,005,619           
Total Assets 27,563,927$       17,957,044$       22,190,100$       67,711,070$       


Liabilities + Net Assets
Accounts Payable 34,218$              65,071$              45,125$              144,414$            
Payable to City of Stoughton 316,870              255,500              -                      572,370              
Interest Accrued 32,953                 10,906                 25,595                 69,454                 
Other Liabilities 489,999              76,251                 91,339                 657,589              
Long-Term Debt 4,501,552           2,332,140           4,097,942           10,931,634         
Net Assets 21,554,507         15,001,784         17,700,209         54,256,501         
GASB 68 Deferred Inflow 633,826              215,392              229,890              1,079,108           
Total Liabilities + Net Assets 27,563,927$       17,957,044$       22,190,100$       67,711,070$       


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Balance Sheets


 As of July 31, 2019







 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:
Sales 8,484,399$              1,324,995$              1,148,006$              10,957,400$            
Other 117,492                    40,456                      81,569                      239,516                    
   Total Operating Revenue: 8,601,891$              1,365,451$              1,229,575$              11,196,916$            


Operating Expense:
Purchased Power 6,352,901                -                             -                             6,352,901                
Expenses (Including Taxes) 943,470                    561,841                    565,482                    2,070,793                
PILOT 268,331                    255,500                    -                             523,831                    
Depreciation 694,050                    296,779                    501,669                    1,492,498                
   Total Operating Expense: 8,258,752$              1,114,120$              1,067,151$              10,440,023$            


     Operating Income 343,139$                 251,331$                 162,423$                 756,893$                 


Non-Operating Income 286,694                    26,766                      113,425                    426,885                    
Non-Operating Expense (93,133)                     (26,831)                     (64,750)                     (184,714)                  


      Net Income 536,700$                 251,266$                 211,098$                 999,064$                 


 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:
Sales 8,772,086$              1,182,152$              1,164,164$              11,118,402$            
Other 98,271                      42,454$                    47,330$                    188,055                    
   Total Operating Revenue: 8,870,357$              1,224,606$              1,211,494$              11,306,457$            


Operating Expense:
Purchased Power 6,590,165                -                             -                             6,590,165                
Expenses (Including Taxes) 998,892                    553,963                    580,973                    2,133,828                
PILOT 261,331                    255,500                    -                             516,831                    
Depreciation 649,306                    287,700                    494,081                    1,431,087                
   Total Operating Expense: 8,499,694$              1,097,163$              1,075,054$              10,671,911$            


     Operating Income 370,663$                 127,444$                 136,440$                 634,547$                 


Non-Operating Income 308,161                    34,837                      55,772                      398,770                    
Non-Operating Expense (100,309)                  (36,066)                     (71,575)                     (207,950)                  


      Net Income 578,515$                 126,214$                 120,637$                 825,366$                 


July 31, 2018


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement


July 31, 2019


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement







 
Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 343,139$            251,331$            


Average Utility Plant in Service 29,470,260         15,667,996         
Average Accumulated Depreciation (13,791,812)        (5,313,437)          
Average Materials and Supplies 243,869              39,741                
Average Regulatory Liability (99,724)               (154,030)             
Average Customer Advances (63,295)               -                      


Average Net Rate Base 15,759,298$       10,240,270$       


July 2019 Rate of Return 2.18% 2.45%


July 2018 Rate of Return 3.06% 1.26%


December 2018 Rate of Return 4.99% 3.91%


Authorized Rate of Return 5.00% 5.00%


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Rate of Return


Year-to-Date July 31, 2019







Electric July 2019


Unrestricted (3.7 months sales) 4,511,541$           
Bond Reserve 460,722$              
Redemption Fund (P&I) 260,353$              
Depreciation 25,000$                
Designated 401,194$              
Total 5,658,810$           


Water July 2019


Unrestricted (1.7 months sales) 319,588$              
Bond Reserve 252,000$              
Redemption Fund (P&I) 79,210$                
Depreciation 25,000$                
Designated 331,746$              
Total 1,007,544$           


Wastewater July 2019


Unrestricted (8.6 months sales) 1,410,213             
DNR Replacement 1,163,006             
Redemption Fund (P&I) 110,269                
Depreciation 33,283                  
Designated 91,339                  
Total 2,808,110             


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Cash and Investments Summary


 As of July 31, 2019


$4,511,541 , 80%


$460,722 , 8%
$260,353 , 5%


$25,000 , 0%
$401,194 , 7%


Electric Cash - July 2019


Unrestricted (3.7 months sales) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Designated


$319,588 , 32%


$252,000 , 25%


$79,210 , 8%
$25,000 , 2%


$331,746 , 33%


Water Cash - July 2019


Unrestricted (1.7 months sales) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Designated


1,410,213 , 50%
1,163,006 , 42%


110,269 , 4%


33,283 , 1%


91,33
9 , 3%


Wastewater Cash - July 2019


Unrestricted (8.6 months sales) DNR Replacement
Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation
Designated







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2018 KwH Purchased 2018 2019 KwH Purchased 2019 Peak 2018 Peak 2019


January 12,609,523 13,204,183 12,752,096 13,363,141 24,195 26,165


February 11,167,697 11,394,593 11,560,908 11,896,849 22,984 23,038


March 11,302,081 11,305,664 11,641,186 11,972,418 20,886 23,235


April 10,338,769 10,759,236 10,254,850 10,595,041 19,558 19,359


May 11,809,136 12,169,996 10,504,194 10,786,337 31,336 20,621


June 12,676,500 13,057,295 11,795,758 12,089,761 32,502 29,286


July 14,229,395 14,658,088 15,526,634 16,073,028 32,727 34,354


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 84,133,101 86,549,055 84,035,626 86,776,575


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2018 Gallons Pumped 2018 2019 Gallons Pumped 2019 2018 2019


January 35,560,000 44,660,000 36,143,000 39,813,000 1,668,000 1,466,000


February 33,594,000 41,438,000 33,948,000 36,797,000 1,711,000 1,443,000


March 36,877,000 40,980,000 36,020,000 38,991,000 1,449,000 1,419,000


April 35,745,000 40,572,000 34,264,000 37,730,000 1,583,000 1,465,000


May 39,058,000 43,612,000 37,645,000 40,546,000 2,087,000 1,557,000


June 39,092,000 44,311,000 38,429,000 43,316,000 1,871,000 2,109,000


July 41,674,000 49,321,000 41,202,000 46,203,000 2,194,000 2,049,000


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 261,600,000 304,894,000 257,651,000 283,396,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2018 Gallons Gallons 2018 2019 Gallons Gallons 2019 2018 2019


January 25,668,000 31,460,000 24,591,000 36,827,000 2.15 3.10


February 23,717,000 30,781,000 23,125,000 33,032,000 3.54 3.19


March 25,915,000 28,544,000 25,549,000 43,136,000 0.75 0.96


April 24,842,000 28,602,000 24,363,000 34,347,000 1.87 3.24


May 27,090,000 34,919,000 25,992,000 42,845,000 8.12 6.37


June 26,393,000 37,405,000 25,984,000 38,913,000 10.50 3.19


July 27,263,000 37,702,000 27,529,000 34,384,000 2.68 4.35


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 180,888,000 229,413,000 177,133,000 263,484,000 29.61 24.40


2019 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater












 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Change Order No. 1 to the 2019 


Street and Utility Construction Project. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: $96,602.58 


 
File Number: 


 
R-153-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 8, 2019 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, in June 2019, Stoughton Utilities staff informed the Stoughton Utilities Committee that staff 


has observed persistent and significant clearwater intrusion along sections of sanitary sewer main on West 


Main St, west of Prairie St., and 


WHEREAS, this section of West Main Street has been scheduled to be closed for a period of time in 


August and September due to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction project already underway, and 


WHEREAS, it was decided that the best solution to the ongoing clearwater intrusion was to replace 250 


linear feet of aged 8-inch PVC sanitary sewer main on West Main Street as well as six aged brick sanitary 


sewer manholes, with this additional work to be completed during the already scheduled road closure, and 


WHEREAS, the costs received from the contractor for such a change order were reviewed by utility staff, 


our consulting engineer, and the City of Stoughton Finance Director / Comptroller, and it was determined 


that they are competitive and favorable to the utility, and 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Purchasing Policy allows staff to approve project change orders with 


the approval of the City Finance Director and the Mayor, and prior committee or council approval is not 


required when such approval would result in a costly delay to the project, with the policy directing that 


the Stoughton Common Council approve the change order prior to submittal of the final project payment, 


and 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has submitted Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $96,602.58 to the 


2019 Street and Utility Construction contract to the project contractor, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on August 13, 2019 to consider, approve, and 


recommend the approval of Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $96,602.58 to the 2019 Street and Utility 


Construction contract, and recommend approval to the Stoughton Common Council, now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby authorized and directed to approve the Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $96,602.58 to the 


2019 Street and Utility Construction contract. 







Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Tim Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 19, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  2 


 


Business:  


1. Amending Zoning Code Section 78-718 (3) (i) of the Stoughton Municipal Code related to the 


placement of fencing in utility easements 


Declaration of Official Intent 2019-2:  Stoughton Utilities and City of Stoughton staff presented and discussed 


the declaration of official intent to reimburse an expenditure with proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings 


authorized by the issuer.  This is the second declaration for the year 2019 and preserves the ability to borrow 


funds up to $900,000 for the 2020 water infrastructure project, lead meter replacements, lead service 


replacements, an upcoming water system study, and replacement of water service truck #23.  Discussion 


followed.   


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Ackerman, to approve the Declaration of Official Intent No. 2019-2.  The 


motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Licensing Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility Poles Between the City of Stoughton 


Utilities and TDS Metrocom, LLC:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the proposed licensing 


agreement.  Our existing pole attachment license agreement was most recently updated in 2019 when another 


communications provider expanded their footprint within our service territory, and was approved by the 


Stoughton Utilities Committee and Common Council at that time. The agreement with TDS Metrocom, LLC is 


substantially the same as past agreements.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve the Licensing Agreement for Communications 


Attachments to Utility Poles Between the City of Stoughton Utilities and TDS Metrocom, LLC, and recommend 


approval to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0   


Change Order No. 1 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented 


and discussed the ongoing 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project and the opportunity it provides the utility 


to address the ongoing problem of clearwater entry into the sanitary sewer collection system.  A section of West 


Main Street that is significantly impacted by clearwater entry is scheduled to be closed for a period of time in 


August and September due to the construction project already underway.  This closure provides an opportune 


time to address the problem, and the current project contractor has agreed to complete the work.  Discussion 


followed. 


The City of Stoughton Purchasing Policy allows staff to approve project change orders with the approval of the 


City Finance Director and the Mayor.  Such approval was received, and Change Order No. 1 to the 2019 Street 


and Utility Construction Project in the amount of $96,602.58 was effected.  The purchasing policy directs that 


the Stoughton Common Council approve the change order prior to submittal of the final project payment. 


Motion by Jenson, the motion seconded by Heili, to approve Change Order No. 1 to the 2019 Street and Utility 


Construction Project, and recommend approval to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried 


unanimously 5 to 0   


Wisconsin Energy Independent Community Partnership Program:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the Wisconsin Office of Energy Independence’s (OEI) creation of a Wisconsin Energy Independent 


Community Partnership program in April 2008.  This program was launched to energize the state’s “25 x 25” 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


  


Date:   
  


August 13, 2019 


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Change Order No. 1 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project 


At the June meeting of the Stoughton Utilities Committee, the topic of clearwater entry into the sanitary 


sewer collection system, and the subsequent effects and expense such clearwater has on the wastewater 


treatment facility, was discussed.  At that time, it was mentioned that staff has observed persistent and 


significant clearwater intrusion along sections of sanitary sewer main on West Main St, west of Prairie St.   


Following this observation, staff worked with our consulting engineers to research a variety of potential 


methods to reduce the clearwater intrusion along this stretch of sewer main.  There were several unique 


challenges at this location, including the amount of clearwater present, high volumes of traffic, the 


difficulty and expense to coordinate road closures, and the upcoming street replacement project being 


undertaken in 2020 by the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation. Ultimately it was decided 


that the best solution is to replace 250 linear feet of aged 8-inch PVC sanitary sewer main on West Main 


Street as well as six aged brick sanitary sewer manholes.   


This section of West Main Street has been scheduled to be closed for a period of time in August and 


September due to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction project already underway.  It was our goal to 


attempt to coordinate the additional sanitary sewer work with the already scheduled road closure.  In order 


to accomplish this goal, Stoughton Utilities approached Advance Construction Inc, the current project 


contractor, to receive the costs for a potential change order.   


The costs received from the contractor for such a change order have been reviewed by myself, our 


consulting engineer, and the City of Stoughton Finance Director / Comptroller, and it has been determined 


that they are competitive and favorable to the utility.  As they are already mobilized in the City of 


Stoughton, the contractor is able to complete the change order in conjunction with the current road closure.   


The City of Stoughton Purchasing Policy allows staff to approve project change orders with the approval 


of the City Finance Director and the Mayor.  Prior committee or council approval is not required when 


such approval would result in a costly delay to the project.  When such is the case, as staff has determined 


that it was for this project, the policy directs that the Stoughton Common Council approve the change 


order prior to submittal of the final project payment. 


Accordingly, Stoughton Utilities has submitted Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $96,602.58 to the 


2019 Street and Utility Construction contract to the project contractor.  It is requested that the Stoughton 


Utilities Committee review and approve this change order, and recommend approval to the Stoughton 


Common Council.   













		05a-Change Order No. 1

		05b-Utilities - Change order no.1






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  
STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Change Order No. 2 to the 2019 
Street and Utility Construction Project. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 6-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: $23,645.89 
 
File Number: 


 
R-154-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 8, 2019 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, at the August meeting of the Stoughton Utilities Committee, the Committee approved 
Change Order No. 1 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction contract to replace 250 linear feet of aged 
8-inch PVC sanitary sewer main on West Main Street and six aged brick sanitary sewer manholes, with 
the goal of reducing the amount of clearwater entry into the sanitary sewer collection system, and 


WHEREAS, while the street was excavated and the sanitary sewer main exposed to complete this work, 
it was discovered that the sanitary sewer main on West Main Street east of Prairie Street was 6-inch pipe 
rather than the expected 8-inch pipe, despite all previous records and investigations indicating it was 8-
inch, and 


WHEREAS, this section of West Main Street was closed to traffic at the time of the above discovery, 
with active detours in place, and 


WHEREAS, because this section of main is experiencing significant clearwater entry and requires either 
replacement, it was determined to issue Change Order No. 2 to add the replacement of 117 feet of pipe on 
West Main Street east of Prairie Street with new 8-inch sanitary sewer, to be completed during the active 
closure of West Main Street, at a cost of $23,645.89, and 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Purchasing Policy allows staff to approve project change orders with 
the approval of the City Finance Director and the Mayor, and prior committee or council approval is not 
required when such approval would result in a costly delay to the project, with the policy directing that 
the Stoughton Common Council approve the change order prior to submittal of the final project payment, 
and 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has submitted Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $23,645.89 to the 
2019 Street and Utility Construction contract to the project contractor, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on September 16, 2019 to consider, approve, and 
recommend the approval of Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $23,645.89 to the 2019 Street and Utility 
Construction contract, and recommend approval to the Stoughton Common Council, now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby authorized and directed to approve the Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $23,645.89 to the 
2019 Street and Utility Construction contract. 







Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    
Mayor Tim Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, September 16, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  2 


Consent Agenda: 


1. Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


2. Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Special Joint Meeting of the Utilities Committee and Stoughton Public 


Works Committee 


3. Stoughton Utilities July Payments Due List Report 


4. Stoughton Utilities June Financial Summary 


5. Stoughton Utilities June Statistical Report 


Business:  


1. Licensing Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility Poles Between the City of Stoughton 


Utilities and TDS Metrocom, LLC 


Discussion followed. 


Principles and Considerations of Stoughton Utilities Rate Design:  Stoughton Utilities and City of Stoughton 


staff provided an educational presentation on the utility rate design process, including rate terminology, principle 


requirements, regulatory considerations, and the timeline of an application for a regulatory rate review.  


Discussion followed.   


Change Order No. 2 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented 


and discussed the ongoing 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project and the opportunity it provided the utility 


to address the ongoing problem of clearwater entry into the sanitary sewer collection system along West Main 


Street.  While the street was excavated and the sanitary sewer main exposed to complete this work, it was 


discovered that the sanitary sewer main on West Main Street east of Prairie Street was 6-inch pipe rather than 


the expected 8-inch pipe, despite all previous records and investigations indicating it was 8-inch.  This pipe was 


117 feet in length and located between two manholes planned for replacement as part of the change order.   


Because this section of main is experiencing significant clearwater entry and requires either replacement or 


lining, and lining is not a feasible option, it was determined to issue Change Order No. 2 to add the replacement 


of this 117-foot section of pipe on West Main Street east of Prairie Street with new 8-inch sanitary sewer, which 


was completed during the active closure of West Main Street.  Discussion followed. 


The City of Stoughton Purchasing Policy allows staff to approve project change orders with the approval of the 


City Finance Director and the Mayor.  Such approval was received, and Change Order No. 2 to the 2019 Street 


and Utility Construction Project in the amount of $23,645.89 was effected.  The purchasing policy directs that 


the Stoughton Common Council approve the change order prior to submittal of the final project payment. 


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Kallas, to approve Change Order No. 2 to the 2019 Street and Utility 


Construction Project, and recommend approval to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried 


unanimously 6 to 0   


Stoughton Utilities 2019 Water Revenue Bonds Issuance:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed 


a 2019 Waterworks Revenue Bond Issue in the approximate amount of $1,900,000.  The proceeds will be used 


to pay for all costs related to 2019 and 2020 water infrastructure projects including but not limited to engineering, 


legal, construction, etc., and lead meter replacement, lead service replacement, water system study and water 


service truck #23 replacement.  Discussion followed. 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


  


Date:   
  


September 10, 2019 


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Change Order No. 2 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project 


At the August meeting of the Stoughton Utilities Committee, the Committee approved Change Order No. 


1 in the amount of $96,602.58 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction contract.  This change order was 


to replace 250 linear feet of aged 8-inch PVC sanitary sewer main on West Main Street, as well as six aged 


brick sanitary sewer manholes, with the goal of reducing the amount of clearwater entry into the sanitary 


sewer collection system. 


While the street was excavated and the sanitary sewer main exposed to complete this work, it was 


discovered that the sanitary sewer main on West Main Street east of Prairie Street was 6-inch pipe rather 


than the expected 8-inch pipe, despite all previous records and investigations indicating it was 8-inch.  This 


pipe was 117 feet in length and located between two manholes planned for replacement as part of the 


change order.  The original plan was to slip line this section of pipe in 2020, however 6-inch sewers are 


difficult if not impossible to grout and line. 


Because this section of main is experiencing significant clearwater entry and requires either replacement 


or lining, and lining is not a feasible option, it was determined to issue Change Order No. 2 to add the 


replacement of this 117 feet of pipe on West Main Street east of Prairie Street with new 8-inch sanitary 


sewer, to be completed during the active closure of West Main Street.  The cost of the additional sewer 


replacement included in the change order is $23,645.89. 


The City of Stoughton Purchasing Policy allows staff to approve project change orders with the approval 


of the City Finance Director and the Mayor.  Prior committee or council approval is not required when 


such approval would result in a costly delay to the project.  When such is the case, as staff has determined 


that it was for this project due to the existing road closure, the policy directs that the Stoughton Common 


Council approve the change order prior to submittal of the final project payment. 


Accordingly, Stoughton Utilities submitted Change Order No. 2 to the 2019 Street and Utility 


Construction contract in the amount of $23,645.89.  It is requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee 


review and approve this change order, and recommend approval to the Stoughton Common Council.   







 
MAF:tll\S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\121\Construction\Change Orders\CO 2.docx 


 


September 9, 2019 
 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 
 
 
PROJECT: 2019 Street and Utility Construction 
OWNER: City of Stoughton 
CONTRACT: Contract 1-2019 
CONTRACTOR: Advance Construction, Inc. 
 
Description of Change 
 
1a Replace 120 linear feet of 8-inch PVC sanitary sewer on 


Main Street east of Prairie Street.  Cost includes local 
traffic control, connections to existing laterals, bypass 
pumping, dewatering, granular backfill, and a minimum 
of 12 inches of base course.  Manholes are to be paid 
separately.  All work to be completed within the 
Milestone 1 requirements of the Contract. 
 


ADD 
 


$13,230.00 


1b Asphalt pavement patch for 120 linear feet of sanitary 
sewer replacement on Main Street east of Prairie Street.  
Cost includes sawcutting and a minimum of 5 inches of 
asphalt pavement.  All work to be completed within the 
Milestone 1 requirements of the Contract. 
 


ADD 
 


$10,415.89 


TOTAL VALUE OF THIS CHANGE ORDER: ADD $23,645.89 
 
Contract Price Adjustment 
 
Original Contract Price $3,017,395.50 
Previous Change Order Adjustments $96,602.58 
Adjustment in Contract Price this Change Order $23,645.89 
Current Contract Price including this Change Order $3,137,643.97 
 


 
Contract Substantial Completion Date Adjustment 
 
Original Contract Substantial Completion Date September 27, 2019 
Contract Substantial Completion Date Adjustments due to previous Change 
Orders 


None 


Contract Substantial Completion Date Adjustments due to this Change Order None 
Current Substantial Contract Completion Dates including all  
Change Orders 


September 27, 2019 


 
 
 
 
 







City of Stoughton–Advance Construction, Inc. 
Contract 1-2019–Change Order No. 2 
Page 2 
September 9, 2019 


 


 


 
MAF:tll\S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\121\Construction\Change Orders\CO 2.docx 


Contract Final Completion Date Adjustment 
 
Original Contract Final Completion Date September 27, 2019 
Contract Final Completion Date Adjustments due to previous Change Orders None 
Contract Final Completion Date Adjustments due to this Change Order None 
Current Final Contract Completion Dates including all Change Orders September 27, 2019 
 
This document shall become a supplement to the Contract and all provisions will apply hereto. 
 
RECOMMENDED 
 
  
ENGINEER–Strand Associates, Inc.® 


 
 
  
Date 


  
APPROVED 
 
  
CONTRACTOR–Advance Construction, Inc. 


 
 
  
Date 


  
APPROVED 
 
  
OWNER–City of Stoughton 


 
 
  
Date 


 


 


 


 









		06a-R-154-2019 Approving Change Order No. 2

		06b-Utilities - Change order no.2






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\10-08-19\Adopting Ordinance.docx 1 
1002190830 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


To amend Section 2-256 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the composition of 


the Stoughton Utilities Committee. 


Committee Action:    Utilities Committee recommend Common Council approval 5 - 0.   


Fiscal Impact:       0 


File Number: O-24-2019 Date Introduced: October 8, 2019 


 


RECITALS 


A. On September 30, 2019 the Stoughton Utilities Committee recommended amending Section 


2-256 of the City of Stoughton Ordinances with the primary purpose of updating the 


composition of the Stoughton Utilities Committee.  


B. The Utilities Committee recommended amending Section 2-256 as provided in Exhibit A. 


ORDINANCE 


The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as 


follows: 


1. Section 2-256 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended as provided in 


Exhibit A. 


2. This ordinance will take effect upon adoption and publication or posting pursuant to law. 


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at 


a meeting held on October 8, 2019. 


 


APPROVED: 


 


 


        


Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: 


 


Dates:  


 


Council Approved____________ 


        


City Clerk 


Published  ________







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\10-08-19\Adopting Ordinance.docx 
1002190830 
 


EXHIBIT A 


 


MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


 


Chapter 2 – ADMINISTRATION 


 


ARTICLE IV. – BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES 


 


DIVISION 11. – UTILITIES COMMITTEE 


 


Sec. 2-256. – Composition. 


 
The utilities committee shall consist of the mayor, three at large members of the common council 


appointed annually by the mayor and confirmed by the council, and three two city residents and 


one resident from within the service area of the public electric, water or wastewater utilities 


appointed by the mayor and confirmed by the council for three-year staggered terms, one for one 


year, one for two years, one for three years, and thereafter for three-year terms.  The committee 


will elect an alderperson to be the liaison and an alternate liaison with the city council annually at 


its first regularly scheduled meeting after the council reorganization meeting.  Citizen members 


shall serve with such compensation as determined by the city council by resolution from time to 


time. 


 







U:\Utilities Committee Packets\Working\2019\09 Special\2019-09-30 1.3- Adopting Ordinance.docx 1 
0930192210 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


To amend Section 2-256 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the composition of 


the Stoughton Utilities Committee. 


Committee Action:    Utilities Committee recommend Common Council approval 5 - 0.   


Fiscal Impact:       0 


File Number: O-xxxx-2019 Date Introduced: October 8, 2019 


 


RECITALS 


A. On September 30, 2019 the Stoughton Utilities Committee recommended amending Section 


2-256 of the City of Stoughton Ordinances with the primary purpose of updating the 


composition of the Stoughton Utilities Committee.  


B. The Utilities Committee recommended amending Section 2-256 as provided in Exhibit A. 


ORDINANCE 


The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as 


follows: 


1. Section 2-256 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended as provided in 


Exhibit A. 


2. This ordinance will take effect upon adoption and publication or posting pursuant to law. 


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at 


a meeting held on October 8, 2019. 


 


APPROVED: 


 


 


        


Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


        


_________________________________City Clerk 


Posted     


 


Published  







U:\Utilities Committee Packets\Working\2019\09 Special\2019-09-30 1.3- Adopting Ordinance.docx 
0930192210 
 


EXHIBIT A 


 


MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


 


Chapter 2 – ADMINISTRATION 


 


ARTICLE IV. – BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES 


 


DIVISION 11. – UTILITIES COMMITTEE 


 


Sec. 2-256. – Composition. 


 
The utilities committee shall consist of the mayor, three at large members of the common council 


appointed annually by the mayor and confirmed by the council, and three two city residents and 


one resident from within the service area of the public electric, water or wastewater utilities 


appointed by the mayor and confirmed by the council for three-year staggered terms, one for one 


year, one for two years, one for three years, and thereafter for three-year terms.  The committee 


will elect an alderperson to be the liaison and an alternate liaison with the city council annually at 


its first regularly scheduled meeting after the council reorganization meeting.  Citizen members 


shall serve with such compensation as determined by the city council by resolution from time to 


time. 


 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, September 30, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  1 


Location:   Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 


 Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 


 600 South Fourth Street 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Ben Heili, Alderperson Regina 


Hirsch, Alderperson Greg Jenson, Mayor Tim Swadley (Vice-Chair) 


Excused: Citizen Member John Kallas 


Absent: None 


Others Pressent: Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller Jamin Friedl, Stoughton Director of 


Human Resources & Risk Management Amy Jo Gillingham, Stoughton Utilities 


Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Utilities Committee Chairperson David Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 


Meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. 


Amending Section 2-526 of the Stoughton Municipal Code related to the composition of the Stoughton 


Utilities Committee:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that as announced at the September 16, 


2019 meeting of the Stoughton Utilities Committee, Citizen Member Kym Ackerman has submitted her 


resignation from the committee.  It was recognized that the current vacancy provided the committee with an 


opportunity to review the ordinance related to the composition of the committee to determine if there were any 


potential opportunities to better represent all Stoughton Utilities customers and ratepayers.   


Staff further informed the committee that more than 26% of Stoughton Utilities rate payers (2,376 accounts) 


receive service outside the city limits in five neighboring townships, and that four other City of Stoughton boards 


or commissions either require or allow for members that reside outside of the city boundaries. Discussion 


followed.  


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Hirsch, to amend Section 2-256 to related to the composition of the 


Utilities Committee to read:  


The utilities committee shall consist of the mayor, three at large members of the common council 


appointed annually by the mayor and confirmed by the council, and three two city residents and one 


resident from within the service area of the public electric, water or wastewater utilities appointed by the 


mayor and confirmed by the council for three-year staggered terms, one for one year, one for two 


years, one for three years, and thereafter for three-year terms.  The committee will elect an alderperson 


to be the liaison and an alternate liaison with the city council annually at its first regularly scheduled 


meeting after the council reorganization meeting.  Citizen members shall serve with such compensation 


as determined by the city council by resolution from time to time. 


and recommend approval of said amendment to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried 


unanimously 5 to 0. 



bhoops

Highlight







 


600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:   
  


September 26, 2019 


To:    


  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  


    


  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Amending Section 2-526 of the Stoughton Municipal Code related to the composition of 


the Stoughton Utilities Committee 


As announced during the September 16, 2019 meeting of the Stoughton Utilities Committee, Citizen 


Member Kym Ackerman has submitted her resignation from the committee.  Ms. Ackerman became a 


member of the committee in December 2017, and her current term ran through April 2021. 


The City of Stoughton Municipal Code Sec. 2-526 addresses the composition of the Stoughton Utilities 


Committee: 


The utilities committee shall consist of the mayor, three at large members of the common council 


appointed annually by the mayor and confirmed by the council and three city residents appointed 


by the mayor and confirmed by the council for three-year staggered terms, one for one year, one 


for two years, one for three years, and thereafter for three-year terms.  


Please find attached the full City of Stoughton Municipal Code Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 11 - 


Utilities Committee. 


It was recognized that the current citizen member vacancy provided us with an opportunity to review the 


ordinance related to the composition of the committee for potential opportunities to better represent all 


Stoughton Utilities customers and ratepayers.  The Mayor, Director of Finance, and I met to discuss 


options, and three potential changes were discussed.  These are as follows:  


- Creating one citizen member position to be filled with a Stoughton Utilities customer that resides 


outside of the city limits.  This change would allow for representation of the more than 26% of 


rate payers (2,376 accounts) receiving service outside the city limits in five neighboring 


townships. 


- Structuring the committee to have a total of six members, thereby setting the quorum size to four.  


Currently five members must be present for a quorum.  


- Structuring the committee to have equal voting representation of votes from elected officials, 


including the Mayor, to votes from citizen members.   


Each of these ideas have merit and are worthy of discussion, and may be a direction that is in the best 


interests of the rate payers of Stoughton Utilities as well as the City of Stoughton.  There may be other 


potential changes worth discussing that were not mentioned. 







Currently, at least four other City of Stoughton boards or commissions either require or allow for 


members that are not residents of the City of Stoughton.  They are the Commission on Aging, the Cable 


Television Commission, the Tree Commission, and the Opera House Board. 


If the Utilities Committee moved to recommend changes to the ordinance to reflect the above potential 


options, a revised ordinance could potentially read as follows:  


The utilities committee shall consist of the mayor, two at large members of the common council 


appointed annually by the mayor and confirmed by the council, and three citizen members 


including two city residents and one township resident from within the utilities’ service area, 


appointed by the mayor and confirmed by the council for three-year staggered terms, one for 


one year, one for two years, one for three years, and thereafter for three-year terms. 


If any ordinance changes are approved by the Utilities Committee and recommended for approval to the 


Stoughton Common Council, staff would have such changes reviewed and the final ordinance language 


drafted by the City Attorney.  







City of Stoughton Municipal Code 


 ARTICLE IV. - BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES  


DIVISION 11. - UTILITIES COMMITTEE 


Sec. 2-526. - Composition. 


The utilities committee shall consist of the mayor, three at large members of the common 
council appointed annually by the mayor and confirmed by the council and three city residents 
appointed by the mayor and confirmed by the council for three-year staggered terms, one for one 
year, one for two years, one for three years, and thereafter for three-year terms. The committee will 
elect an alderperson to be the liaison and an alternate liaison with the city council annually at its first 
regularly scheduled meeting after the council reorganization meeting. Citizen members shall serve 
with such compensation as determined by the city council by resolution from time to time. 


(Code 1986, § 1.10(a); Ord. No. 0-10-10, § 1, 8-10-2010) 


Sec. 2-527. - Organization. 


The utilities committee shall annually at its first regularly scheduled meeting after the council 
reorganization choose a chair and vice chair from its members. The committee shall meet regularly 
once a month and at such times within the month as the committee shall determine. 


(Code 1986, § 1.10(b); Ord. No. 0-10-10, § 1, 8-10-2010) 


Sec. 2-528. - Rules. 


The common council may make the rules for the government and conduct of business by the 
utilities committee. 


(Code 1986, § 1.10(c); Ord. No. 0-10-10, § 1, 8-10-2010) 


Sec. 2-529. - Record; report. 


The utilities committee shall keep a public record of its proceedings. The utilities committee 
shall report to the common council each month. 


(Code 1986, § 1.10(d); Ord. No. 0-10-10, § 1, 8-10-2010) 


Sec. 2-530. - Responsibilities, powers and duties. 


The utilities committee shall serve in an advisory capacity to the common council on matters 
related to public electric, water and wastewater utilities and such matters relating thereto as are 
requested by common council. 


(Code 1986, § 1.10(e); Ord. No. 0-10-10, § 1, 8-10-2010) 





		07a-Adopting Ordinance

		07b-Utilities - UC Ordinance










City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Robinson Brothers 


Environmental, Inc. for the 2019 Demolition/Abatement of Former Public Works Facility. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee meets October 8, 2019 


 
Fiscal Impact:  $127,700  


 


    
File Number: 


 
R-155-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 8, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, the 2019 Demolition/Abatement of Former Public Works Facility Project includes 


abatement and demolition of the buildings located on the former campus of the Public Works Facility on 


S. Fourth Street; and 


 


WHEREAS, The City received five competitive bids for the Project; and 


 


WHEREAS, staff recommends accepting the low bid for a contract amount of $127,700, and  


 


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee met on October 8, 2019 and recommends approval; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with Robinson Brothers Environmental, Inc. 


for $127,700 for the 2019 Demolition/Abatement of Former Public Works Facility conditioned upon 


approval as to form by the City Attorney.  


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 
 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-2019 Resolution - 2019 Public Works Facility Demolition Project.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  September 27, 2019 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Demolition/Abatement of Former Stoughton Public Works Facility 
 
On September 26th, the City received bids for the above project as follows: 
 


 
 
The total budget for this project that also includes consulting services and additional incidentals 
is $200,000.  It is our recommendation to award the contract to the low bidder, Robinson 
Brothers Environmental, Inc. 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
    
     


 
    


 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance Committee 9-27-19 - Public Works Demolition Project.docx 


Bidder  Base Bid 


Badgerland Demolition & 
Earthwork, Inc. 285,635.00$       
Linnco, Inc. 199,884.00$       
Azarian Wrecking, LLC         
1535 High St, Racine, WI 
53404 294,777.00$       
Robinson Brothers 
Environmental, Inc. 127,700.00$       


Speedway Sand & Gravel, Inc. 234,000.00$       



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/



		08a-R-2019 Resolution - 2019 Public Works Facility Demolition Project

		08b-Finance Committee 9-27-19 - Public Works Demolition Project






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION TO THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of Stoughton five-year (2020-
2024) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 
 
 


 
CIP Budget Committee Recommended approval 6-0 on September 5, 2019 


 
Fiscal Impact: 2020 - $5,400,583 
 
File Number: 


 
R-156 -2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 8, 2019 


 
WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and the CIP Budget Committee and CIP Budget Committee has 
reviewed the proposed five-year (20120-2024) Capital Improvement Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the CIP Budget Committee recommended the approval of the proposed five-year 
(2020-2024) Capital Improvement Plan to the Common Council on September 5, 2019; and now 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 
approve and adopt the five-year (2020-2024) Capital Improvement Plan. 
    
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
          
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 







2020 – 2024 CIP Budget 
Overview







CIP Budget Process Summary


• July 25th, 2019 CIP Budget Committee
• Fire


• Police


• IT/Media Services


• RDA


• August 22nd, 2019 CIP Budget Committee
• Public Works


• Planning


• Parks and Recreation


• September 5th, 2019 CIP Budget Committee Finalize CIP
• September 24th 2019 – City Council Approval







Departmental CIP Summary







CIP Funding Summary







CIP Funding Detail







Recommended Borrowing







Impact of  Recommended Borrowing







Impact of  Recommended 
Borrowing (cont.)







Add’l Request – Staffing


• Engineering Tech Position
• Duties


• Field inventory of  sidewalks
• Special assessment preparation
• Coordination of  project questions/issues
• Verify pay requests
• Inspection of  completed work
• Storm water management permit activities







Add’l Request – Staffing (cont.)


• Engineering Tech Position (cont.)
• Impact/Justification


• Existing level of  work in Planning Department is not 
sustainable


• No existing staff  to delegate these responsibilities to
• The ability to delegate these responsibilities will allow 


more time, energy and effort for the Director to 
participate in major issues and projects such as the 
Riverfront Redevelopment, Whitewater Park 
coordination, new development projects, annexations, 
Boundary Agreements, RDA efforts, development 
agreements, etc.







Add’l Request – Staffing (cont.)


• Engineering Tech Position (cont.)
• Fiscal Impact







Add’l Request – Staffing (cont.)







Summary By Department/Division
Previous


Years
Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects $33,429,454$290,402$3,889,138$1,612,791$5,777,462$3,586,630$2,934,114$15,338,917


Administration $69,000$0$0$0$0$0$59,000$10,000


EMS $65,000$0$0$0$0$20,000$25,000$20,000


Fire $2,491,150$86,400$1,095,000$0$109,100$73,100$322,500$805,050


IT/Media Services $494,500$40,000$30,000$75,000$25,000$50,000$105,000$169,500


Library $56,100$0$0$5,000$5,000$10,000$18,000$18,100


Parks $1,089,000$0$185,000$275,000$143,500$107,500$247,500$130,500


Planning $862,000$175,000$165,000$57,000$0$85,000$165,000$215,000


Police $990,200$0$114,000$98,500$209,200$132,000$269,300$167,200


Recreation $4,709,511$1,240,000$257,981$436,092$2,035,100$197,938$249,700$292,700


Redevelopment Authority $1,823,434$0$0$0$400,000$778,765$344,669$300,000


Senior Center $400,000$40,000$40,000$55,000$0$20,000$60,000$185,000


Streets $2,429,050$0$143,500$301,000$467,000$445,250$580,800$491,500


Youth Center $20,000$0$0$0$0$0$20,000$0


$18,143,467 $5,400,583 $5,506,183 $9,171,362 $2,915,383 $5,919,619 $1,871,802 $48,928,399Grand Total:


City of Stoughton Page 1 of 1Summary By Department/Division







Summary By Funding Source
Previous


Years
Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Building Maintenance $1,455,100$215,000$205,000$132,000$80,000$90,000$254,600$478,500


Equipment Replacement $1,691,800$86,400$112,500$183,000$237,000$329,750$597,300$145,850


General Fund Outlay $2,059,538$40,000$253,800$386,725$205,950$209,713$580,900$382,450


General Obligation Debt $33,443,731$907,852$4,692,888$1,728,179$4,658,287$3,619,061$2,142,454$15,695,010


Intergovernmental $1,200,000$0$0$0$0$0$950,000$250,000


Other-Grants $2,687,216$587,500$65,000$20,000$1,123,950$573,090$246,883$70,793


Park Improvement Fund $21,886$0$0$0$0$0$0$21,886


Special Assessments $2,137,226$22,550$334,904$233,922$513,118$344,912$213,280$474,540


Storm Water Fund $2,476,762$12,500$255,527$201,557$696,917$309,657$384,166$616,438


Stoughton Utilities $1,626,140$0$0$0$1,626,140$0$0$0


Technology Fund $129,000$0$0$30,000$30,000$30,000$31,000$8,000


$18,143,467 $5,400,583 $5,506,183 $9,171,362 $2,915,383 $5,919,619 $1,871,802 $48,928,399Grand Total:


City of Stoughton Page 1 of 1Summary By Funding Source







Projects By Department/Division
Previous


Years
Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Eastwood Stormwater Pond Evaluation


$2,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,600,000Glacier Moraine Dr


$115,099 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,099GRANT ST - PULVERIZATION


$395,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $395,000Industrial Park South Bio-Swale


$541,570 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $541,570JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION


$731,461 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $731,461LINCOLN AVE - PULVERIZATION


$478,856 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $478,856LOWELL ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000McFarland State Bank Building


$230,831 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $230,831PATTERSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $0 $1,080,000Preventative Maintenance


$120,000 $82,387 $204,698 $226,976 $120,865 $376,930 $32,208 $1,164,064PROJECT ENGINEERING


$8,810,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,810,000PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY


$886,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $886,100S MONROE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $0 $600,000Sidewalk Program


$40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Subdivision & Platting/Zoning Code Update


$0 $34,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $34,100Brewer Ct/Hyland Storm Sewer


$0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000EASTWOOD STORMWATER POND 


$0 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $0 $500,000ENGINEERING TECH POSITION


$0 $293,959 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $293,959GRANT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


City of Stoughton Page 1 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects


$0 $42,742 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,742HARRISON CT - PULVERIZATION


$0 $29,820 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $29,820JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE DECK 


$0 $268,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $268,400MAIN ST RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $356,754 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $356,754PROSPECT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $288,779 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $288,779ROBY RD EAST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $96,618 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $96,618SHERMAN - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $49,555 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $49,555SKINNER LA - PULVERIZATION


$0 $950,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $950,000TIF 4 Main St Downtown Improvements


$0 $11,000 $15,000 $13,000 $9,500 $13,000 $1,000 $62,500TREE REMOVAL/PLANTING-


$0 $0 $656,230 $0 $0 $0 $0 $656,230ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $245,075 $0 $0 $0 $0 $245,075HARRISON - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $468,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $468,600JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE DECK


$0 $0 $261,986 $0 $0 $0 $0 $261,986JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $214,634 $0 $0 $0 $0 $214,634LINCOLN AVE - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $303,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $303,550MILWAUKEE ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $198,562 $0 $0 $0 $0 $198,562MONROE ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $410,609 $0 $0 $0 $0 $410,609ROBY RD WEST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $107,686 $0 $0 $0 $0 $107,686ROY ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $120,000USH 51 Roundabouts


$0 $0 $0 $57,090 $0 $0 $0 $57,090BICKLEY CT - PULVERIZATION


City of Stoughton Page 2 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects


$0 $0 $0 $1,894,995 $0 $0 $0 $1,894,995EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $385,225 $0 $0 $0 $385,225FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $1,028,665 $0 $0 $0 $1,028,665FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $320,951 $0 $0 $0 $320,951HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $265,944 $0 $0 $0 $265,944HILLCREST & HOLTON-PULVER


$0 $0 $0 $197,648 $0 $0 $0 $197,648ROWE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $56,885 $0 $0 $0 $56,885TRUMAN RD - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $536,965 $0 $0 $0 $536,965W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $413,118 $0 $0 $0 $413,118WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $146,676 $0 $0 $146,676JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $275,789 $0 $0 $275,789MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $11,000 $0 $0 $11,000MAIN/PAGE CT


$0 $0 $0 $0 $101,358 $0 $0 $101,358MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $181,180 $0 $0 $181,180PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $87,726 $0 $0 $87,726SILV ERADO DR - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $143,901 $0 $0 $143,901TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $154,796 $0 $0 $154,796TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $353,736 $0 $353,736BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $512,848 $0 $512,848CHICAGO - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $332,871 $0 $332,871DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $225,389 $0 $225,389GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $438,075 $0 $438,075PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


City of Stoughton Page 3 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $230,940 $0 $230,940RACETRACK PARK - NORTH LOT AND 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,025,349 $0 $1,025,349RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $215,944 $215,944PINE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $41,250 $41,250RIVERSIDE CEMETERY - RESURFACE


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0BOX CULVERT REHAB/REPLACE


Subtotal - 400-Capital Projects $33,429,454$290,402$3,889,138$1,612,791$5,777,462$3,586,630$2,934,114$15,338,917


Administration


$2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000Administration - New Computer


$7,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,000Handicap Accessible Van


$1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000Mayor's computer


$0 $14,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,000Express Vote (ADA Accessible Voting Machines)


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Financial Management Plan


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Landmarks - Local Downtown Historic District


Subtotal - Administration $69,000$0$0$0$0$0$59,000$10,000


EMS


$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000EMS - Rooftop Unit #2


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000EMS - Rooftop Unit #1


$0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000EMS - Rooftop Unit #4


Subtotal - EMS $65,000$0$0$0$0$20,000$25,000$20,000


City of Stoughton Page 4 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Fire


$6,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,250Carcinogen Blocking PPE Hoods


$5,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,600Class A & B Uniforms


$35,000 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70,000Personnal Protective Equipment


$12,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000Positive Pressure Vent Fans


$8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000Rescue Ropes


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Skid Pak for ATV


$700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $700,000Squad 5 Pierce Kenworth


$4,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,800Tire Replacement STT-6


$3,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,400Toughbook - Inspector


$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Uni-Mac Extractor


$0 $4,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,700Bay security lights add and reel replacement


$0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000Breathing Air Compressor & Storage Tanks


$0 $79,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $79,500Brush Rig


$0 $36,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,600Car 1 Command Car


$0 $15,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,500Hose Washer


$0 $25,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,700Mobile Data Terminals and Docking Stations


$0 $20,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,500ParaTech Air Bag System


$0 $77,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $77,000Plymovent System


$0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,000Replacement Ice Rescue Suits


$0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000Swift Water Rescue Suits and Equipment


$0 $0 $28,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28,500Car 2 support vehicle replacement


$0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000LED overhead door docking lights green/red


City of Stoughton Page 5 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Fire


$0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600Steer Tire Replacement STL-4


$0 $0 $0 $3,600 $0 $0 $0 $3,600Drive Tire Replacement STL-4


$0 $0 $0 $95,000 $0 $0 $0 $95,000Portable Radios


$0 $0 $0 $4,500 $0 $0 $0 $4,500SCBA Hydro test


$0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $6,000Tire Replacement STE-2


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,095,000 $0 $1,095,000Ladder #4 Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,400 $86,40072 SCBA bottle only replacement


Subtotal - Fire $2,491,150$86,400$1,095,000$0$109,100$73,100$322,500$805,050


IT/Media Services


$7,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,500BluRay Duplicator


$60,000 $40,000 $0 $0 $30,000 $30,000 $40,000 $200,000Computer Replacement


$12,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000Expand Camera Fleet


$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Road Box HD System


$60,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,000TelVue AIO B2000-HD Control


$0 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $0 $0 $100,000Network upgrades


$0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Upgrade Control Room and Council Chambers


$0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Camera Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000Upgrade EMS Cameras to HD


Subtotal - IT/Media Services $494,500$40,000$30,000$75,000$25,000$50,000$105,000$169,500


City of Stoughton Page 6 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Library


$5,000 $6,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0 $0 $26,000Computers & peripherals


$6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000Exterior Painting


$7,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,100SelfCheck 500D desktop kiosk


$0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Library  - Elevator Electronic Door Sensor


$0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Library - Elevator Electronic Soft Start


$0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000Parking Lot Sealing


$0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000Public address system and periperals


$0 $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000Tuckpointing


Subtotal - Library $56,100$0$0$5,000$5,000$10,000$18,000$18,100


City of Stoughton Page 7 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Parks


$15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Asphalt Seal Veterans/Lowell Basketball Courts


$4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000Basketball Hoop Upgrade- Lowell


$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000Bjoin Park Tennis Court Resurfacing


$17,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $17,000Norse Park Foul Line-Option A


$18,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000Norse Park Foul Line-Option B


$15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Norse Park Retaining Wall


$6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000Park Bench Replacement


$4,000 $3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,500Park Sign Replacement


$8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000Racetrack Park Fence Repairs


$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0 $30,000Trash Receptacles


$3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500Troll Beach Plumbing Upgrade


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000ADA Drinking/Bottle Filling Bjoin, VL, Lowell, 


$0 $85,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $85,000Lowell Park Playground Replacement


$0 $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000Norse Tennis/Basketball Court Resurface


$0 $12,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000Rip Rap Senior Center


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Virgin Lake Restroom Upgrade


$0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000Whirl-a-Round Bjoin Park


$0 $0 $3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500ADA Pathways


$0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Bjoin Shelter Roof


$0 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000Dunkirk Playground Replacement


$0 $0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Hollywood Kwik Release Bases (7 sets)


City of Stoughton Page 8 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Parks


$0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Racetrack Shelter Roof/Siding


$0 $0 $0 $3,500 $0 $0 $0 $3,500ADA Pathways East Park


$0 $0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Eastside Park Restroom Update/Partitions


$0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Schefelker Basketball Half Court


$0 $0 $0 $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $75,000Schefelker Playground Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Schefelker Walk Trail Overlay/Lights


$0 $0 $0 $0 $175,000 $0 $0 $175,000Norse Park Playground


$0 $0 $0 $0 $75,000 $0 $0 $75,000Pump Track Mel Bakke Park


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000Skate Park update


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $30,000Racetrack Dug outs (concrete/roof)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000 $0 $150,000Racetrack Playground


Subtotal - Parks $1,089,000$0$185,000$275,000$143,500$107,500$247,500$130,500


City of Stoughton Page 9 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Planning


$2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500City Hall-1st floor Ceiling Tile Replacement


$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Electronic Door Conversion


$2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500Laptop, iPad, Printer, cell phones


$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Opera House - Rooftop Unit #1 - West Unit


$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000Opera House - Rooftop Unit #2 East Unit


$50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000Power House Bldg - Repair & Reroof


$65,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,000Power House Bldg - Tuck Point


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,0002004 Ford Van


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000City Hall - Door Access Control


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000City Hall - HVAC Control System


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000City Hall - Landscaping


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000City Hall - Replace 4 condensing units


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Opera House - Seal Parking Lot


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Planning Dept 2005 1/2 ton pickup


$0 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000City Hall - Parking Lot Asphalt Replacement


$0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Opera House - Fan Coil Replacement 5th


$0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Opera House - Tuck Pointing


$0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000City Hall - Electric Service


$0 $0 $0 $0 $17,000 $0 $0 $17,000Opera House - Window Assessment


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 $0 $35,000City Hall - Boiler Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $80,000 $0 $80,000City Hall - Roof Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $20,000Opera House - 2 Fan Coil Replacments - Main


City of Stoughton Page 10 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Planning


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $30,000Opera House - Front Doors


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000Opera House - Stage Refinishing


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000 $150,000Opera House - Window Replacement


Subtotal - Planning $862,000$175,000$165,000$57,000$0$85,000$165,000$215,000


City of Stoughton Page 11 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Police


$4,400 $16,000 $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,400Body Camera Replacement


$5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000Camera Interface


$3,000 $3,200 $3,200 $3,200 $3,500 $0 $0 $16,100Cellebrite Annual Subscription


$3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Convert cellphone body wire


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Holding Cell Toilet Replacement


$3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Office Computer Replacement


$16,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $16,000 $16,000 $0 $108,000Portable Radios


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000PSB - Carpet Replacement - 1st floor


$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Carpet Replacement - 2nd floor


$5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000PSB- Ceiling Tile Replacement 2nd Floor


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000PSB-Building Sidewalk Replacement


$5,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0 $15,000Radio Programming


$12,000 $12,000 $12,000 $0 $0 $12,000 $0 $48,000Radio System Base Unit Replacement


$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $77,000Squad #276


$21,000 $6,000 $0 $15,000 $15,000 $0 $0 $57,000Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace


$4,800 $4,500 $4,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,100Taser Replacement


$0 $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,000Community Camera Interface


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Dodge Caravan - #275


$0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000Electric Police Biks


$0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Generator Re-wire PSB


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Motor Patrol Unit


$0 $3,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,600PSB - Exterior Lighting Replacement


City of Stoughton Page 12 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Police


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Landscaping


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000PSB -Replace RTU#1-Carrier


$0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #271


$0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #281


$0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000CAD Interface Router to County


$0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #273 K-9


$0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #277


$0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000PSB - Replace RTU #4 - Carrier Rooftop unit


$0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Window Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000PSB-Replace RTU#2 Carrier rooftop unit


$0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #272


$0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #274


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Replace Trane Fan Coil Unit #5


$0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $42,000Squad Car - New #283


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $42,000Squad #270


Subtotal - Police $990,200$0$114,000$98,500$209,200$132,000$269,300$167,200


City of Stoughton Page 13 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Recreation


$45,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $45,000Criddle Park Natural Playground


$16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000Mandt Park Master Planning


$16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000Mandt Park Pickleball Court Fencing


$7,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,700Nordic Ridge Park Furnishings


$115,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,000Nordic Ridge Park Playground


$4,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,500Troll Beach Hard Mat


$50,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,500Whitewater Park & Trail Dev. Planning & 


$38,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $38,000Whitewater Park Hydraulic and Hydrologic Study


$0 $26,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,000ADA Transition Plan


$0 $4,500 $4,613 $3,150 $3,225 $3,300 $0 $18,788Bike Rack Initiative


$0 $18,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000High School Baseball Diamond Light Removal


$0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000RD PII WW Park Eng - Final Design


$0 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000Rotary Park-Restroom & Pathways


$0 $6,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,700Troll Beach Dock


$0 $2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500Troll Beach Entrance Fence


$0 $0 $80,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $80,000Nordic Ridge Multiuse Court


$0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Racetrack Park Master Plan


$0 $0 $5,175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,175RD PII Native Plantings Design (Mandt Park)


$0 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000RD PII River Access Design (Mandt Park)


$0 $0 $36,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,750RD PII Trail Design (4th St to Water St)


City of Stoughton Page 14 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Recreation


$0 $0 $6,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,400RD PII WW Park Eng - Bidding Support


$0 $0 $0 $34,500 $0 $0 $0 $34,500RD PII Native Plantings (Mandt Park)


$0 $0 $0 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $150,000RD PII River Access (Mandt Park)


$0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $200,000RD PII River Restoration


$0 $0 $0 $244,500 $0 $0 $0 $244,500RD PII Trails (4th St to Water St)


$0 $0 $0 $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $800,000RD PII WW Park Construction


$0 $0 $0 $39,450 $0 $0 $0 $39,450RD PII WW Park Eng - Const Oversight


$0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $200,000RD PII WW Park Sediment Mgmt


$0 $0 $0 $84,000 $0 $0 $0 $84,000Settler's Point Trail Gravel Parking Lot


$0 $0 $0 $104,500 $0 $0 $0 $104,500Settler's Point Trail Network


$0 $0 $0 $175,000 $0 $0 $0 $175,000Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (IKI)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $22,000 $0 $0 $22,000Parks & Open Space Plan


$0 $0 $0 $0 $34,000 $0 $0 $34,000RD PIII Market Demand Analysis


$0 $0 $0 $0 $134,375 $0 $0 $134,375Schefelker Park - Shelter/Restroom Building


$0 $0 $0 $0 $134,375 $0 $0 $134,375Veterans Park - Shelter/Restroom Building


$0 $0 $0 $0 $108,117 $0 $0 $108,117Yahara Trail Paving-Viking Park to Hospital


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,500 $0 $16,500Amundson Park - Trail Exercise Stations


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,500 $0 $5,500Lowell Park - Raised Planter Beds


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $90,000 $0 $90,000RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility Design


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $142,681 $0 $142,681Yahara Trail Paving-Bus Park to Ped Bridge


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400,000 $400,000RD PIII Mandt Park Updates


City of Stoughton Page 15 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Recreation


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600,000 $600,000RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175,000 $175,000Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (Pr. Prop)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,000 $65,000Lowell Park - Mountain Bike Trails


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0RD PII River Restoration


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0RD PII WW Park Sediment Mgmt


Subtotal - Recreation $4,709,511$1,240,000$257,981$436,092$2,035,100$197,938$249,700$292,700


Redevelopment Authority


$200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000Public Works Bldg Demo


$100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000Public Works Environmetnal Testing/Remed


$0 $71,265 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $71,265Pedestrian Bridge Design


$0 $211,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $211,600Riverbank Restoration


$0 $27,508 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,508Riverbank Restoration Design


$0 $34,296 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $34,296Riverfront Trail and Amenities Design


$0 $0 $475,103 $0 $0 $0 $0 $475,103Pedestrian Bridge Construction


$0 $0 $303,662 $0 $0 $0 $0 $303,662Riverfront Trail and Amenities


$0 $0 $0 $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $400,000Lift Station


Subtotal - Redevelopment Authority $1,823,434$0$0$0$400,000$778,765$344,669$300,000


City of Stoughton Page 16 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Senior Center


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Building Sidewalk Replacement


$150,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000Parking Deck Repair


$25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Sr Ctr - Condensing Unit - Small #5


$0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Sr Ctr - Condensing Unit - Large #6


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Sr Ctr - Landscaping Restoration


$0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Senior Center - Replace Windows


$0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $15,000Senior Center - Sanitary Lift Pump


$0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000Sr Ctr - Annex Roof Repair - Cedar Shake


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $40,000Sr Ctr-Lower Lot & concrete spillway resurfacing


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $40,000Sr Ctr Annex-Replace 4 Fan Coil & condensing 


Subtotal - Senior Center $400,000$40,000$40,000$55,000$0$20,000$60,000$185,000


City of Stoughton Page 17 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Streets


$190,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $190,000#17 Patrol Truck (Chevy)


$215,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $215,000#22 Loader (John Deere)


$40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Forklift


$3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500Grapple Bucket for Toolcat


$43,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $43,000Sterile Coni Column Lifts


$0 $36,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,800#1 Pickup Truck (Ford F-250)


$0 $31,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $31,000#2 Pickup Truck (Sierra 1500)


$0 $48,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $48,000#28 Tractor (John Deere)


$0 $190,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $190,000#29 Patrol Truck (Chevy)


$0 $250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250,000#3 Street Sweeper (Elgin)


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000#99 Pool Van


$0 $0 $36,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,000#13 Chevy K3500


$0 $0 $115,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,000#23 Backhoe (John Deere)


$0 $0 $95,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $95,000#27 Toro 5900


$0 $0 $6,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,250#32 Scagg


$0 $0 $193,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $193,000#7 Patrol Truck (Chevy)


$0 $0 $0 $140,000 $0 $0 $0 $140,000#33 Bucket Truck - International 4300


$0 $0 $0 $58,000 $0 $0 $0 $58,000#38 Morbark Wood Chipper


$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $45,000#40 Skid Steer S630 (Bobcat)


$0 $0 $0 $160,000 $0 $0 $0 $160,000#41 Leaf Vacuum Unit


$0 $0 $0 $31,000 $0 $0 $0 $31,000#8 Dump Truck - One-ton GMC


$0 $0 $0 $33,000 $0 $0 $0 $33,000Toro GM7200 w/polar track


City of Stoughton Page 18 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Streets


$0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000#11 Dump Truck One-Ton (Chevy 3500)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000#30 Wacker Road Roller


$0 $0 $0 $0 $160,000 $0 $0 $160,000#42 Leaf Vacuum Unit


$0 $0 $0 $0 $33,000 $0 $0 $33,000#47 Pickup Truck (Chevy)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $48,000 $0 $0 $48,000F250 Truck w/ Lift Gate-Add'n to Fleet


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,000 $0 $115,000#20 Grader (John Deere 570A)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,500 $0 $10,500#43 Rhino Ditch Mower


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000 $0 $18,000#59 Smithco Diamond Groomer


Subtotal - Streets $2,429,050$0$143,500$301,000$467,000$445,250$580,800$491,500


Youth Center


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Youth Center - HVAC Control System


Subtotal - Youth Center $20,000$0$0$0$0$0$20,000$0


$18,143,467 $5,400,583 $5,506,183 $9,171,362 $2,915,383 $5,919,619 $1,871,802 $48,928,399Grand Total:


City of Stoughton Page 19 of 19Projects By Department/Division







Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source
Previous


Years
Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Administration


Equipment Replacement


$0 $14,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,000Express Vote (ADA Accessible Voting Machines)


$0 $14,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,000Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


Subtotal - Administration $14,000$0$0$0$0$0$14,000$0


Fire


Equipment Replacement


$6,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,250Carcinogen Blocking PPE Hoods


$5,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,600Class A & B Uniforms


$35,000 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70,000Personnal Protective Equipment


$12,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000Positive Pressure Vent Fans


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Skid Pak for ATV


$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Uni-Mac Extractor


$0 $4,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,700Bay security lights add and reel replacement


$0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000Breathing Air Compressor & Storage Tanks


$0 $79,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $79,500Brush Rig


$0 $36,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,600Car 1 Command Car


$0 $15,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,500Hose Washer


$0 $25,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,700Mobile Data Terminals and Docking Stations


$0 $20,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,500ParaTech Air Bag System


$0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,000Replacement Ice Rescue Suits


$0 $0 $28,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28,500Car 2 support vehicle replacement


$0 $0 $0 $95,000 $0 $0 $0 $95,000Portable Radios


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,400 $86,40072 SCBA bottle only replacement


$88,850 $241,500 $63,500 $95,000 $0 $0 $86,400 $575,250Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


Subtotal - Fire $575,250$86,400$0$0$95,000$63,500$241,500$88,850


City of Stoughton Page 1 of 4Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


IT/Media Services


Equipment Replacement


$7,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,500BluRay Duplicator


$12,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000Expand Camera Fleet


$0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Camera Replacement


$19,500 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $44,500Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


Subtotal - IT/Media Services $44,500$0$0$0$0$25,000$0$19,500


Planning


Equipment Replacement


$2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500Laptop, iPad, Printer, cell phones


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,0002004 Ford Van


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Planning Dept 2005 1/2 ton pickup


$2,500 $60,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $62,500Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


Subtotal - Planning $62,500$0$0$0$0$0$60,000$2,500


City of Stoughton Page 2 of 4Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Police


Equipment Replacement


$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $77,000Squad #276


$0 $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,000Community Camera Interface


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Dodge Caravan - #275


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Motor Patrol Unit


$0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #271


$0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #281


$0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #273 K-9


$0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #277


$0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #272


$0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #274


$0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $42,000Squad Car - New #283


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $42,000Squad #270


$35,000 $141,000 $84,000 $84,000 $42,000 $84,000 $0 $470,000Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


Subtotal - Police $470,000$0$84,000$42,000$84,000$84,000$141,000$35,000


City of Stoughton Page 3 of 4Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Streets


Equipment Replacement


$0 $36,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,800#1 Pickup Truck (Ford F-250)


$0 $31,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $31,000#2 Pickup Truck (Sierra 1500)


$0 $48,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $48,000#28 Tractor (John Deere)


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000#99 Pool Van


$0 $0 $36,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,000#13 Chevy K3500


$0 $0 $115,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,000#23 Backhoe (John Deere)


$0 $0 $6,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,250#32 Scagg


$0 $0 $0 $58,000 $0 $0 $0 $58,000#38 Morbark Wood Chipper


$0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000#11 Dump Truck One-Ton (Chevy 3500)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000#30 Wacker Road Roller


$0 $0 $0 $0 $33,000 $0 $0 $33,000#47 Pickup Truck (Chevy)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $48,000 $0 $0 $48,000F250 Truck w/ Lift Gate-Add'n to Fleet


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,500 $0 $10,500#43 Rhino Ditch Mower


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000 $0 $18,000#59 Smithco Diamond Groomer


$0 $140,800 $157,250 $58,000 $141,000 $28,500 $0 $525,550Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


Subtotal - Streets $525,550$0$28,500$141,000$58,000$157,250$140,800$0


$145,850 $597,300 $329,750 $237,000 $183,000 $112,500 $86,400 $1,691,800Grand Total:


City of Stoughton Page 4 of 4Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source
Previous


Years
Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


EMS


Building Maintenance


$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000EMS - Rooftop Unit #2


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000EMS - Rooftop Unit #1


$0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000EMS - Rooftop Unit #4


$20,000 $25,000 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,000Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Subtotal - EMS $65,000$0$0$0$0$20,000$25,000$20,000


Library


Building Maintenance


$6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000Exterior Painting


$0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Library  - Elevator Electronic Door Sensor


$0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Library - Elevator Electronic Soft Start


$0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000Parking Lot Sealing


$0 $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000Tuckpointing


$6,000 $11,000 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,000Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Subtotal - Library $22,000$0$0$0$0$5,000$11,000$6,000


City of Stoughton Page 1 of 4Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Planning


Building Maintenance


$2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500City Hall-1st floor Ceiling Tile Replacement


$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Electronic Door Conversion


$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Opera House - Rooftop Unit #1 - West Unit


$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000Opera House - Rooftop Unit #2 East Unit


$50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000Power House Bldg - Repair & Reroof


$65,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,000Power House Bldg - Tuck Point


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000City Hall - Door Access Control


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000City Hall - HVAC Control System


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000City Hall - Landscaping


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000City Hall - Replace 4 condensing units


$0 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000City Hall - Parking Lot Asphalt Replacement


$0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Opera House - Fan Coil Replacement 5th


$0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000City Hall - Electric Service


$0 $0 $0 $0 $17,000 $0 $0 $17,000Opera House - Window Assessment


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 $0 $35,000City Hall - Boiler Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $80,000 $0 $80,000City Hall - Roof Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $20,000Opera House - 2 Fan Coil Replacments - Main


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $30,000Opera House - Front Doors


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000Opera House - Stage Refinishing


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000 $150,000Opera House - Window Replacement


$212,500 $80,000 $45,000 $0 $57,000 $165,000 $175,000 $734,500Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Subtotal - Planning $734,500$175,000$165,000$57,000$0$45,000$80,000$212,500


City of Stoughton Page 2 of 4Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Police


Building Maintenance


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Holding Cell Toilet Replacement


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000PSB - Carpet Replacement - 1st floor


$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Carpet Replacement - 2nd floor


$5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000PSB- Ceiling Tile Replacement 2nd Floor


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000PSB-Building Sidewalk Replacement


$0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Generator Re-wire PSB


$0 $3,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,600PSB - Exterior Lighting Replacement


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Landscaping


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000PSB -Replace RTU#1-Carrier


$0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000PSB - Replace RTU #4 - Carrier Rooftop unit


$0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Window Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000PSB-Replace RTU#2 Carrier rooftop unit


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Replace Trane Fan Coil Unit #5


$55,000 $58,600 $0 $80,000 $20,000 $0 $0 $213,600Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Subtotal - Police $213,600$0$0$20,000$80,000$0$58,600$55,000


City of Stoughton Page 3 of 4Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Senior Center


Building Maintenance


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Building Sidewalk Replacement


$150,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000Parking Deck Repair


$25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Sr Ctr - Condensing Unit - Small #5


$0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Sr Ctr - Condensing Unit - Large #6


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Sr Ctr - Landscaping Restoration


$0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Senior Center - Replace Windows


$0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $15,000Senior Center - Sanitary Lift Pump


$0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000Sr Ctr - Annex Roof Repair - Cedar Shake


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $40,000Sr Ctr-Lower Lot & concrete spillway resurfacing


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $40,000Sr Ctr Annex-Replace 4 Fan Coil & condensing units


$185,000 $60,000 $20,000 $0 $55,000 $40,000 $40,000 $400,000Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Subtotal - Senior Center $400,000$40,000$40,000$55,000$0$20,000$60,000$185,000


Youth Center


Building Maintenance


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Youth Center - HVAC Control System


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Subtotal - Youth Center $20,000$0$0$0$0$0$20,000$0


$478,500 $254,600 $90,000 $80,000 $132,000 $205,000 $215,000 $1,455,100Grand Total:


City of Stoughton Page 4 of 4Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Dept Project Description 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Grant Funding  To 
Arrive At Total 


Project Cost Total Project Cost
Streets/Storm Water Engineering Tech 100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water Brewer Ct/Hyland Storm Sewer 34,100$                            -$                         34,100$                           
Streets/Storm Water EASTWOOD STORMWATER POND DREDGING 50,000$                            -$                         50,000$                           
Streets/Storm Water GRANT ST - RECONSTRUCTION    293,959$                          -$                         293,959$                         
Streets/Storm Water HARRISON CT - PULVERIZATION    42,742$                            -$                         42,742$                           
Streets/Storm Water JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE DECK ENGINEERING 29,820$                            -$                         29,820$                           
Streets/Storm Water MAIN ST RECONSTRUCTION     268,400$                          -$                         268,400$                         
Streets/Storm Water PREVENTATIVE MAINTANCE      180,000$                          -$                         180,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water PROJECT ENGINEERING      82,387$                            -$                         82,387$                           
Streets/Storm Water PROSPECT ST - RECONSTRUCTION    356,754$                          -$                         356,754$                         
Streets/Storm Water ROBY RD EAST - PULVERIZATION   288,779$                          -$                         288,779$                         
Streets/Storm Water SHERMAN - RECONSTRUCTION     96,618$                            -$                         96,618$                           
Streets/Storm Water Sidewalk Program      100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water SKINNER LA - PULVERIZATION    49,555$                            -$                         49,555$                           
Streets/Storm Water TREE REMOVAL/PLANTING-CONSTRUCTION SITES     11,000$                            -$                         11,000$                           


Administration Financial Management Plan 15,000$                            -$                         15,000$                           
Administration Landmarks - Local Downtown Historic District 30,000$                            -$                         30,000$                           


Fire Plymovent System      77,000$                            -$                         77,000$                           
Fire Portable Radios      20,000$                            -$                         20,000$                           
Fire Swift Water Rescue Suits and Equipment 4,000$                              -$                         4,000$                             


IT/Media Services      Computer Replacement      40,000$                            -$                         40,000$                           
IT/Media Services      Upgrade Control Room and Council Chambers 40,000$                            -$                         40,000$                           


Parks ADA Drinking/Bottle Filling Bjoin, VL, Lowell, RT 15,000$                            -$                         15,000$                           
Parks Lowell Park Playground Replacement    85,000$                            -$                         85,000$                           
Parks Norse Tennis/Basketball Court Resurface     100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Parks Park Bench Replacement     6,000$                              -$                         6,000$                             
Parks Park Sign Replacement     3,500$                              -$                         3,500$                             
Parks Rip Rap Senior Center 12,000$                            -$                         12,000$                           
Parks Trash Receptacles      5,000$                              -$                         5,000$                             
Parks Virgin Lake Restroom Upgrade    15,000$                            -$                         15,000$                           
Parks Whirl-a-Round Bjoin Park 6,000$                              -$                         6,000$                             


Planning Opera House - Seal Parking Lot   25,000$                            -$                         25,000$                           
Police Body Camera Replacement     16,000$                            -$                         16,000$                           
Police Cellebrite Annual Subscription     3,200$                              -$                         3,200$                             
Police Electric Police Bikes 6,000$                              -$                         6,000$                             
Police Radio Programming      2,000$                              -$                         2,000$                             
Police Radio System Base Unit Replacement   12,000$                            -$                         12,000$                           
Police Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace    6,000$                              -$                         6,000$                             
Police Taser Replacement      4,500$                              -$                         4,500$                             


Recreation ADA Transition Plan 26,000$                            -$                         26,000$                           
Recreation Bike Rack Initiative 4,500$                              -$                         4,500$                             
Recreation High School Baseball Diamond Light Removal 18,000$                            -$                         18,000$                           
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Whitewater Park Engineering - Final Design 42,000$                            -$                         42,000$                           
Recreation Rotary Park - Restroom and Accessible Pathways 75,000$                            75,000$                   150,000$                         
Recreation Troll Beach Dock 6,700$                              -$                         6,700$                             
Recreation Troll Beach Entrance Fence 2,500$                              -$                         2,500$                             


Streets #29 Patrol Truck (Chevy)    190,000$                          -$                         190,000$                         
Streets #3 Street Sweeper (Elgin)    195,536$                          54,464$                   250,000$                         


TIF Pedestrian Bridge Design 71,265$                            -$                         71,265$                           
TIF Riverbank Restoration 94,181$                            117,419$                211,600$                         
TIF Riverbank Restoration Design 27,508$                            -$                         27,508$                           
TIF Riverfront Trail and Amenities Design 34,296$                            -$                         34,296$                           


Streets/Storm Water Engineering Tech 100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION    656,230$                          -$                         656,230$                         
Streets/Storm Water HARRISON - RECONSTRUCTION 245,075$                          -$                         245,075$                         







Dept Project Description 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Grant Funding  To 
Arrive At Total 


Project Cost Total Project Cost
Streets/Storm Water JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE DECK    468,600$                          -$                         468,600$                         
Streets/Storm Water JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION 261,986$                          -$                         261,986$                         
Streets/Storm Water LINCOLN AVE - PULVERIZATION    214,634$                          -$                         214,634$                         
Streets/Storm Water MILWAUKEE ST - PULVERIZATION    303,550$                          -$                         303,550$                         
Streets/Storm Water MONROE ST - PULVERIZATION    198,562$                          -$                         198,562$                         
Streets/Storm Water PREVENTATIVE MAINTANCE      180,000$                          -$                         180,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water PROJECT ENGINEERING      204,698$                          -$                         204,698$                         
Streets/Storm Water ROBY RD WEST - PULVERIZATION   410,609$                          -$                         410,609$                         
Streets/Storm Water ROY ST - PULVERIZATION    107,686$                          -$                         107,686$                         
Streets/Storm Water Sidewalk Program      100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water TREE REMOVAL/PLANTING-CONSTRUCTION SITES     15,000$                            -$                         15,000$                           
Streets/Storm Water USH 51 Roundabouts     120,000$                          -$                         120,000$                         


Fire LED overhead door docking lights green/red 8,000$                              -$                         8,000$                             
Fire Portable Radios      20,000$                            -$                         20,000$                           
Fire Steer Tire Replacement STL-4    1,600$                              -$                         1,600$                             


Parks ADA Pathways 3,500$                              -$                         3,500$                             
Parks Bjoin Shelter Roof     10,000$                            -$                         10,000$                           
Parks Dunkirk Playground Replacement 50,000$                            -$                         50,000$                           
Parks Hollywood Kwik Release Bases (7 sets) 3,000$                              -$                         3,000$                             
Parks Park Bench Replacement     6,000$                              -$                         6,000$                             
Parks Racetrack Shelter Roof/Siding     30,000$                            -$                         30,000$                           
Parks Trash Receptacles      5,000$                              -$                         5,000$                             


Planning Opera House - Tuck Pointing    40,000$                            -$                         40,000$                           
Police CAD Interface Router to County   6,000$                              -$                         6,000$                             
Police Cellebrite Annual Subscription     3,200$                              -$                         3,200$                             
Police Radio Programming      2,000$                              -$                         2,000$                             
Police Radio System Base Unit Replacement   12,000$                            -$                         12,000$                           
Police Taser Replacement      4,800$                              -$                         4,800$                             


Recreation Bike Rack Initiative 4,613$                              -$                         4,613$                             
Recreation Nordic Ridge Multiuse Court    80,000$                            -$                         80,000$                           
Recreation Racetrack Park Master Plan 30,000$                            -$                         30,000$                           
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase I River Access Design (Mandt Park) 35,000$                            -$                         35,000$                           
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Native Plantings Design (Mandt Park) 5,175$                              -$                         5,175$                             
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Trail Design (4th St to Water St) 18,375$                            18,375$                   36,750$                           
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Whitewater Park Engineering - Bidding Support 3,200$                              3,200$                     6,400$                             


Streets #27 Toro 5900     95,000$                            -$                         95,000$                           
Streets #7 Patrol Truck (Chevy)    193,000$                          -$                         193,000$                         


TIF Pedestrian Bridge Construction 92,567$                            382,536$                475,103$                         
TIF Riverfront Trail and Amenities 134,683$                          168,979$                303,662$                         


Streets/Storm Water Engineering Tech 100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water BICKLEY CT - PULVERIZATION    57,090$                            -$                         57,090$                           
Streets/Storm Water HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION     320,951$                          -$                         320,951$                         
Streets/Storm Water HILLCREST & HOLTON-PULVER     265,944$                          -$                         265,944$                         
Streets/Storm Water PREVENTATIVE MAINTANCE      180,000$                          -$                         180,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water PROJECT ENGINEERING      226,976$                          -$                         226,976$                         
Streets/Storm Water ROWE ST - RECONSTRUCTION    197,648$                          -$                         197,648$                         
Streets/Storm Water Sidewalk Program      100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water TREE REMOVAL/PLANTING-CONSTRUCTION SITES     13,000$                            -$                         13,000$                           
Streets/Storm Water TRUMAN RD - PULVERIZATION    56,885$                            -$                         56,885$                           
Streets/Storm Water W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION   536,965$                          -$                         536,965$                         
Streets/Storm Water WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION    413,118$                          -$                         413,118$                         


Fire Drive Tire Replacement STL-4    3,600$                              -$                         3,600$                             
Fire Portable Radios      20,000$                            -$                         20,000$                           
Fire SCBA Hydro test     4,500$                              -$                         4,500$                             
Fire Tire Replacement STE-2     6,000$                              -$                         6,000$                             







Dept Project Description 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Grant Funding  To 
Arrive At Total 


Project Cost Total Project Cost
Parks ADA Pathways East Park 3,500$                              -$                         3,500$                             
Parks Eastside Park Restroom Update/Partitions 25,000$                            -$                         25,000$                           
Parks Schefelker Basketball Half Court    20,000$                            -$                         20,000$                           
Parks Schefelker Playground Replacement     75,000$                            -$                         75,000$                           
Parks Schefelker Walk Trail Overlay/Lights 15,000$                            -$                         15,000$                           
Parks Trash Receptacles      5,000$                              -$                         5,000$                             
Police Body Camera Replacement     5,000$                              -$                         5,000$                             
Police Cellebrite Annual Subscription     3,200$                              -$                         3,200$                             
Police Radio Programming      2,000$                              -$                         2,000$                             
Police Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace    15,000$                            -$                         15,000$                           


Recreation Bike Rack Initiative 3,150$                              -$                         3,150$                             
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase I River Access (Mandt Park) 150,000$                          -$                         150,000$                         
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Native Plantings (Mandt Park) 34,500$                            -$                         34,500$                           
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Trails (4th St to Water St) 122,250$                          122,250$                244,500$                         
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Whitewater Park Construction  400,000$                          400,000$                800,000$                         
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase II Whitewater Park Engineering - Construction Oversight 19,500$                            19,950$                   39,450$                           
Recreation Settler's Point -  Gravel Parking Lot 42,000$                            42,000$                   84,000$                           
Recreation Settler's Point - Trail Network    52,250$                            52,250$                   104,500$                         
Recreation Yahara River Trail - Stoughton Hospital to Cooper's Causeway Boardwalk (IKI) 87,500$                            87,500$                   175,000$                         


Streets #33 Bucket Truck - International 4300  140,000$                          -$                         140,000$                         
Streets #40 Skid Steer S630 (Bobcat)   45,000$                            -$                         45,000$                           
Streets #41 Leaf Vacuum Unit    160,000$                          -$                         160,000$                         
Streets #8 Dump Truck - One-ton GMC  31,000$                            -$                         31,000$                           
Streets Toro GM7200 w/polar track    33,000$                            -$                         33,000$                           


TIF EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION 1,894,995$                       -$                         1,894,995$                      
TIF FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION 385,225$                          -$                         385,225$                         
TIF FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION    1,028,665$                       -$                         1,028,665$                      
TIF Lift Station      400,000$                          -$                         400,000$                         


Streets/Storm Water Engineering Tech 100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION    146,676$                          -$                         146,676$                         
Streets/Storm Water MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION    275,789$                          -$                         275,789$                         
Streets/Storm Water MAIN/PAGE CT      11,000$                            -$                         11,000$                           
Streets/Storm Water MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION    101,358$                          -$                         101,358$                         
Streets/Storm Water PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION    181,180$                          -$                         181,180$                         
Streets/Storm Water PREVENTATIVE MAINTANCE      180,000$                          -$                         180,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water PROJECT ENGINEERING      120,865$                          -$                         120,865$                         
Streets/Storm Water Sidewalk Program      100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water SILV ERADO DR - PULVERIZATION   87,726$                            -$                         87,726$                           
Streets/Storm Water TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION    143,901$                          -$                         143,901$                         
Streets/Storm Water TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION    154,796$                          -$                         154,796$                         
Streets/Storm Water TREE REMOVAL/PLANTING-CONSTRUCTION SITES     9,500$                              -$                         9,500$                             


Fire Portable Radios      16,000$                            -$                         16,000$                           
IT/Media Services      Computer Replacement      30,000$                            -$                         30,000$                           
IT/Media Services      Upgrade EMS Cameras to HD   20,000$                            -$                         20,000$                           


Parks Norse Park Playground     175,000$                          -$                         175,000$                         
Parks Pump Track Mel Bakke Park 75,000$                            -$                         75,000$                           
Parks Skate Park update 20,000$                            -$                         20,000$                           
Parks Trash Receptacles      5,000$                              -$                         5,000$                             
Police Cellebrite Annual Subscription     3,500$                              -$                         3,500$                             
Police Radio Programming      2,000$                              -$                         2,000$                             
Police Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace    15,000$                            -$                         15,000$                           


Recreation Bike Rack Initiative 3,225$                              -$                         3,225$                             
Recreation Parks & Open Space Plan   22,000$                            -$                         22,000$                           
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase III Market Demand Analysis 34,000$                            -$                         34,000$                           
Recreation Schefelker Park - Shelter/Restroom Building 134,375$                          -$                         134,375$                         







Dept Project Description 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Grant Funding  To 
Arrive At Total 


Project Cost Total Project Cost
Recreation Veterans Park - Shelter/Restroom Building 134,375$                          -$                         134,375$                         
Recreation Yahara River Trail Paving - Viking Park to Stoughton Hospital 88,117$                            20,000$                   108,117$                         


Streets #42 Leaf Vacuum Unit    160,000$                          -$                         160,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water Engineering Tech 100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION 353,736$                          -$                         353,736$                         
Streets/Storm Water CHICAGO - RECONSTRUCTION 512,848$                          -$                         512,848$                         
Streets/Storm Water DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION 332,871$                          -$                         332,871$                         
Streets/Storm Water GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION 225,389$                          -$                         225,389$                         
Streets/Storm Water PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION 438,075$                          -$                         438,075$                         
Streets/Storm Water PREVENTATIVE MAINTANCE      180,000$                          -$                         180,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water PROJECT ENGINEERING      376,930$                          -$                         376,930$                         
Streets/Storm Water RACETRACK PARK - NORTH LOT AND ROAD 230,940$                          -$                         230,940$                         
Streets/Storm Water RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION 1,025,349$                       -$                         1,025,349$                      
Streets/Storm Water Sidewalk Program      100,000$                          -$                         100,000$                         
Streets/Storm Water TREE REMOVAL/PLANTING-CONSTRUCTION SITES     13,000$                            -$                         13,000$                           


Fire Ladder #4 Replacement     1,095,000$                       -$                         1,095,000$                      
Fire Portable Radios      16,000$                            -$                         16,000$                           


IT/Media Services      Computer Replacement      30,000$                            -$                         30,000$                           
Parks Racetrack Dug outs (concrete/roof) 30,000$                            -$                         30,000$                           
Parks Racetrack Playground 150,000$                          -$                         150,000$                         
Parks Trash Receptacles      5,000$                              -$                         5,000$                             
Police Radio Programming      2,000$                              -$                         2,000$                             
Police Radio System Base Unit Replacement   12,000$                            -$                         12,000$                           


Recreation Amundson Park - Trail Exercise Stations 16,500$                            -$                         16,500$                           
Recreation Bike Rack Initiative 3,300$                              -$                         3,300$                             
Recreation Lowell Park - Raised Planter Beds 5,500$                              -$                         5,500$                             
Recreation Riverfront Development - Phase III Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility Design 45,000$                            45,000$                   90,000$                           
Recreation Yahara River Trail Paving - Business Park to Pedestrian Bridge 122,681$                          20,000$                   142,681$                         


Streets #20 John Deere 570A Grader 115,000$                          -$                         115,000$                         
3,319,800$                       4,483,343$                       7,700,412$                       2,550,383$                       5,537,119$                       1,628,923$             25,219,980$                    







Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source
Previous


Years
Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects


General Obligation Debt


$2,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,600,000Glacier Moraine Dr


$63,999 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $63,999GRANT ST - PULVERIZATION


$407,970 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $407,970JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION


$503,861 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $503,861LINCOLN AVE - PULVERIZATION


$318,581 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $318,581LOWELL ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000McFarland State Bank Building


$158,663 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $158,663PATTERSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $0 $1,080,000Preventative Maintenance


$100,000 $82,387 $167,539 $207,810 $112,858 $347,213 $30,708 $1,048,515PROJECT ENGINEERING


$8,810,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,810,000PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY


$654,865 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $654,865S MONROE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$60,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0 $310,000Sidewalk Program


$40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Subdivision & Platting/Zoning Code Update


$0 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $0 $500,000ENGINEERING TECH POSITION


$0 $195,578 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $195,578GRANT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $39,329 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $39,329HARRISON CT - PULVERIZATION


$0 $29,820 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $29,820JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE DECK ENGINEERING


$0 $246,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $246,400MAIN ST RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $299,254 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $299,254PROSPECT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $229,319 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $229,319ROBY RD EAST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $73,462 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $73,462SHERMAN - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $45,655 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $45,655SKINNER LA - PULVERIZATION


$0 $11,000 $15,000 $13,000 $9,500 $13,000 $1,000 $62,500TREE REMOVAL/PLANTING-CONSTRUCTION 


$0 $0 $377,260 $0 $0 $0 $0 $377,260ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $203,706 $0 $0 $0 $0 $203,706HARRISON - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $468,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $468,600JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE DECK


City of Stoughton Page 1 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects
$0 $0 $216,077 $0 $0 $0 $0 $216,077JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $157,235 $0 $0 $0 $0 $157,235LINCOLN AVE - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $277,325 $0 $0 $0 $0 $277,325MILWAUKEE ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $158,367 $0 $0 $0 $0 $158,367MONROE ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $350,059 $0 $0 $0 $0 $350,059ROBY RD WEST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $90,893 $0 $0 $0 $0 $90,893ROY ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $120,000USH 51 Roundabouts


$0 $0 $0 $53,190 $0 $0 $0 $53,190BICKLEY CT - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $640,258 $0 $0 $0 $640,258EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $125,456 $0 $0 $0 $125,456FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $332,376 $0 $0 $0 $332,376FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $228,359 $0 $0 $0 $228,359HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $202,295 $0 $0 $0 $202,295HILLCREST & HOLTON-PULVER


$0 $0 $0 $160,155 $0 $0 $0 $160,155ROWE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $52,010 $0 $0 $0 $52,010TRUMAN RD - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $449,525 $0 $0 $0 $449,525W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $306,853 $0 $0 $0 $306,853WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $130,663 $0 $0 $130,663JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $184,113 $0 $0 $184,113MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $11,000 $0 $0 $11,000MAIN/PAGE CT


$0 $0 $0 $0 $86,155 $0 $0 $86,155MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $154,863 $0 $0 $154,863PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $76,339 $0 $0 $76,339SILV ERADO DR - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $113,148 $0 $0 $113,148TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $128,673 $0 $0 $128,673TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $282,276 $0 $282,276BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $426,462 $0 $426,462CHICAGO - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $285,990 $0 $285,990DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $182,897 $0 $182,897GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $289,534 $0 $289,534PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


City of Stoughton Page 2 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $230,940 $0 $230,940RACETRACK PARK - NORTH LOT AND ROAD


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $910,395 $0 $910,395RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $182,394 $182,394PINE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $41,250 $41,250RIVERSIDE CEMETERY - RESURFACE


$13,997,939 $1,582,204 $2,932,061 $3,101,287 $1,337,312 $3,298,707 $255,352 $26,504,862Subtotal - General Obligation Debt


Intergovernmental


$250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250,000Industrial Park South Bio-Swale


$0 $950,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $950,000TIF 4 Main St Downtown Improvements


$250,000 $950,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,200,000Subtotal - Intergovernmental


City of Stoughton Page 3 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects


Special Assessments


$5,850 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,850GRANT ST - PULVERIZATION


$133,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $133,600JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION


$77,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $77,600LINCOLN AVE - PULVERIZATION


$65,275 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,275LOWELL ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$36,355 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,355PATTERSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$115,860 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,860S MONROE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$40,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0 $290,000Sidewalk Program


$0 $32,351 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $32,351GRANT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $3,413 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,413HARRISON CT - PULVERIZATION


$0 $57,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $57,500PROSPECT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $42,960 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,960ROBY RD EAST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $23,156 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $23,156SHERMAN - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $3,900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,900SKINNER LA - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $50,170 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,170ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $41,369 $0 $0 $0 $0 $41,369HARRISON - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $45,909 $0 $0 $0 $0 $45,909JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $13,701 $0 $0 $0 $0 $13,701LINCOLN AVE - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $26,225 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,225MILWAUKEE ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $40,195 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,195MONROE ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $60,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,550ROBY RD WEST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $16,793 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,793ROY ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $3,900 $0 $0 $0 $3,900BICKLEY CT - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $129,939 $0 $0 $0 $129,939EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $15,613 $0 $0 $0 $15,613FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $61,905 $0 $0 $0 $61,905FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $41,937 $0 $0 $0 $41,937HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $50,311 $0 $0 $0 $50,311HILLCREST & HOLTON-PULVER


$0 $0 $0 $21,653 $0 $0 $0 $21,653ROWE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $4,875 $0 $0 $0 $4,875TRUMAN RD - PULVERIZATION


City of Stoughton Page 4 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects
$0 $0 $0 $72,810 $0 $0 $0 $72,810W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $60,175 $0 $0 $0 $60,175WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $16,013 $0 $0 $16,013JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $58,126 $0 $0 $58,126MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $15,203 $0 $0 $15,203MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $26,317 $0 $0 $26,317PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $11,387 $0 $0 $11,387SILV ERADO DR - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $30,753 $0 $0 $30,753TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $26,123 $0 $0 $26,123TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $56,679 $0 $56,679BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,386 $0 $86,386CHICAGO - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $46,881 $0 $46,881DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,849 $0 $27,849GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $48,490 $0 $48,490PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,619 $0 $18,619RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,550 $22,550PINE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$474,540 $213,280 $344,912 $513,118 $233,922 $334,904 $22,550 $2,137,226Subtotal - Special Assessments


City of Stoughton Page 5 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects


Storm Water Fund


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Eastwood Stormwater Pond Evaluation


$45,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $45,250GRANT ST - PULVERIZATION


$145,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $145,000Industrial Park South Bio-Swale


$150,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000LINCOLN AVE - PULVERIZATION


$95,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $95,000LOWELL ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$35,813 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,813PATTERSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$20,000 $0 $37,159 $19,166 $8,007 $29,717 $1,500 $115,549PROJECT ENGINEERING


$115,375 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,375S MONROE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $34,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $34,100Brewer Ct/Hyland Storm Sewer


$0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000EASTWOOD STORMWATER POND DREDGING


$0 $66,030 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $66,030GRANT ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $22,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,000MAIN ST RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $16,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,500ROBY RD EAST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $228,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $228,800ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $43,698 $0 $0 $0 $0 $43,698LINCOLN AVE - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $270,010 $0 $0 $0 $270,010EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $107,188 $0 $0 $0 $107,188FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $50,655 $0 $0 $0 $50,655HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $13,338 $0 $0 $0 $13,338HILLCREST & HOLTON-PULVER


$0 $0 $0 $15,840 $0 $0 $0 $15,840ROWE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $14,630 $0 $0 $0 $14,630W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $46,090 $0 $0 $0 $46,090WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $33,550 $0 $0 $33,550MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,781 $0 $14,781BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,643 $0 $14,643GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,051 $0 $100,051PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $96,335 $0 $96,335RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,000 $11,000PINE ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0BOX CULVERT REHAB/REPLACE


City of Stoughton Page 6 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


400-Capital Projects


$616,438 $188,630 $309,657 $536,917 $41,557 $255,527 $12,500 $1,961,226Subtotal - Storm Water Fund


Stoughton Utilities


$0 $0 $0 $854,788 $0 $0 $0 $854,788EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $244,156 $0 $0 $0 $244,156FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION


$0 $0 $0 $527,196 $0 $0 $0 $527,196FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION


$0 $0 $0 $1,626,140 $0 $0 $0 $1,626,140Subtotal - Stoughton Utilities


Subtotal - 400-Capital Projects $33,429,454$290,402$3,889,138$1,612,791$5,777,462$3,586,630$2,934,114$15,338,917


Administration


Equipment Replacement


$0 $14,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,000Express Vote (ADA Accessible Voting Machines)


$0 $14,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,000Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


General Fund Outlay


$7,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,000Handicap Accessible Van


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Financial Management Plan


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Landmarks - Local Downtown Historic District


$7,000 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $52,000Subtotal - General Fund Outlay


Technology Fund


$2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000Administration - New Computer


$1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000Mayor's computer


$3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Subtotal - Technology Fund


Subtotal - Administration $69,000$0$0$0$0$0$59,000$10,000


City of Stoughton Page 7 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


EMS


Building Maintenance


$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000EMS - Rooftop Unit #2


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000EMS - Rooftop Unit #1


$0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000EMS - Rooftop Unit #4


$20,000 $25,000 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,000Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Subtotal - EMS $65,000$0$0$0$0$20,000$25,000$20,000


City of Stoughton Page 8 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Fire


Equipment Replacement


$6,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,250Carcinogen Blocking PPE Hoods


$5,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,600Class A & B Uniforms


$35,000 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70,000Personnal Protective Equipment


$12,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000Positive Pressure Vent Fans


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Skid Pak for ATV


$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Uni-Mac Extractor


$0 $4,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,700Bay security lights add and reel replacement


$0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000Breathing Air Compressor & Storage Tanks


$0 $79,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $79,500Brush Rig


$0 $36,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,600Car 1 Command Car


$0 $15,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,500Hose Washer


$0 $25,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,700Mobile Data Terminals and Docking Stations


$0 $20,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,500ParaTech Air Bag System


$0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,000Replacement Ice Rescue Suits


$0 $0 $28,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28,500Car 2 support vehicle replacement


$0 $0 $0 $95,000 $0 $0 $0 $95,000Portable Radios


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,400 $86,40072 SCBA bottle only replacement


$88,850 $241,500 $63,500 $95,000 $0 $0 $86,400 $575,250Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


City of Stoughton Page 9 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Fire


General Fund Outlay


$8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000Rescue Ropes


$4,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,800Tire Replacement STT-6


$3,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,400Toughbook - Inspector


$0 $77,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $77,000Plymovent System


$0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000Swift Water Rescue Suits and Equipment


$0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000LED overhead door docking lights green/red


$0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600Steer Tire Replacement STL-4


$0 $0 $0 $3,600 $0 $0 $0 $3,600Drive Tire Replacement STL-4


$0 $0 $0 $4,500 $0 $0 $0 $4,500SCBA Hydro test


$0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $6,000Tire Replacement STE-2


$16,200 $81,000 $9,600 $14,100 $0 $0 $0 $120,900Subtotal - General Fund Outlay


General Obligation Debt


$700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $700,000Squad 5 Pierce Kenworth


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,095,000 $0 $1,095,000Ladder #4 Replacement


$700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,095,000 $0 $1,795,000Subtotal - General Obligation Debt


Subtotal - Fire $2,491,150$86,400$1,095,000$0$109,100$73,100$322,500$805,050


City of Stoughton Page 10 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


IT/Media Services


Equipment Replacement


$7,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,500BluRay Duplicator


$12,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000Expand Camera Fleet


$0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Camera Replacement


$19,500 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $44,500Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


General Fund Outlay


$60,000 $40,000 $0 $0 $30,000 $30,000 $40,000 $200,000Computer Replacement


$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Road Box HD System


$60,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,000TelVue AIO B2000-HD Control


$0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Upgrade Control Room and Council Chambers


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000Upgrade EMS Cameras to HD


$150,000 $80,000 $0 $0 $50,000 $30,000 $40,000 $350,000Subtotal - General Fund Outlay


Technology Fund


$0 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $0 $0 $100,000Network upgrades


$0 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $0 $0 $100,000Subtotal - Technology Fund


Subtotal - IT/Media Services $494,500$40,000$30,000$75,000$25,000$50,000$105,000$169,500


City of Stoughton Page 11 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Library


Building Maintenance


$6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000Exterior Painting


$0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Library  - Elevator Electronic Door Sensor


$0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Library - Elevator Electronic Soft Start


$0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000Parking Lot Sealing


$0 $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000Tuckpointing


$6,000 $11,000 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,000Subtotal - Building Maintenance


General Fund Outlay


$7,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,100SelfCheck 500D desktop kiosk


$0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000Public address system and periperals


$7,100 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,100Subtotal - General Fund Outlay


Technology Fund


$5,000 $6,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0 $0 $26,000Computers & peripherals


$5,000 $6,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0 $0 $26,000Subtotal - Technology Fund


Subtotal - Library $56,100$0$0$5,000$5,000$10,000$18,000$18,100


City of Stoughton Page 12 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Parks


General Fund Outlay


$15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Asphalt Seal Veterans/Lowell Basketball Courts


$4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000Basketball Hoop Upgrade- Lowell


$17,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $17,000Norse Park Foul Line-Option A


$18,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000Norse Park Foul Line-Option B


$15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Norse Park Retaining Wall


$6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000Park Bench Replacement


$4,000 $3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,500Park Sign Replacement


$8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000Racetrack Park Fence Repairs


$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0 $30,000Trash Receptacles


$3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500Troll Beach Plumbing Upgrade


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000ADA Drinking/Bottle Filling Bjoin, VL, Lowell, RT


$0 $85,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $85,000Lowell Park Playground Replacement


$0 $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000Norse Tennis/Basketball Court Resurface


$0 $12,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000Rip Rap Senior Center


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Virgin Lake Restroom Upgrade


$0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000Whirl-a-Round Bjoin Park


$0 $0 $3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500ADA Pathways


$0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Bjoin Shelter Roof


$0 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000Dunkirk Playground Replacement


$0 $0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Hollywood Kwik Release Bases (7 sets)


$0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Racetrack Shelter Roof/Siding


$0 $0 $0 $3,500 $0 $0 $0 $3,500ADA Pathways East Park


$0 $0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Eastside Park Restroom Update/Partitions


$0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Schefelker Basketball Half Court


$0 $0 $0 $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $75,000Schefelker Playground Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000Schefelker Walk Trail Overlay/Lights


$0 $0 $0 $0 $175,000 $0 $0 $175,000Norse Park Playground


$0 $0 $0 $0 $75,000 $0 $0 $75,000Pump Track Mel Bakke Park


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000Skate Park update


City of Stoughton Page 13 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Parks
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $30,000Racetrack Dug outs (concrete/roof)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000 $0 $150,000Racetrack Playground


$95,500 $247,500 $107,500 $143,500 $275,000 $185,000 $0 $1,054,000Subtotal - General Fund Outlay


General Obligation Debt


$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000Bjoin Park Tennis Court Resurfacing


$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000Subtotal - General Obligation Debt


Subtotal - Parks $1,089,000$0$185,000$275,000$143,500$107,500$247,500$130,500


City of Stoughton Page 14 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Planning


Building Maintenance


$2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500City Hall-1st floor Ceiling Tile Replacement


$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Electronic Door Conversion


$30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Opera House - Rooftop Unit #1 - West Unit


$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000Opera House - Rooftop Unit #2 East Unit


$50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000Power House Bldg - Repair & Reroof


$65,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,000Power House Bldg - Tuck Point


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000City Hall - Door Access Control


$0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000City Hall - HVAC Control System


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000City Hall - Landscaping


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000City Hall - Replace 4 condensing units


$0 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000City Hall - Parking Lot Asphalt Replacement


$0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Opera House - Fan Coil Replacement 5th


$0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000City Hall - Electric Service


$0 $0 $0 $0 $17,000 $0 $0 $17,000Opera House - Window Assessment


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 $0 $35,000City Hall - Boiler Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $80,000 $0 $80,000City Hall - Roof Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $20,000Opera House - 2 Fan Coil Replacments - Main


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $30,000Opera House - Front Doors


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000Opera House - Stage Refinishing


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000 $150,000Opera House - Window Replacement


$212,500 $80,000 $45,000 $0 $57,000 $165,000 $175,000 $734,500Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Equipment Replacement


$2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500Laptop, iPad, Printer, cell phones


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,0002004 Ford Van


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Planning Dept 2005 1/2 ton pickup


$2,500 $60,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $62,500Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


City of Stoughton Page 15 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Planning


General Fund Outlay


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Opera House - Seal Parking Lot


$0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Opera House - Tuck Pointing


$0 $25,000 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,000Subtotal - General Fund Outlay


Subtotal - Planning $862,000$175,000$165,000$57,000$0$85,000$165,000$215,000


City of Stoughton Page 16 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Police


Building Maintenance


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Holding Cell Toilet Replacement


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000PSB - Carpet Replacement - 1st floor


$20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Carpet Replacement - 2nd floor


$5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000PSB- Ceiling Tile Replacement 2nd Floor


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000PSB-Building Sidewalk Replacement


$0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Generator Re-wire PSB


$0 $3,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,600PSB - Exterior Lighting Replacement


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Landscaping


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000PSB -Replace RTU#1-Carrier


$0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000PSB - Replace RTU #4 - Carrier Rooftop unit


$0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Window Replacement


$0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000PSB-Replace RTU#2 Carrier rooftop unit


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000PSB - Replace Trane Fan Coil Unit #5


$55,000 $58,600 $0 $80,000 $20,000 $0 $0 $213,600Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Equipment Replacement


$35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $77,000Squad #276


$0 $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,000Community Camera Interface


$0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Dodge Caravan - #275


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Motor Patrol Unit


$0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #271


$0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #281


$0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #273 K-9


$0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #277


$0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #272


$0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Squad #274


$0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $42,000Squad Car - New #283


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $42,000Squad #270


$35,000 $141,000 $84,000 $84,000 $42,000 $84,000 $0 $470,000Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


City of Stoughton Page 17 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Police


General Fund Outlay


$4,400 $16,000 $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,400Body Camera Replacement


$5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000Camera Interface


$3,000 $3,200 $3,200 $3,200 $3,500 $0 $0 $16,100Cellebrite Annual Subscription


$3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Convert cellphone body wire


$3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000Office Computer Replacement


$16,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $16,000 $16,000 $0 $108,000Portable Radios


$5,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0 $15,000Radio Programming


$12,000 $12,000 $12,000 $0 $0 $12,000 $0 $48,000Radio System Base Unit Replacement


$21,000 $6,000 $0 $15,000 $15,000 $0 $0 $57,000Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace


$4,800 $4,500 $4,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,100Taser Replacement


$0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000Electric Police Biks


$0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000CAD Interface Router to County


$77,200 $69,700 $48,000 $45,200 $36,500 $30,000 $0 $306,600Subtotal - General Fund Outlay


Subtotal - Police $990,200$0$114,000$98,500$209,200$132,000$269,300$167,200


City of Stoughton Page 18 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Recreation


General Fund Outlay


$13,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $13,750Mandt Park Pickleball Court Fencing


$7,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,700Nordic Ridge Park Furnishings


$4,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,500Troll Beach Hard Mat


$0 $4,500 $4,613 $3,150 $3,225 $3,300 $0 $18,788Bike Rack Initiative


$0 $18,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000High School Baseball Diamond Light Removal


$0 $6,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,700Troll Beach Dock


$0 $2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500Troll Beach Entrance Fence


$0 $0 $0 $0 $22,000 $0 $0 $22,000Parks & Open Space Plan


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,500 $0 $5,500Lowell Park - Raised Planter Beds


$25,950 $31,700 $4,613 $3,150 $25,225 $8,800 $0 $99,438Subtotal - General Fund Outlay


City of Stoughton Page 19 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Recreation


General Obligation Debt


$45,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $45,000Criddle Park Natural Playground


$16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000Mandt Park Master Planning


$24,571 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $24,571Nordic Ridge Park Playground


$50,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,500Whitewater Park & Trail Dev. Planning & Engineeri


$38,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $38,000Whitewater Park Hydraulic and Hydrologic Study


$0 $26,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,000ADA Transition Plan


$0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,000RD PII WW Park Eng - Final Design


$0 $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75,000Rotary Park-Restroom & Pathways


$0 $0 $80,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $80,000Nordic Ridge Multiuse Court


$0 $0 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000Racetrack Park Master Plan


$0 $0 $5,175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,175RD PII Native Plantings Design (Mandt Park)


$0 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000RD PII River Access Design (Mandt Park)


$0 $0 $18,375 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,375RD PII Trail Design (4th St to Water St)


$0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200RD PII WW Park Eng - Bidding Support


$0 $0 $0 $34,500 $0 $0 $0 $34,500RD PII Native Plantings (Mandt Park)


$0 $0 $0 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $150,000RD PII River Access (Mandt Park)


$0 $0 $0 $122,250 $0 $0 $0 $122,250RD PII Trails (4th St to Water St)


$0 $0 $0 $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $400,000RD PII WW Park Construction


$0 $0 $0 $19,500 $0 $0 $0 $19,500RD PII WW Park Eng - Const Oversight


$0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Settler's Point Trail Gravel Parking Lot


$0 $0 $0 $52,250 $0 $0 $0 $52,250Settler's Point Trail Network


$0 $0 $0 $87,500 $0 $0 $0 $87,500Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (IKI)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $34,000 $0 $0 $34,000RD PIII Market Demand Analysis


$0 $0 $0 $0 $134,375 $0 $0 $134,375Schefelker Park - Shelter/Restroom Building


$0 $0 $0 $0 $134,375 $0 $0 $134,375Veterans Park - Shelter/Restroom Building


$0 $0 $0 $0 $88,117 $0 $0 $88,117Yahara Trail Paving-Viking Park to Hospital


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,500 $0 $16,500Amundson Park - Trail Exercise Stations


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $45,000RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility Design


City of Stoughton Page 20 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Recreation
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $122,681 $0 $122,681Yahara Trail Paving-Bus Park to Ped Bridge


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000RD PIII Mandt Park Updates


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300,000 $300,000RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $87,500 $87,500Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (Pr. Prop)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,000 $65,000Lowell Park - Mountain Bike Trails


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0RD PII River Restoration


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0RD PII WW Park Sediment Mgmt


$174,071 $143,000 $171,750 $908,000 $390,867 $184,181 $652,500 $2,624,369Subtotal - General Obligation Debt


Other-Grants


$2,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,250Mandt Park Pickleball Court Fencing


$68,543 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $68,543Nordic Ridge Park Playground


$0 $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75,000Rotary Park-Restroom & Pathways


$0 $0 $18,375 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,375RD PII Trail Design (4th St to Water St)


$0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200RD PII WW Park Eng - Bidding Support


$0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $200,000RD PII River Restoration


$0 $0 $0 $122,250 $0 $0 $0 $122,250RD PII Trails (4th St to Water St)


$0 $0 $0 $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $400,000RD PII WW Park Construction


$0 $0 $0 $19,950 $0 $0 $0 $19,950RD PII WW Park Eng - Const Oversight


$0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $200,000RD PII WW Park Sediment Mgmt


$0 $0 $0 $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $42,000Settler's Point Trail Gravel Parking Lot


$0 $0 $0 $52,250 $0 $0 $0 $52,250Settler's Point Trail Network


$0 $0 $0 $87,500 $0 $0 $0 $87,500Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (IKI)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000Yahara Trail Paving-Viking Park to Hospital


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $45,000RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility Design


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $20,000Yahara Trail Paving-Bus Park to Ped Bridge


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000RD PIII Mandt Park Updates


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300,000 $300,000RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $87,500 $87,500Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (Pr. Prop)


$70,793 $75,000 $21,575 $1,123,950 $20,000 $65,000 $587,500 $1,963,818Subtotal - Other-Grants


City of Stoughton Page 21 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Recreation


Park Improvement Fund


$21,886 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $21,886Nordic Ridge Park Playground


$21,886 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $21,886Subtotal - Park Improvement Fund


Subtotal - Recreation $4,709,511$1,240,000$257,981$436,092$2,035,100$197,938$249,700$292,700


Redevelopment Authority


General Obligation Debt


$200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000Public Works Bldg Demo


$100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000Public Works Environmetnal Testing/Remed


$0 $71,265 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $71,265Pedestrian Bridge Design


$0 $94,181 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $94,181Riverbank Restoration


$0 $27,508 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,508Riverbank Restoration Design


$0 $34,296 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $34,296Riverfront Trail and Amenities Design


$0 $0 $92,567 $0 $0 $0 $0 $92,567Pedestrian Bridge Construction


$0 $0 $134,683 $0 $0 $0 $0 $134,683Riverfront Trail and Amenities


$0 $0 $0 $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $400,000Lift Station


$300,000 $227,250 $227,250 $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,154,500Subtotal - General Obligation Debt


Other-Grants


$0 $117,419 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $117,419Riverbank Restoration


$0 $0 $382,536 $0 $0 $0 $0 $382,536Pedestrian Bridge Construction


$0 $0 $168,979 $0 $0 $0 $0 $168,979Riverfront Trail and Amenities


$0 $117,419 $551,515 $0 $0 $0 $0 $668,934Subtotal - Other-Grants


Subtotal - Redevelopment Authority $1,823,434$0$0$0$400,000$778,765$344,669$300,000


City of Stoughton Page 22 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Senior Center


Building Maintenance


$10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000Building Sidewalk Replacement


$150,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000Parking Deck Repair


$25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000Sr Ctr - Condensing Unit - Small #5


$0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Sr Ctr - Condensing Unit - Large #6


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Sr Ctr - Landscaping Restoration


$0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Senior Center - Replace Windows


$0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $15,000Senior Center - Sanitary Lift Pump


$0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000Sr Ctr - Annex Roof Repair - Cedar Shake


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $40,000Sr Ctr-Lower Lot & concrete spillway resurfacing


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $40,000Sr Ctr Annex-Replace 4 Fan Coil & condensing units


$185,000 $60,000 $20,000 $0 $55,000 $40,000 $40,000 $400,000Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Subtotal - Senior Center $400,000$40,000$40,000$55,000$0$20,000$60,000$185,000


City of Stoughton Page 23 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Streets


Equipment Replacement


$0 $36,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,800#1 Pickup Truck (Ford F-250)


$0 $31,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $31,000#2 Pickup Truck (Sierra 1500)


$0 $48,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $48,000#28 Tractor (John Deere)


$0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000#99 Pool Van


$0 $0 $36,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,000#13 Chevy K3500


$0 $0 $115,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,000#23 Backhoe (John Deere)


$0 $0 $6,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,250#32 Scagg


$0 $0 $0 $58,000 $0 $0 $0 $58,000#38 Morbark Wood Chipper


$0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000#11 Dump Truck One-Ton (Chevy 3500)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000#30 Wacker Road Roller


$0 $0 $0 $0 $33,000 $0 $0 $33,000#47 Pickup Truck (Chevy)


$0 $0 $0 $0 $48,000 $0 $0 $48,000F250 Truck w/ Lift Gate-Add'n to Fleet


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,500 $0 $10,500#43 Rhino Ditch Mower


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000 $0 $18,000#59 Smithco Diamond Groomer


$0 $140,800 $157,250 $58,000 $141,000 $28,500 $0 $525,550Subtotal - Equipment Replacement


General Fund Outlay


$3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500Grapple Bucket for Toolcat


$3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500Subtotal - General Fund Outlay


City of Stoughton Page 24 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Streets


General Obligation Debt


$190,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $190,000#17 Patrol Truck (Chevy)


$215,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $215,000#22 Loader (John Deere)


$40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000Forklift


$43,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $43,000Sterile Coni Column Lifts


$0 $190,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $190,000#29 Patrol Truck (Chevy)


$0 $0 $95,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $95,000#27 Toro 5900


$0 $0 $193,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $193,000#7 Patrol Truck (Chevy)


$0 $0 $0 $140,000 $0 $0 $0 $140,000#33 Bucket Truck - International 4300


$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $45,000#40 Skid Steer S630 (Bobcat)


$0 $0 $0 $31,000 $0 $0 $0 $31,000#8 Dump Truck - One-ton GMC


$0 $0 $0 $33,000 $0 $0 $0 $33,000Toro GM7200 w/polar track


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,000 $0 $115,000#20 Grader (John Deere 570A)


$488,000 $190,000 $288,000 $249,000 $0 $115,000 $0 $1,330,000Subtotal - General Obligation Debt


Other-Grants


$0 $54,464 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $54,464#3 Street Sweeper (Elgin)


$0 $54,464 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $54,464Subtotal - Other-Grants


Storm Water Fund


$0 $195,536 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $195,536#3 Street Sweeper (Elgin)


$0 $0 $0 $160,000 $0 $0 $0 $160,000#41 Leaf Vacuum Unit


$0 $0 $0 $0 $160,000 $0 $0 $160,000#42 Leaf Vacuum Unit


$0 $195,536 $0 $160,000 $160,000 $0 $0 $515,536Subtotal - Storm Water Fund


Subtotal - Streets $2,429,050$0$143,500$301,000$467,000$445,250$580,800$491,500


City of Stoughton Page 25 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source







Previous
Years


Later
Years


Project
Total


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Youth Center


Building Maintenance


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Youth Center - HVAC Control System


$0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000Subtotal - Building Maintenance


Subtotal - Youth Center $20,000$0$0$0$0$0$20,000$0


$18,143,467 $5,400,583 $5,506,183 $9,171,362 $2,915,383 $5,919,619 $1,871,802 $48,928,399Grand Total:


City of Stoughton Page 26 of 26Projects By Department/Division and Funding Source





		09a-R-157-2019 Approving the 2020-2024 CIP

		09b-CIP Presentation






On Site Improvements 2016 request/cost 2019 request/cost difference
(TIF Funded ‐ Developer Financed)
Jackson Street Extension $349,500 $377,460 27,960
Oak Opening Drive 2,325,000 947,533 ‐1,377,467
Bio‐Retention Facility Expansion 110,000 118,800 8,800
Infiltration Basin Expansion 180,000 194,400 14,400
Grading of Pond/Parks/ROW 609,840 609,840 0
Construction Contingency 536,151 0 ‐536,151
Non‐Construction Costs (Developer Only) 822,098 639,565 ‐182,533
Stoughton Utilities 102,762 0 ‐102,762
City of Stoughton 205,525 112,402 ‐93,123
Other Utility Related Costs 100,000 0 ‐100,000
Origination Costs  99,898 0 ‐99,898
Total On‐Site (TIF Funded‐Developer Financed)  5,440,774 $3,000,000 ‐2,440,774


Off Site Improvements 2016 request/cost 2019 request/cost difference
(TIF Funded ‐ City Financed)
Oak Opening Drive/Deer Point Drive 562,500 607,500 45,000
Roby/Deer Point ‐ USH 51 Intersection 1,731,712 TBD ‐1,731,712
State Hwy 138/Oak Opening Drive Option 1 ‐ Type B Intersection 1,914,344 1,527,492 ‐386,852
Force Main (Jackson St.) 533,750 576,450 42,700
Watermain Extension ‐ STH 138 249,748 269,728 19,980
Stoughton Utilties 249,603 269,571 19,968
City of Stoughton 249,603 269,571 19,968
Other Utility Related Costs 249,603 269,571 19,968
Total Off‐Site (TIF Funded‐City Financed) 5,740,862 3,789,883 ‐1,950,979
Total On Site and Off Site (TIF Funded) $11,181,636 6,789,882 ‐4,391,754







Kettle Park West Phase 2 Questions







TIF request Follow up Questions
I request the following to be presented at next council meeting. 


A chart that contains the original FDG TIF request for Phase 
2 (current phase) that was presented to City Council in the 
Fall of 2016 (or thereabouts). This chart should list all the 
items that they wanted on the Y-axis along with the estimated 
cost for each item and total request 


a. Then in the column next to the first TIF request column, list all 
the proposed “city obligation” and “city’s discretion” expenses and 
their estimated costs and totals. (this should line-up next to the 
original TIF request items)


b. Then the 3rd column should be KPW/FDG current TIF request 
along with costs and totals (again this should line-up next to the 
original TIF request items)







TIF request consideration meetings


July 9, 2019 Finance Committee packet


September 10, 2019 Finance Committee packet


September 17, 2019 Finance Committee Special Meeting packet 
(KPW Phase II TIF Request Application) 


September 24, 2019 City Council packet, Exhibit 6-1 


Hard copy binder the Finance Committee received. 







Exhibit 6-1







TIF Request Comparison 2016-2019
On Site Improvements 2016 request/cost 2019 request/cost difference
(TIF Funded - Developer Financed)
Jackson Street Extension $349,500 $377,460 27,960
Oak Opening Drive 2,325,000 947,533 -1,377,467
Bio-Retention Facility Expansion 110,000 118,800 8,800
Infiltration Basin Expansion 180,000 194,400 14,400
Grading of Pond/Parks/ROW 609,840 609,840 0
Construction Contingency 536,151 0 -536,151
Non-Construction Costs (Developer Only) 822,098 639,565 -182,533
Stoughton Utilities 102,762 0 -102,762
City of Stoughton 205,525 112,402 -93,123
Other Utility Related Costs 100,000 0 -100,000
Origination Costs  99,898 0 -99,898
Total On-Site (TIF Funded-Developer Financed)  5,440,774 $3,000,000 -2,440,774


Off Site Improvements 2016 request/cost 2019 request/cost difference
(TIF Funded - City Financed)
Oak Opening Drive/Deer Point Drive 562,500 607,500 45,000
Roby/Deer Point - USH 51 Intersection 1,731,712 TBD -1,731,712
State Hwy 138/Oak Opening Drive Option 1 - Type B Intersection 1,914,344 1,527,492 -386,852
Force Main (Jackson St.) 533,750 576,450 42,700
Watermain Extension - STH 138 249,748 269,728 19,980
Stoughton Utilties 249,603 269,571 19,968
City of Stoughton 249,603 269,571 19,968
Other Utility Related Costs 249,603 269,571 19,968
Total Off-Site (TIF Funded-City Financed) 5,740,862 3,789,883 -1,950,979
Total On Site and Off Site (TIF Funded) $11,181,636 6,789,882 -4,391,754







TIF Request Comparison 2016-2019







TIF Request Comparison summary 2016-2019
The On-Site Costs TIF request has been reduced from 
$5,440,774 in 2016 to $3,000,000 in 2019


The Off-Site Costs TIF request has been reduced from 
$5,740,862 in 2016 to $3,789,882 in 2019


The combined, total TIF request has been reduce from
$11,171,636 in 2016 to $6,789,882 in 2019


Off-site projects at Oak Opening/Deer Point for $500,000 
Hwy 138 & Oak Opening Dr. $1.5 million 


May be considered discretionary







I would also like for it to be explained in writing the decision-
making process of how the original FDG TIF request for over $7 
million dollars morphed into the “City’s Obligations and Discretion" 
for $3.8 million and the developers new TIF request of $3 million.


The $7 million number is actually $11,181,636. 


The onsite and offsite costs have always been separated. 


The offsite costs have always been shown as the city’s 
responsibility using TIF dollars







I would like for it to be explained how the City came up 
with these new terms. 


We believe to simplify the responsibilities it was prudent to 
separate the “City Obligation” and the “City Discretion to 
include items that need to be done in order to proceed with to 
the next phase. 
The “City Discretion” items are not required and can be done 
if/and when the council deems appropriate. 
This is consistent with the action the City Council took on April 
23, 2019. 







Lastly, I would like to know for both the new TIF request of $3 million 
and the new “City Obligation” and “City Discretion” for $3.8 million –
if the council decides NOT to approve both of these requests what 
would be the yearly estimated TIF 7 unreserved fund balance that 
would be available for our general fund. And since we would not be 
using these surplus monies for TIF and City Obligation payment, 
could we use these monies to fund other needed positions within our 
City and/or right-size our employees’ salaries?







If the council decides NOT to approve 
both of these requests


TIF could possibly close in 2025 (Assuming no Hotel)
Scenario 1 increase to Base Levy – Approx. $150,000
Cash out would be minimal


TIF could possibly close in 2025 (Assuming Hotel)
Scenario 2 increase to Base Levy – Approx. $170,000
Cash out would be approximately $800,000


TIF could possibly close in 2027 (Assuming with Phase II)
Scenario 3 increase to Base Levy – Approx. $385,000
Cash out would be minimal







Questions?







 


Kettle Park West LLC ‐‐ KPW Phase 2 
TIF Application 


1 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


APPLICATION FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING (“TIF”) 
 


 


APPLICANT:  Kettle Park West, LLC   


ADDRESS:  161 Horizon Drive  Suite 101A  Verona , WI 53593   


PHONE #:  608‐848‐9050   


FAX#:  608‐848‐9051   


E‐MAIL:  dgs@forwarddevgroup.com   


CONTACT:  Dennis Steinkraus   


PROJECT NAME:  Kettle Park West – Phase 2   
 


SUBMITTAL DATE: August 22, 2016    
 


 


CONTENTS 


Introduction 


Overview 


1. Applicant Background and Experience 


2. Kettle Park West LLC’s Consultant Team 


3. Project Description 


4. Legal Description and Map of TID #7 


5. Project Area Ownership 


6. Project Area Zoning Map 


7. Nature of Any Anticipated Relocation of Economic Activity 


8. Description and Justification for Tax Increment Financing 


9. Sources, Amounts and Status of Proposed Debt and Equity Financing 


10. Proposed TIF Expenditures and Payback 


11. Market Feasibility of Proposed Project Elements 


12. Projected Real Estate Property Valuation and Tax Increment Generated 


13. Projected Personal Property Valuation and Tax Increment Generated 


14. Prospective Lease and Purchase Commitments Known To Date 


15. Development Operations and Management (Upon Build‐Out and Completion) 


16. Anticipated Public Benefit of Project 


17. Documentation of Applicant’s Financial Resources and Private Funding Commitments 


18. Proposed Project Schedule 
 


Exhibits 


1. Table 1. Detailed TID #7 Land Use – Phase 1 and 2 
2. Map 1.  Kettle Park West Master Plan Dated 12 July 2016 
3. Map 2. TID #7 Boundary Map 
4. Legal Description of TID #7 Boundary 
5. Listing of Tax Parcel Numbers and Land Owners in TID #7 
6. Map 3. Kettle Park West Zoning Map.  Conditionally approved 06 May 2016. 
7. Table 2. Kettle Park West Phase 2 Public Infrastructure Projects 
8. Map 4. General Location of Kettle Park West Phase 2 Infrastructure Projects 
9. Table 3. Sources/Amounts of Debt/Equity Financing 
10. Table 4. Projected Development Sequence and TID #7 Payback 


 


Appendices 


Appendix 1.  Pre‐Annexation Agreement 


Appendix 2.  FDG Executive Team Member Profiles 


Appendix 3.  Project Plan for TIF District No. 7 


Appendix 4.  Summary of Market Studies 







 


Kettle Park West LLC ‐‐ KPW Phase 2 
TIF Application 


2 


INTRODUCTION 


In accordance with the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) policies adopted by the City of Stoughton Common 


Council, Kettle Park West LLC (KPW LLC) is pleased to present its written proposal to the City of Stoughton 


for tax increment financing of the public infrastructure required for the second phase of Kettle Park West 


(KPW).  At full build‐out, Kettle Park West is projected to add more than $94,000,000 of tax base to the City 


of Stoughton. 


 


As discussed more fully below, the public infrastructure necessary to ready KPW Phase 2 for development 


is grouped into two categories: (i) On‐Site Infrastructure Projects (e.g. water, sanitary sewer, stormsewer, 


streets, etc.) and  (ii) Off‐Site  Infrastructure Projects  (e.g. highway upgrades,  forcemain, etc.).   The  total 


estimated cost of all On‐Site Infrastructure Projects is $5,447,694.  The total estimated cost of all Off‐Site 


Infrastructure Projects  is $5,740,862.   Together,  these  two categories  total $11,188,556.   These project 


costs will be repaid with a portion of the $34,579,371 of incremental tax revenue that is projected to be 


generated by Kettle Park West over the 20‐year lifespan of TID #7. 


 


The balance of  the  incremental  tax  revenues generated by Kettle Park West  is available  to  the City  to 


(i) retire the borrowing undertaken by the City for the Kettle Park West Commercial Center, (ii) fund city 


administrative costs, (iii) cover the cost of other eligible projects the City may wish to undertake and/or 


(iv) retire TID #7 early. 


 


OVERVIEW 


Forward Development Group,  LLC,  the developer of Kettle Park West, began working with  the City of 


Stoughton in 2009.  During the planning phase that took place between 2009 and 2013, there was extensive 


discussion about the new public infrastructure that would be necessary in order to make this area of the 


City ready for development.  Those discussions ultimately lead to the City Council’s approval, in April 2013, 


of a Pre‐Annexation Agreement with KPW LLC.  The Pre‐Annexation Agreement specifically acknowledged 


that “development of the Subject Property may be facilitated by the use of tax increment financing.” (See 


Appendix 1. Pre‐Annexation Agreement, dated April 19, 2013.) The detailed cost estimates attached to the 


2013 Pre‐Annexation Agreement totaled more than $12.6M, including stormwater management facilities, 


water and sanitary sewer utilities, grading, streets, highway work, engineering fees and a range of other 


costs.   Without  the  availability of  TIF  to  finance  these  public  improvements,  KPW  LLC  could  not have 


undertaken this development. 


 


The 2013 Pre‐Annexation Agreement contemplated  that Kettle Park West would be developed  in  three 


phases.  This phased approach to development was endorsed by the Common Council when it approved 


the 51 x 138 Detailed Neighborhood Plan in the spring of 2012. In‐depth preparations for the first phase of 


KPW—a 35‐acre portion of the site known as the “Kettle Park West Commercial Center”—began in 2013 


following the City Council’s approval of the Pre‐Annexation Agreement.   


 


In  the  fall of 2014,  the City Council approved Tax  Increment District #7  (TID #7), a 140‐acre TIF district 


encompassing the entire KPW planning area.  At the same time, the City Council also approved a TIF project 


plan that contemplated approximately $5M in TIF support for the Kettle Park West Commercial Center, to 


be anchored by a Walmart Supercenter.  Responding to criticism from an active group of constituents, the 


City Council chose to place several advisory referendum questions on the ballot in the spring of 2015, asking 


voters whether they agreed with the Council’s approval of TIF for the KPW Commercial Center.  Only 40% 


of the residents who voted in that election said they agreed with the Council’s decision to borrow money 


for that purpose, though voters were split more evenly on a question that removed city borrowing from 


the equation.  Notwithstanding the referendum results, the City Council subsequently voted to continue 


with the KPW project. 







 


Kettle Park West LLC ‐‐ KPW Phase 2 
TIF Application 


3 


 


Construction  of  the  Kettle  Park West  Commercial  Center  began  in  the  fall  of  2015  and  is  proceeding 


according to schedule.  The community is already benefiting from the traffic upgrades that are being made 


to the US Highway 51 corridor and, in its first year, the Kettle Park West Commercial Center has already 


generated $10.8M of new tax base for the City, which is right on target with the projections the City made 


when the TIF was initially approved.  Plans are also now moving ahead for a hotel and senior housing project 


within the previously‐approved Kettle Park West Commercial Center (Lot 8 of KPWCC, recently replatted as 


Lots 15 and 16).  None of this would have been possible without the City’s use of TIF. 


 


With construction of Kettle Park West Commercial Center well underway, and with TID #7 performing as 


anticipated, KPW LLC has begun planning for the second phase of development.  This next phase includes: 


development of single‐family residential lots; development of parcels for market rate multi‐family buildings; 


development  of  a  parcel  designated  for  office  use;  grading,  restoration  and  improvement  of  a  large 


neighborhood park; expansion of the stormwater management system and preservation of existing natural 


habitat areas. 


 


In order to prepare the second phase of KPW for development, the City has required the construction of 


additional public infrastructure, including: highway/intersection upgrades at Hwy 51 and Roby Road and at 


Hwy 138 and Oak Opening Drive, installation of a collector street (Oak Opening Drive) through the site, new 


stormwater facilities, water main extension and park  improvements.  The current cost estimates for this 


second phase of public infrastructure (both On‐Site and Off‐Site) total $11,188,556.  Without the availability 


of TIF to cover these infrastructure costs, KPW LLC will be unable to develop the second phase. 


 


Kettle Park West LLC is asking for the City’s continued support of the plan to develop the Kettle Park West 


neighborhood. 


 


1. APPLICANT BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE 


Forward Development Group, LLC (FDG) was established as a development company focused on combining 


the  vision  of  responsible  development with  the  science  of  today’s  best  development  practices.   With 


expertise  in the development and construction  industry that spans over 25 years, we pride ourselves on 


our professionalism, experience and expertise to create, own and manage properties.  With our capability 


to customize the ownership and management aspects of our projects, we have created a platform for long‐


lasting and effective relationships with clients, tenants and investment partners. 


 


FDG focuses on seeking out and developing the best properties available in response to the rapidly changing 


needs of mixed‐use development clientele.  Our project portfolio encompasses a broad range of projects 


ranging  from  commercial  and  retail  spaces,  hotels  and  residential  projects  including  senior  housing, 


condominiums, multi‐family development and single‐family home sites. 


 


Bios of the FDG executive team members are attached as Appendix 2.   Collectively, the executive team 


support our investors and clients with decades of experience and diverse expertise in survey and mapping, 


architecture, engineering, land development, strategic planning, risk management, real estate ownership 


portfolios,  construction  management,  operational  planning,  capital  formation  and  syndication.    Our 


affiliation with  JSD Professional Services,  Inc. provides our clients access  to qualified professionals with 


technical knowledge and experience in civil engineering, structural engineering, transportation engineering, 


stormwater  management,  water  resources  management,  planning,  landscape  design,  surveying  and 


construction management. 


 







 


Kettle Park West LLC ‐‐ KPW Phase 2 
TIF Application 


4 


In  2011,  FDG  formed  an  affiliated  company,  Kettle  Park  West,  LLC,  specifically  for  the  purpose  of 


undertaking the development of Kettle Park West. 


 


2. KETTLE PARK WEST LLC’s CONSULTANT TEAM 


Kettle Park West LLC will continue to employ the assistance of JSD Professional Services to provide civil 


engineering,  surveying,  general  planning  and  landscape  architecture  services  for  the  planning  and 


implementation of Kettle Park West Phase 2.  As necessary, additional specialized consulting services will 


be retained to support design and analysis of specific technical elements of the project.  Legal services will 


be provided by the law firm Michael Best and Friedrich, LLP. 


 


3. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


The first phase of Kettle Park West—the Kettle Park West Commercial Center—is now under construction.  


This phase has created over 28 net acres of new commercial development sites, with more than 240,000 


SF of new building construction anticipated during the next 18 months. This successful project activity has 


set the stage for Phase 2 of the KPW neighborhood development. 


 


Phase 2 establishes the primary traffic circulation network northwest of US Highway 51 and State Highway 


138 as  shown  in  the adopted Westside Neighborhood Plan  (Jackson Street extended and Oak Opening 


Drive) and will open up 81 acres for development including: single family and moderate density residential 


parcels, a  small  site  for potential office development and over 38 acres of open  space  including public 


parkland, stormwater management facilities and a natural area conservancy. 


 


The details of the land uses proposed in the Phase 2 area are presented Exhibits 1 and 2. (Note: information 


summarized in Table 1 also relate to the current status of Phase 1 development activities.) 


 


Overall, the development characteristics within TID #7 are 23% Commercial, 1% Office, 26% Residential, 


28% public open space and 22% for ROW which is compliance with statutory requirements for a mixed‐use 


TID. 


 


4. LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND MAP OF TID #7 


The boundary of TID #7 remains unchanged  from  the original configuration approved on October 16th, 


2014. 


 


This TIF application references  the second phase of development within  the geographic area of TID #7.  


Proposed TIF‐eligible projects relate to required infrastructure improvements to support the development 


of lands encompassed by the certified survey maps for the Kettle Park Commercial Center and the Kettle 


Park West Preliminary Plat (conditionally approved on May 10th, 2016).  These projects are located either 


within  the boundaries of  these CSMs/plats or are within one‐half mile of  the boundary of TID #7.   The 


Boundary Map of TID #7 and Legal Description of the District Boundary are shown in Exhibits 3 and 4. See 


also the Project Plan for TIF District No. 7 as Appendix 3. 


 


5. PROJECT AREA OWNERSHIP 


As designated by the Dane County Land Information Office, Dane County Tax Assessment Office and the 


City Assessor’s Office, the 2016 Tax Parcel #’s and Land Owners for  lands within the district are  listed  in 


Exhibit  5.  The  total  project  area  for  Kettle  Park West  and  the  Kettle  Park West  Commercial  Center 


encompasses 109 acres; net of dedicated public rights‐of‐way.   Kettle Park West LLC holds  fee  interest, 


subject to mortgages, in approximately 48 acres and has options to purchase an additional 61 acres from 


the Leslie Mabie Estate. 


 







 


Kettle Park West LLC ‐‐ KPW Phase 2 
TIF Application 


5 


 


6. PROJECT AREA ZONING MAP 


The  zoning  for  the proposed Kettle Park West Plat  is depicted on Map 3  (Exhibit 6).    This  zoning was 


proposed  to  the City and conditionally approved by  the Common Council on May 10, 2016.   The City’s 


approval conditions relate to phasing considerations involving property development and traffic forecasts 


for  the US Highway 51 and State Highway 138  intersections, coordination of Wisconsin Department of 


Transportation Access Permits and establishing the framework for  long‐range transportation planning to 


support continued community development on the City’s west and southwest peripheral areas. 


 


Per the City’s conditional approval of the preliminary plat for Phase 2, all development (except for Lot 15 


and Lot 16) within the Kettle Park West Plat is prohibited until, among other things: 


 a plan or agreement, acceptable to the City, is in place for the completion of street improvements 


within the Town of Rutland, including bike/pedestrian accommodations and traffic signals at the 


Roby Road/Deer Point Drive and USH 51 intersection; and 


 the connection of Oak Opening Drive to Highway 138 has been resolved to the City’s satisfaction. 


 


Conceptual engineering designs have been discussed with the Town of Rutland and the City of Stoughton 


and have been submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Transportation.  The Department is evaluating 


long‐ and short‐term improvements to the intersection of USH 51 and Roby Road/Deer Point Drive.  The 


Department is also reviewing access requirements for Oak Opening Drive/STH 138 concept plans.  The Town 


of Rutland has approved the conceptual plans for Oak Opening Drive and Deer Point Drive. 


 


7. NATURE OF ANY ANTICIPATED RELOCATION OF ECONOMIC ACTIVITY 


Kettle  Park  West  Commercial  Center  and  Kettle  Park  West  provide  opportunities  for  new  business 


recruitment  into the community and for the expansion of existing business enterprises – either through 


relocation or expansion.   The relocation of Walmart from  its current 40,000 SF building to a 152,000 SF 


building is a notable example of business expansion supported by the creation of new commercial sites at 


the KPW Commercial Center (Phase 1).  Phase 2, which is the subject of this application, consists primarily 


of  residential uses, park and open  space,  includes one  site  for potential office development, providing 


opportunity for new business recruitment or a growth opportunity for existing office tenants in Stoughton. 


 


8. DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 


The KPW Phase 2 development will require substantial public  infrastructure  including: the extension of 


planned collector streets, highway intersection safety and capacity upgrades, new water distribution and 


wastewater  collector  mains  and  regional  stormwater  management  facility  improvements.    These 


infrastructure projects are described below and are outlined in Exhibits 7 and 8. 


 


On‐Site Infrastructure Projects are those projects and project elements located within the boundary 


of  KPW  and  are  directly  related  to providing  the  necessary  infrastructure  (water,  sanitary  sewer, 


stormsewer,  streets  and  parkland)  to  support  the  approved  residential  neighborhood  and  the 


completion of the overall KPW stormwater management system [note: Items A and B were completed 


as part of Phase 1).  TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: $5,447,694 [items C through G] 


 


A. Installation of  initial  components of  the  regional  stormwater management  treatment and 


infiltration basins. 


B. Construction of the Jackson Street and US Highway 51 intersection and the construction of the 


interim State Highway 138 and US Highway 51 intersection improvement. 







 


Kettle Park West LLC ‐‐ KPW Phase 2 
TIF Application 


6 


C. Completion of the Jackson Street Extension from Phase 1 (at the western edge of Lot 16) to 


Oak Opening Drive. 


D. Construction of Oak Opening Drive  from  the northern plat boundary  south  towards State 


Highway 138. 


E. Expansion of the Stormwater Treatment and Rate Control Management Facility located along 


Jackson Street. 


F. Expansion of the Stormwater Infiltration Facility in the northeast corner of the plat. 


G. Grading and Initial Site Restoration for the Neighborhood Park Site  


 


Off‐site Infrastructure Projects are those projects and project elements located outside of the KPW 


Plat Boundary, but within one‐half mile of  the TID #7 boundary,  that  the City has determined are 


necessary to resolve existing deficiencies at the Roby Road and US Highway 51  intersection and to 


address projected long‐range impacts generated by the completed build‐out of the Kettle Park West 


plat.  These projects are conditions of approval of the preliminary plat for the Phase 2 area of Kettle 


Park West. TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: $5,740,862 


 


H. Improving  Oak  Opening  Drive/Deer  Point  Drive  in  the  Town  of  Rutland  from  the  KPW 


boundary to the Roby Road – US Highway 51 intersection 


I. Reconstruct and Signalize the Roby Road ‐ US Highway 51 Intersection 


J. Connect Oak Opening Drive and Construct a “T” Intersection (Type B‐2) with State Highway 


138 


K. Completion of the Jackson Street Storm Sewer Forcemain 


 


KPW LLC is proposing two differing financing mechanisms for these two classifications of project costs: 


 


 On‐Site Infrastructure [Projects C thru G].  Although KPW LLC remains open to other options, this 


application proposes that any projects in this category would be financed through a “developer‐


funded”  or  “Pay‐as‐you‐go”  TIF,  subject  to  terms  and  conditions  of  a written  TIF  agreement 


between KPW LLC and the City.   Under a “Pay‐as‐you‐go” TIF, the developer  is responsible  for 


securing  bank  financing  for  the up‐front  cost  of  the  improvements,  subject  to  an  agreement 


between the developer and the City that would provide for reimbursement of eligible expenses 


on an annual basis from the tax increment actually generated by new development within the TID.  


If  the  actual  tax  revenues  collected  by  the  City  fall  below  the  developer’s  projections,  the 


developer  is  responsible  for  the  shortfall.   This option minimizes  risk  to  the City  for expenses 


associated with the development on private property. 


 


 Off‐Site Infrastructure [Projects H thru K].  This category of project costs, while required by the 


city  to  be  constructed  in  conjunction  with  KPW  development,  consists  largely  of  highway 


improvements that benefit other adjoining lands (making those lands ready for development) and 


the  traveling public  at  large.    For  this  reason,  KPW  LLC proposes  that  these project  costs be 


financed through a traditional TIF  financing arrangement where the City  issues bonds that will 


provide for the up‐front funds necessary to complete these infrastructure projects, with the bonds 


to be repaid from the tax increment actually generated by new development. 


 


9.  SOURCES, AMOUNTS AND STATUS OF PROPOSED DEBT AND EQUITY FINANCING.  The projected sources, 


amounts of debt, and equity financing is outlined and attached as Exhibit 9. 


 


10.  PROPOSED TIF EXPENDITURES AND PAYBACK.  
The projected development sequence TID #7 payback schedule is outlined in Table 4 attached as Exhibit 10. 







 


Kettle Park West LLC ‐‐ KPW Phase 2 
TIF Application 


7 


11. MARKET FEASIBILITY OF PROPOSED PROJECT ELEMENTS.  KPW LLC has completed several market studies 


covering the specific uses proposed as part of Kettle Park West Phase 2.  Summaries of these reports, which 


were provided to the City Council during deliberation on the preliminary plat, are attached as Appendix 4. 


 


12. PROJECTED REAL ESTATE PROPERTY VALUATION AND TAX INCREMENT GENERATED. Full build out of the 


Kettle Park West Development  is projected  to be  completed by  the end of 2022.   The  total  increment 


created for the Kettle Park West development (including: Phase 1 – the approved KPW Commercial Center 


and  the proposed Phase 2 – Kettle Park West Plat),  is projected  to exceed $94,000,000.   Based on  the 


applied mil  rate of $23.06 approved  in  the current TIF Project Plan,  this  increment will produce annual 


revenues in excess of $2,000,000. 


 


See Tables 3 and 4 (Exhibits 9 and 10) relating to projections of the annual and cumulative total real estate 


valuation of TID #7 based on current and projected property sales activity and typical building values. 


 


13. PROJECTED PERSONAL PROPERTY VALUATION AND TAX INCREMENT GENERATED. Kettle Park West LLC is 


selling real estate for development sites and does not have any knowledge or  information pertaining to 


market value (or taxable value) of any fixtures, equipment or inventory used or installed by any owners or 


tenants of the buildings constructed within the development, which may be taxed as personal property. 


 


14. PROSPECTIVE LEASE AND PURCHASE COMMITMENTS KNOWN TO DATE 


KPW Phase 2 consists of 81 acres intended for single family and moderate density residential development, 


a  small  site  for  potential  office  development,  and  open  space,  including  38  acres  of  public  parkland, 


stormwater management facilities and a natural area conservancy.  KPW LLC has seen strong interest for 


local area builders and from individuals who are interested in living at Kettle Park West.  This high level of 


interest is supported by the professional market studies KPW LLC has commissioned; summaries of which 


are attached as Appendix 4. 


 


15. DEVELOPMENT OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT (UPON BUILD‐OUT AND COMPLETION).  KPW LLC will 


be responsible for  installation of the public  infrastructure necessary to ready the  land for development.  


Ultimately,  a  variety  of  individuals  and  entities will  own  and will  be  responsible  for  operation  of  the 


buildings to be constructed within Phase 2 of Kettle Park West.  For example, KPW LLC intends to sell the 


single‐family home sites to individuals or local builders.  Those home sites will ultimately be maintained by 


the families who choose to purchase those homes.  The lots slated for multifamily residential development 


will be  sold  to  local  apartment developers, who will be  responsible  for maintaining  those buildings  in 


accordance with plans approved by the City. 


 


16. ANTICIPATED PUBLIC BENEFIT OF PROJECT. Kettle Park West  is a  successful public‐private  initiative  to 


implement elements of the City’s adopted Comprehensive Plan.  In addition to providing a cost effective 


funding mechanism for constructing critically needed public infrastructure with zero cost to City taxpayers, 


the TID, when completely built out, is projected to add over $94,000,000 to the City and School District tax 


base, resulting in annual tax revenues in excess of $2,000,000. 


 


As evidenced by over $36,100,000 of private construction projects currently underway  in Phase 1 of the 


Kettle Park Commercial Center that have been leveraged by the City’s creation of TID #7 including: 


 $11,650,000 in Site acquisition and improvements by KPW LLC not funded by TIF 


 $12,000,000 building construction for the new WalmartSuperCenter 


 $1,900,000 building construction for a new KwikTrip Convenience Store 


 $1,750,000 building construction for a new bank and professional building 


 $7,300,000 building construction for a new hotel and conference center 







 


Kettle Park West LLC ‐‐ KPW Phase 2 
TIF Application 


8 


 $1,500,000 building construction for new multi‐tenant commercial buildings.  


 


It  is  clear  that  the  City’s  commitment  to  implementing  strategies  to  encourage  and  secure  private 


investment will continue  to be an extremely effective component of City development policy.   Phase 1 


accomplishments to date include: 


 Mitigation  of  transportation  system  deficiencies  (intersection  design  and  signalization  of  the 


Jackson  Street  intersection with US Highway  51  and  State Highway  138  intersection with US 


Highway 51) 


 Implementation of effective stormwater management improvements in the closed drainage basin 


in the Westside Neighborhood planning area 


 Preliminary  site development grading  to effectuate  site development  for  the  future Stoughton 


Utilities  Substation which will  serve  and  support  future  development  in  the  City’s west  side 


planning area 


 


These projects are not only having an immediate positive impact on public safety but have put into place 


several  critically  needed  foundational  components  of  the  City’s  infrastructure  that will  be  needed  to 


instigate and sustain addition private investment in the City’s planned Westside neighborhoods. 


 


These strategies have proven effective in re‐invigorating investor confidence in the community (after many 


years of  inaction and  inactivity) which,  in turn, has also begun to re‐establish an effective dialogue with 


WisDOT and other agencies to address regulatory and state project funding priorities affecting the City.  City 


authorization of the proposed projects in the next and subsequent phases of TID #7 will: 


 Expand and diversify housing opportunities in the community which will attract new households 


into the City and School District 


 Further improve the circulation and safety of the street network which will enhance the viability 


of business development locations along US Highway 51 and State Highway 138 


 Provide opportunity to develop a vibrant and attractive neighborhood park that will enhance the 


character and “Quality of Life” in the westside neighborhood and the City as a whole 


 


17.  DOCUMENTATION OF APPLICANT’S FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND PRIVATE FUNDING COMMITMENTS.  As 


a  condition  of  approval,  KPW  LLC  agrees  to  provide  the  City with  a  letter  from  a  financial  institution 


indicating that KPW LLC has sufficient financial resources to obtain the private financing for the project.  


This approach will ensure that the  letter provided by KPW LLC matches the specific borrowing structure 


approved by the City. 


 


18. PROPOSED PROJECT SCHEDULE: 
The preliminary/provisional schedule for the second phase of activity under TID #7 is as follows (subject to 


continued City collaboration and support, and favorable market conditions): 


 


Preliminary Construction Date: Spring 2017 


Preliminary Construction Completion Date: Fall 2017 


Phasing Anticipated: Two Phases (2017 and 2018) 


Date Occupied: Spring 2018 







EXHIBIT 1


Provisional Data


TID#7


Area


Acres Units * Acres Units*/GFA** Acres Units*/GFA** Acres Units*/GFA** Acres Units*/GFA** Acres Units*/GFA** %


Residential 28 428 0.00 0 4.00 96 0.00 0 32.04 327 36.04 423 26%


Low Density 9 50 11.83 43 11.83 43


Up to 5 DUA


Moderate Density 10 100 9.78 44 9.78 44


Up to 10 DUA


High Density 9 216 10.43 240 10.43 240


Up to 24 DUA


Senior Housing TBD 36 4.00 96 4.00 96


To be Determined


Mixed Use -- 26 0.00 0
Upper story(ies) in Mixed Use Neighborhood 


Commercial


Commercial 25 22.75 187,470          10.23 107,450          0 -                   0 -                   32.98 294,920          23%


Neighborhood Scale (Mixed Use) 4 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0


Community Scale 21 22.75 187,470          10.23 107,450          0 -                   0 -                   32.98 294,920          


Large Format Retail 15.04 153,980           15.04 153,980           


Medium Format Retail 5.54 38,360             5.54 38,360             


Multi-tenant Specialty Retail 3.81 9,990               14,480             3.81 24,470             


Multi-tenant Professional Services 1.66 15,000             1.66 15,000             


Convenience Retail 2.24 8,500               2.24 8,500               


Dining and Entertainment 0 -                   


Lodging and Conference Center 4.69 54,610             4.69 54,610             


Employment Focused 22 0 -                   0 -                   0.00 -                   2.00 20,820             2.00 20,820             1%


Office 0 0 0 0 2.00 20820 2.00 20,820             


Manufacturing 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 -                   


Civic 0 0.00 -                   0%


Open Space 39 0 0 0 0 27.09 0 11.61 0 38.70 -                   28%


Parkland 9 16.40 16.40


Stormwater Mgt 20 10.69 10.69


Conservancies 10 11.61 11.61


Subtotal Improved Property 114 22.75 187,470           14.23 107,546           27.09 -                   45.65 20,820             109.72 315,740           


Residential Units 428          -                   96                    -                   327                  423                  


Local Street ROW 17 1.82 0 0 0 10.00 0 0.83 0 12.65 -                   9%


Neighborhood Streets 8 4.35 4.35


Collector Streets 9 1.82 5.65 0.83 8.30


Jackson Street, Oak Opening Drive 0.00


Subtotal including Local Streets 131 24.57 187,470          14.23 107,450          37.09 -                   46.48 20,820             122.37 315,740          


Arterial Highways 21 18.00 18.00 13%


USH 51, STH 138


TOTAL 152 42.57 187,470          14.23 107,450          37.09 -                   46.48 20,820             140.37 315,740          100%


Residential Units 428          -                   96                    -                   327                  423                  


* Unit counts based on zoning densities


** Gross Floor Area (GFA) of buildings based on Master Plan projections and building plans


TotalKettle Park West


Implementation: Implementation:


Kettle Park West


Detailed TID #7 Land Use - Phase 1 and 2


Tax Increment District Number 7


Phase 1 Phase 1A Phase 2 Phase 2A


Westside 


Neighborhood Plan
KPW Commercial Center


Land Use


2015-17 Anticipated 2016-18 Anticipated 2017-19 Anticipated 2018-222012











EXHIBIT 3







Forward Development Group 
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 
Verona, WI 53593 


J:\2009\093951\Legals\Annexation Description.doc 


EXHIBIT A 
ANNEXATION DESCRIPTION 


Part of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 3430 as recorded in Volume 13, pages 268-270, as 
Document No. 1658279, all of Lots 1, 2, and 3, Certified Survey Map No. 3435 as recorded in 
Volume 13, pages 279-281, as Document No. 1658680, all of Lot 1, Certified Survey Map No. 
9632 as recorded in Volume 55, pages 194-197, as Document No. 3199102, and all of the 
Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, and part of the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast 
Quarter, part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter and part of the Southwest Quarter 
of the Southeast Quarter, all in Section 1, Township 5 North, Range 10 East, Town of Rutland, 
and part of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 6, Township 5 North, 
Range 11 East, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin, Described as follows: 


Beginning at a point on the South line the Southwest Quarter of Section 6, aforesaid, being North 
87 degrees 24 minutes 18 seconds East of the Southwest Corner of said Southwest Quarter a 
distance of 667.62 feet, said point also being on the Corporate boundary of the City of 
Stoughton; thence South 87 degrees 24 minutes 18 seconds West along the South line of said 
Southwest Quarter, 662.61 feet to a point that is 5.00 feet East of the West line of the Southwest 
Quarter of Section 6, aforesaid; thence North 00 degrees 17 minutes 13 seconds West parallel 
with the West line of the Southwest Quarter of Section 6, aforesaid, 184.63 feet; thence North 87 
degrees 07 minutes 28 seconds West parallel with the North right-of-way line of State Trunk 
Highway ‘138’ a distance of 298.58 feet; thence South 00 degrees 16 minutes 13 seconds East, 
5.01 feet to the North right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway ‘138’; thence North 87 degrees 
07 minutes 28 seconds West along said right-of-way line, 21.50 feet; thence South 00 degrees 12 
minutes 45 seconds East along said right-of-way line, 8.67 feet; thence North 89 degrees 53 
minutes 46 seconds West along said right-of-way line, 178.13 feet; thence South 00 degrees 00 
minutes 00 seconds East, 162.51 feet to the South line of the Southeast Quarter of Section 1, 
aforesaid; thence North 87 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West along said section line, 1941.76 
feet to the Southerly extension of the East line of Certified Survey Map No. 7803, as recorded in 
Volume 41, pages 76-77 as Document No. 2670794; thence North 00 degrees 05 minutes 30 
seconds West along the East line of said Lot 1 a distance 604.54 feet to the Northeast corner of 
said Lot 1; thence North 87 degrees 50 minutes 42 seconds West along the North line of said Lot 
1, a distance of 203.18 feet to the West line of said Southeast Quarter; thence North 00 degrees 
04 minutes 33 seconds West along said West line, 2039.87 feet to the Northwest corner of said 
Southeast Quarter; thence South 86 degrees 41 minutes 54 seconds East along the North line of 
said Southeast Quarter, 1986.12 feet to the West line of Lot 1, Certified Survey Map No. 8144 as 
recorded in Volume 43, pages 285-290, as Document No. 2745975; thence South 00 degrees 09 
minutes 16 seconds West, 146.55 feet; thence South 00 degrees 05 minutes 13 seconds East, 
279.26 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 8144; thence South 00 
degrees 06 minutes 55 seconds East along the West line of Certified Survey Map No. 9632 as  


                                                                             EXHIBIT 4
    LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF TID #7 BOUNDARY







 
 
Forward Development Group 
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 
Verona, WI 53593 


J:\2009\093951\Legals\Annexation Description.doc 


 
 
recorded in Volume 55, pages 194-197 as Document No. 3199102 a distance of 888.03 feet; 
thence South 87 degrees 57 minutes 29 seconds East, 1.15 feet; thence South 00 degrees 20 
minutes 15 seconds West, 198.79 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 2 of said Certified Survey 
Map No. 9632; thence North 89 degrees 42 minutes 22 seconds East along the South line of said 
Lot 2 a distance of 519.85 feet to the Westerly right-of-way line of U.S.H. '51'; thence North 01  
degrees 42 minutes 26 seconds East along said Westerly right-of-way line, 171.19 feet; thence 
South 88 degrees 07 minutes 03 seconds East, 123.54 feet to the East line of the Southeast 
Quarter of said Section 1 and the Westerly corporate boundary of the City of Stoughton; thence 
South 00 degrees 17 minutes 13 seconds East along the East line of said Southeast Quarter and 
said Westerly corporate boundary, 42.54 feet; thence North 88 degrees 23 minutes 40 seconds 
East, 41.11 feet to the Easterly right-of-way line of U.S.H. '51'; thence South 03 degrees 23 
minutes 52 seconds East along said easterly right-of-way line, 122.33 feet to a point of curve; 
thence Southeasterly 1,089.67 feet along an arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 976.74 
feet, the chord bearing South 30 degrees 13 minutes 16 seconds East, 1,034.04 feet; thence South 
63 degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East, 113.67 feet; thence South 00 degrees 58 minutes 35 
seconds East, 179.65 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Parcel contains 6,107,862 square feet or 140.217 acres. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Exhibit 5 


Listing of Tax Parcel Numbers and Land Owners in TID #7 
Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐9640‐2 


LOT 2 CSM 14057 CS94/150&158‐8/26/2015 F... 


WAL‐MART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS TR   


PO BOX 8050 


BENTONVILLE AR 72712 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐9660‐2 


LOT 3 CSM 14057 CS94/150&158‐8/26/2015 F... 


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC   


161 HORIZON DR STE 101A 


VERONA WI 53593 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐9680‐2 


LOT 4 CSM 14057 CS94/150&158‐8/26/2015 F... 


LOT 4 ‐ KETTLE PARK WEST LLC   


161 HORIZON DR STE 101A 


VERONA WI 53593 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐9860‐2 


LOT 5 CSM 14058 CS94/159&165‐8/26/2015 F... 


FH OF MCFARLAND INC   


PO BOX 7 


MCFARLAND WI 53558 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐9880‐2 


LOT 6 CSM 14058 CS94/159&165‐8/26/2015 F... 


KWIK TRIP INC   


1626 OAK ST 


LA CROSSE WI 54603 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐9900‐2 


LOT 7 CSM 14058 CS94/159&165‐8/26/2015 F... 


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC   


161 HORIZON DR STE 101A 


VERONA WI 53593 


 


 


 







Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐9700‐2 


OUTLOT 1 CSM 14057 CS94/150&158‐8/26/201... 


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC   


161 HORIZON DR STE 101A 


VERONA WI 53593 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐8150‐2 


LOT 8 CSM 14059 CS94/166&169‐8/26/2015 F... 


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC   


161 HORIZON DR STE 101A 


VERONA WI 53593 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐8170‐2 


OUTLOT 2 CSM 14059 CS94/166&169‐8/26/201... 


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC   


161 HORIZON DR STE 101A 


VERONA WI 53593 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐8190‐2 


OUTLOT 3 CSM 14059 CS94/166&169‐8/26/201... 


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC   


161 HORIZON DR STE 101A 


VERONA WI 53593 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐8062‐2 


SEC 1‐5‐10 PRT NE1/4SE1/4 COM INTERS WLY... 


MABIE REV TR, STANLEY A   


PO BOX 780 


STOUGHTON WI 53589 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐8502‐2 


SEC 1‐5‐10 NW1/4SE1/4 EXC PRD #5179685 


MABIE REV TR, STANLEY A   


PO BOX 780 


STOUGHTON WI 53589 


 


Parcel Number ‐ 281/0510‐014‐9045‐2 


SEC 1‐5‐10 SW1/4SE1/4 EXC HWY R/W & EXC ... 


MABIE REV TR, STANLEY A   


PO BOX 780 


STOUGHTON WI 53589 











Kettle Park West Exhibit 7
Phase 2 Public Infrastructure Costs


Calendar Years 2017 thru 2020


Projected Year


Project Plan Cost Financed Amount


On Site Improvements


 (Developer Financed)
Grading in Non‐Public Portion 785,320$                        2017 1,505,111$           


2018 1,505,111            


Residential Streets 1,396,000                      2019


2020


Construction Contingency 327,199                        


3,010,222$           


Other Soft Costs 501,703                         


Total Improvements (Developer Financed) 3,010,222$                    


On Site Improvements


 (TIF Funded ‐ Developer Financed)
C Jackson Street Extension 349,500$                        2017 2,880,057$           


2018 1,657,692            


D Oak Opening Drive 2,325,000                       2019 903,025               


2020


E Bio‐Retention Facility Expansion 110,000                        


5,440,774$           


F Infiltration Basin Expansion 180,000                         


G Grading of Pond/Parks/ROW 609,840                        


Construction Contingency 536,151                        


 Total Construction Costs 4,110,491$                    


Non‐Construction Costs (Developer Only) 822,098                        


Total Developer Controlled Costs 4,932,589$                    


Stoughton Utilities 102,762$                       


City of Stoughton 205,525                         


Other Utility Related Costs 100,000                         


Total City Controlled Costs 408,287$                       


Origination Costs 99,898$                         


Total On‐Site (TIF Funded‐Developer Financed) 5,440,774$                    


Grand Total of Developer Financed Items 8,450,996$                    


Off Site Improvements 


 (TIF Funded ‐ City Financed)


H Oak Opening Drive/Deer Point Drive  562,500$                        2017 ‐$                           


2018 ‐                            


I Roby/Deer Point ‐ USH 51 Intersection 1,731,712                      2019 3,202,366            


2020 2,538,496            


J State Hwy 138/Oak Opening Drive


  Option 1 ‐ Type B Intersection 1,914,344                      5,740,862$           


K Force Main (Jackson St.) 533,750                        


Watermain Extension ‐ STH 138 249,748                        


Stoughton Utilties 249,603                        


City of Stoughton 249,603                        


Other Utility Related Costs 249,603                        


Total Off‐Site (TIF Funded‐City Financed) 5,740,862$                    


Total On Site and Off Site (TIF Funded) 11,181,636$                  


Grand Total of Construction Costs 14,191,858$                   14,191,858$          







Kettle Park West


Phase 2 Public Infrastructure Costs 0 Exhibit 7


Calendar Years 2017 thru 2020


Estimated Projected


Project Plan Quantity Measure Price Cost Comments


On‐Site Costs (Developer Funded):


A & B Relate to KPW ‐ Commercial Center Phase ‐$                                 


C Jackson Street Extension 466 LF 750$                            349,500                        
Includes grading, sanitary, water, storm, 


street construction and landscape 


restoration


D Oak Opening Drive 3100 LF 750$                            2,325,000                     
Includes grading, sanitary, water, storm, 


street construction and landscape 


restoration


E   Bio‐Retention Facility Expansion 1 LS 110,000$                     110,000                        
Expand existing basin ‐ Amount per Phase 


1 Public Bid was $55,000 


F   Infiltration Basin Expansion 1 LS 180,000$                     180,000                        
Expand existing basin ‐ Amount per Phase 


1 Public Bid was $90,000


G
General Grading of Pond/Parks/ROW 1,219,680       SF 0.50$                           609,840                        


Construction Contingency 15% 536,151                        


 Total On Site Construction Costs 4,110,491$                  


Non‐Construction Costs (Developer Only) 20% 822,098                       


  Engineering Fees


  Geo‐Technical


  Inspection


  Etc.


Total Developer Controlled Costs 4,932,589$                 


Stoughton Utilities 2.5% 102,762$                       Cost for the public portion of the project 


to be provided by Stoughton Utilities


City of Stoughton 5.00% 205,525                        


Cost for the public portion of the project 


to be provided by the City of Stoughton.  


These costs to include administration, 


plan review, inspection, testing and all 


other charges that will be assessed to the 


TIF.


Other Utility Related Costs 100,000                         Gas, Telephone, Etc.


Total City Controlled Costs 408,287$                      


Origination Costs 2% 99,898$                        


TOTAL ON‐SITE IMPROVEMENTS 5,440,774$                   Does Not Include Interest Costs


Off‐Site Costs (City Funded):


Oak Opening/Deer Point Extension to Hwy 51 ‐


H   Oak Opening Drive/Deer Pointe 1500 LF 375$                            562,500$                      
Street reconstruct only.  Does not include 


any underground infrastructure or USH 51 


inprovements.


I   Hwy 51 Intersection at Deer Point 1 LS 1,229,860$                 1,229,860                     


Improvement of intersection, per DOT 


standards, including traffic signalization 


(Detail Attached)


  HWY 51 Property and Easement Acquisition 1 LS 36,150$                       36,150                          


  Utility Costs 1 LS 100,000$                     100,000                        


  Non‐Construction Costs 20% 365,702                        


    Total Oak Opening/Deer Point Extenstion 1,731,712$                  Does Not Include Any City Costs


J State Hwy 138/Oak Opening Drive ‐ Type B


  Intersection (Option 1) Additional Detail Attached


    Property  and Easement Acquisition 1 Parcel 1,003,000$                 1,003,000$                    Price of Property has been negotiated


    State Hwy 138 & Oak Opening Drive Construction 1 LS 508,954$                    508,954                        


    Utility Costs 1 LS 100,000$                    100,000                        


    Non‐Construction Costs 20% 302,391                        


   Total for Option 1 (Type B Intersection) 1,914,344$                  Does Not Include Any City Costs


K   Force Main (Jackson St.) 2135 LF 250$                            533,750$                       Connection East of Hwy 51


Watermain Extension ‐ STH 138


  10 Inch Watermain 1500 LF 85$                             127,500                       


  Hydrants 5 EA 3,500$                        17,500                         


  Valves  4 EA 2,500$                        10,000                         


  Erosion Control 3333 SY 3$                               8,333                           


  Restoration  3333 SY 2$                               6,666                           


  Other Construction 1 LS 15,000$                      15,000                          


  Construction Contingency 15% 27,750                          


  Non‐Construction Costs 20% 37,000                          


Total Watermain Extension STH 138 249,748$                     


City Controlled Costs


  Stoughton Utilties 5% 249,603$                     


  City of Stoughton 5% 249,603                       


  Other Utility Related Costs 5% 249,603                       


Total City Controlled Costs 748,808$                     


TOTAL OFF‐SITE IMPROVEMENT INCLUDING OPTION 1 (STH 138) 5,740,862$                 


TOTAL ON‐SITE AND OFF‐SITE INCLUDING OPTION 1 (STH 138) 11,181,636$               







KETTLE PARK WEST
Location: Stoughton, Wisconsin


EXHIBIT 8


EXHIBIT 8


PHASE 1 (KPW Commercial Center)
A. Stormwater Management (First phase of water quality treatment and        
infiltration basins)
B. Perimeter Highway Improvements


On-Site Infrastructure Projects
(Proposed Developer Obligation Debt TIF)
C.  Complete Jackson Street Extension
D.  Construct Oak Opening Drive
E.  Bio-Retention Facility Expansion (water quality treatment)
F.  Infiltration Basin Expansion
G.  Mass grading and site restoration of park site area


PHASE 2 (KPW 2) 


MAP 4 - General Location of KPW                     
            Phase 2 Infrastructure Projects


NOTE: Master Plan Dated 07-11-2016 shown for illustration and 
reference only. Proposed uses and illustrated buildings are subject to 
modification


Off-Site Infrastructure Projects
(Proposed Conventional City Issued TIF)
H. Reconstruct Oak Opening Drive/Deer Point Drive to USH 51
I. Reconstruct Deer Point Drive (Roby Road) x USH 51 Intersection
J. STH 138 x Oak Opening Drive Intersection
K. Install Storm Sewer Force Main on Jackson Street


1. USH 51 x Jackson Street Intersection Improvement (off-site)
2. USH 51 and STH 138 widening (off-site)


A
G


AE K


TID BOUNDARY


C


B-1


B-2


I


H


F


J


2017


2018


2019


2020


YEAR OF CONSTRUCTION


D


D







1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr Total


Financing:


  Equity Financing -                  1,250,000  -                  -                  -                -                  -                  -                -                -                    -                    -            1,250,000       


  Debt Financing -                  3,250,000  -                  -                  -                800,000      -                  -                -                -                    -                    -            4,050,000       


TIF Reimbursement:


Grading/Streets and Related Infrastructure (Private) -                  2,723,847  2,723,847  -                  -                -                  -                  -                -                -                    -                    -            5,447,694       


Grading/Streets and Related Infrastructure (Public) -                  -                  -                  -                  -                2,870,431  2,870,431  -                -                -                    -                    -            5,740,862       


Grand Total: 16,488,556$  


Year  1 (2017) Year  2 (2018) Year  3 (2019)


Kettle Park West
Sources/Amounts of Debt/Equity Financing Exhibit 9







KPW 2 Projected Development Sequence and Projected Assessment


Date: 1/12/2016, 1/15/2016, revised 2/16/2016 to correct KPWCC lot 7A,B,C, revised 2/21/2016 to adjust for changing condos to duplexes and additional park area dedication, 2/29/16 Exhibit 10


Land and Building EAV Assumptions


Land Improvement


Single Family Lots 65,000$           per Improved Lot 250,000$             unit Assume 5 per year


SFD Condos 65,000$           per Improved Lot 225,000$             unit Assume 4 per year


Duplexes 90,000$           per Improved Lot 400,000$             per building (2 units) Assume 3 building per year


Med Density Multi Family 390,000$         per building site 100,000$             unit Assume 26 unit buildings built in 2018


High Density Multi Family 5.00$                 per square foot (lot) 75,000$                 unit Assume 1 building each year


Hospitality 6.70$                 per square foot (lot) 62,500$                 unit See phasing


Senior Housing 7.00$                 per square foot (lot) 75,000$                 unit See phasing


Retail/Professional Office 9.37$                 per square foot (lot) 30$                        per square foot (lot)


indicates land EAV first entered in Assessment Roll; 2016 Dollars; No adjustment for inflation


 indicates building EAV first entered in Assessment Roll; 2016 Dollars; No adjustment for inflation.


Assessment Year  ‐‐ Land and Units EAV coming on‐line on January 1


Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total


HD Residential


Lot 17


SF 115,434                                                            577,170$                    ‐$                     577,170$                           577,170$             ‐$                       577,170$                           577,170$            4,875,000$                   5,452,170$                           577,170$           4,875,000$           5,452,170$                             577,170$               4,875,000$        5,452,170$                         


Units 65 units 65                      65


Lot 18


SF 105,851                                                            529,255$                    529,255$                           529,255$             4,500,000$          5,029,255$                        529,255$            4,500,000$                   5,029,255$                           529,255$           4,500,000$           5,029,255$                             529,255$               4,500,000$        5,029,255$                         


Units 60 units 60                      60


Lot 19


SF 109,020                                                            ‐$                                    545,100$             ‐$                       545,100$                           545,100$            ‐$                               545,100$                              545,100$           4,500,000$           5,045,100$                             545,100$               4,500,000$        5,045,100$                         


Units 60 units 60                      60


Lot 20


SF 124,565                                                            622,825$             ‐$                       622,825$                           622,825$            ‐$                               622,825$                              622,825$           ‐$                        622,825$                                622,825$               5,100,000$        5,722,825$                         


Units 68 units 68                      68


MD Residential


Lot 13 ‐ Change to a 26 unit building 390,000$                    390,000$                           390,000$             ‐$                       390,000$                           390,000$            2,600,000$                   2,990,000$                           390,000$           2,600,000$           2,990,000$                             390,000$               2,600,000$        2,990,000$                         


1 26


Lots 22 ‐ 25 ‐4 Duplex lots 450,000$                    450,000$                           450,000$             1,600,000$          2,050,000$                        450,000$            3,200,000$                   3,650,000$                           450,000$           3,200,000$           3,650,000$                             450,000$               3,200,000$        3,650,000$                         


Bldgs/Units 8 8                        5 4 4


Single Family Lots


Lots on Buttercup 28                      1,820,000$                 1,820,000$                        1,820,000$         2,750,000$          4,570,000$                        1,820,000$         5,500,000$                   7,320,000$                           1,820,000$        7,000,000$           8,820,000$                             1,820,000$           7,000,000$        8,820,000$                         


1‐12, 29‐38, 54‐56 28                      11 11 6


Lots on Wild Senna  15                      ‐$                                    1,020,000$         ‐$                       1,020,000$                        975,000$            1,250,000$                   2,270,000$                           975,000$           2,500,000$           3,475,000$                             975,000$               3,750,000$        4,725,000$                         


39‐46, 47‐53 15                      5 5 5


SFD Condos


CSM‐Lot 1 275,000           ‐$                                    1,170,000$         ‐$                       1,170,000$                        1,170,000$         1,350,000$                   2,520,000$                           1,170,000$        2,700,000$           3,870,000$                             1,170,000$           4,050,000$        5,220,000$                         


18 18                      6 6 6


Professional Office


Lot 14 107,120           1,003,691$                 1,003,691$                        1,003,691$         1,003,691$                        1,003,691$         1,003,691$                           1,003,691$        1,003,691$                             1,003,691$           3,213,600$        4,217,291$                         


1


Projected Annual Totals Phase 2 ‐$                               4,770,116$                    16,978,041$                31,403,041$                   39,958,041$                    50,871,641$                   


TID #7 Phase 1 Area Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total Land Bldg Total


Lot 2 Large Format Retail


675,367                                                            3,087,500$                   11,912,500$        15,000,000$                     3,087,500$                 11,912,500$      15,000,000$                     3,087,500$         11,912,500$       15,000,000$                      3,087,500$         11,912,500$                 15,000,000$                        3,087,500$        11,912,500$         15,000,000$                          3,087,500$           11,912,500$      15,000,000$                       


Lot 3 Office Clinic Current use is temporary stormwater management ?


108,163                                                            940,000$                       940,000$                    940,000$             1,500,000$          2,440,000$                        940,000$            1,500,000$                   2,440,000$                           940,000$           1,500,000$           2,440,000$                             940,000$               1,500,000$        2,440,000$                         


Lot 4 Specialty Retail (Multi‐Tennant) 133,324           ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     ‐$                       


Lot 4A


77,679                                                              1,250,000$                   727,835$                    727,835$             1,080,000$          727,835$            1,080,000$                   727,835$           1,080,000$           727,835$               1,080,000$       


Lot 4B


55,645                                                              521,381$                    1,080,000$        521,381$             1,080,000$          521,381$            1,080,000$                   521,381$           1,080,000$           521,381$               1,080,000$       


‐$                               ‐$                       ‐$                                   1,249,216$                 1,080,000$        2,329,216$                        1,249,216$         2,160,000$         3,409,216$                      1,249,216$        2,160,000$                 3,409,216$                         1,249,216$       2,160,000$          3,409,216$                           1,249,216$          2,160,000$        3,409,216$                         


Lot 5 Mult‐tenant Professional Services


72,286                                                              913,000$                       913,000$                          913,000$                    1,194,570$        2,107,570$                        913,000$             1,194,570$          2,107,570$                        913,000$            1,194,570$                   2,107,570$                           913,000$           1,194,570$           2,107,570$                             913,000$               1,194,570$        2,107,570$                         


Lot 6 Convenience Retail (with Fuel)


97,873                                                              1,137,500$                   1,137,500$                       1,137,500$                 1,370,222$        2,507,722$                        1,137,500$         1,370,222$          2,507,722$                        1,137,500$         1,370,222$                   2,507,722$                           1,137,500$        1,370,222$           2,507,722$                             1,137,500$           1,370,222$        2,507,722$                         


Lot 7 Specialty Retail (Multi‐Tennant) 165,382          


Lot 7A 80,150            


28,750                                                              ‐$                      500,000$             ‐$                      500,000$                      ‐$                     500,000$              ‐$                        500,000$           


Lot 7B


51,400                                                              1,355,000$                   ‐$                       1,355,000$                 775,000$            1,355,000$         775,000$             1,355,000$         775,000$                      1,355,000$        775,000$              1,355,000$           775,000$           


Lot 7C


85,290                                                              ‐$                               ‐$                      750,000$                      ‐$                     750,000$              ‐$                        750,000$           


1,355,000$                   ‐$                       1,355,000$                       1,355,000$                 775,000$            2,130,000$                        1,355,000$         1,275,000$          2,630,000$                        1,355,000$         2,025,000$                   3,380,000$                           1,355,000$        2,025,000$           3,380,000$                             1,355,000$           2,025,000$        3,380,000$                         


Lot 15 Hospitality


(Part of original CSM Lot 8) 1,222,500$                   1,222,500$                       1,222,500$                 5,500,000$        6,722,500$                        1,222,500$         5,500,000$          6,722,500$                        1,222,500$         5,500,000$                   6,722,500$                           1,222,500$        5,500,000$           6,722,500$                             1,222,500$           5,500,000$        6,722,500$                         


                                                           186,323 


Senior Housing


Lot 16 (Part of original CSM Lot 8)


SF 222,499                                                            1,557,493$                 3,500,000$        5,057,493$                        1,557,493$         7,575,000$          9,132,493$                        1,557,493$         7,575,000$                   9,132,493$                           1,557,493$        7,575,000$           9,132,493$                             1,557,493$           7,575,000$        9,132,493$                         


Units Conceptually planned for 101 units 101                    101


Projected Annual Totals Phase 1 19,628,000$                 35,854,501$                  43,949,501$                44,699,501$                   44,699,501$                    44,699,501$                   


Phase 1 and 2 Combined 19,628,000$                 40,624,617$                  60,927,542$                76,102,542$                   84,657,542$                    95,571,142$                   


 * Note area variance from  orig. lot 7 due to 5 ft strip 


2018 2020


2017 2018 2019 2020 2021


20212019


Note 1:  Presumes Lots are Buildable as of Late Fall 2017 and 2018 and that foundation permits are issued concurrent with installation of street infrastructure so that the buildings can go vertical in Winter 2017


18 and are substantially complete by Late Fall/Early Winter 2018


2017 2022


2022







                              Appendix 1
Pre-Annexation Agreement















































































Appendix 2 
FDG Executive Team Member Profiles 


 


 


 


Dave M. Jenkins, Founder /Owner / Managing Member.  Mr. Jenkins is responsible for the vision, success 


and  growth  of  Forward  Development  Group,  LLC.    His  vision  to  see  opportunity  for  development  or 


redevelopment of a property allows Forward Development Group to build unique and successful projects.  


Mr.  Jenkins  also  created  JSD  Professional  Services,  Inc.,  providing  complete  services  in  planning  and 


development,  civil  engineering,  transportation  engineering,  water  resources,  landscape  architecture, 


construction services and survey and mapping.   JSD Professional Services  Inc.  is currently  located  in five 


office locations including Verona, Waukesha, Kenosha, Wausau and Appleton, Wisconsin. 


 


 


Dennis  Steinkraus,  Development  Manager.  Mr.  Steinkraus  is  responsible  for  the  management, 


coordination and site development of the properties controlled by Forward Development Group, LLC.  Mr. 


Steinkraus  supervises  all  land  development  activities,  consultants,  contractors,  project  schedule  and 


budget  administration  and  is  the  primary  contact with  governmental  agencies.   Mr.  Steinkraus  is  the 


former  President  of  Benton  Land & Development,  LLC where  he  supervised  the  development  of  over 


1,000  single‐family  homes  sites  for  a  large  production  builder  in  the  metropolitan  Madison  and 


Milwaukee markets.   Mr. Steinkraus holds memberships  in the Wisconsin Society of Land Surveyors and 


the International Council of Shopping Centers. 


 


 


Ron Henshue, Finance / Construction Manager.  Mr. Henshue is responsible for the financial projections, 


debt financing and reporting as well as the management of all aspects of construction of the properties 


including  estimating, project management,  close out  and profitability of  Forward Development Group, 


LLC.   With  over  30  years’  experience managing  financial  and  construction  projects, Mr.  Henshue  has 


assisted  in  the planning  and  formation of 10  companies  and has  facilitated over 50  strategic planning 


sessions.   Mr. Henshue currently serves on the Board of Directors and Finance Committee  for Habit  for 


Humanity of Dane County. 


 


 


Victor L. Mohoney, Business Development Manager.  Mr. Mohoney assists with strategic planning relating 


to real estate development and capital formation.  Mr. Mohoney has over 30 years’ experience in the real 


estate arenas that include commercial brokerage and leasing as well as real estate development and debt 


and  equity  syndication.   Mr. Mohoney was  responsible  for  the  development  of  over  $100 Million  in 


affordable elderly housing under the Section 42 Tax Credit Program, has developed multi‐family housing, 


raised investment capital for local, regional, and national real estate developers and has raised debt and 


equity capital responsible for many of the largest real estate portfolios in the State of Wisconsin. 


 


 


D’anne  L.  Long, Marketing  /  Residential  Sales Manager.   Ms.  Long  is  responsible  for  the  executive 


administration and marketing of all of the properties controlled by Forward Development Group, LLC.  Ms. 


Long has over 20 years’ experience  in  the  residential  sales market  in Wisconsin and Michigan.   As  the 


managing real estate broker, Ms. Long oversees the sales of the single‐family residential home sites.  Prior 


to joining Forward Development Group, Ms. Long specialized in residential/new home construction sales 


in the greater Madison and Milwaukee markets since 2003.   Ms. Long holds membership with the  local, 


regional and national Association of Realtors® and the Madison Area Builders Association. 


 
 







                                           Appendix 3
Project Plan for TIF District No. 7





















































































































































		kpw tif

		summary



		KPW TIF request Presentation

		Kettle Park West Phase 2 Questions

		TIF request Follow up Questions�I request the following to be presented at next council meeting. 

		TIF request consideration meetings

		���Exhibit 6-1�� �

		TIF Request Comparison 2016-2019

		TIF Request Comparison 2016-2019

		TIF Request Comparison summary 2016-2019

		I would also like for it to be explained in writing the decision-making process of how the original FDG TIF request for over $7 million dollars morphed into the “City’s Obligations and Discretion" for $3.8 million and the developers new TIF request of $3 million.  �

		I would like for it to be explained how the City came up with these new terms. 

		Slide Number 10

		If the council decides NOT to approve both of these requests

		Questions?



		KPW+Phase+II+TIF+Application+with+exhibits






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution on Climate Emergency  


 
Committee Action: 


 
CACP approved 5-0 on October 1, 2019 


 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: 


 
R-159-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 8, 2019 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, emissions from fossil fuels and other human activity are demonstrably causing a 


catastrophic warming of Earth's atmosphere; and 


  


WHEREAS, the effects of such warming will continue to cause with increasing frequency 


unpredictable extreme weather, droughts, famines, floods, and wildfires, which in turn cause 


increasing instability in human society worldwide; and 


  


WHEREAS, the United Nations climate diversity report of May 2019 concluded that over one 


million plant and animal species are at risk of extinction due to climate change and human life 


relies on fragile ecosystems in ways science has yet to fully understand; and 


  


WHEREAS, the rain event of August 2018 caused over $150 million in flood damage in Dane 


county, and a warmer climate makes similar events far more likely; and 


  


WHEREAS, July of 2019 was the warmest month globally in recorded history; and 


  


WHEREAS, United States economy, and the people made vulnerable by the crisis and these 


economic changes deserve a just transition; and 


  


WHEREAS, the Stoughton city government now faces crucial decisions about how our 


community should grow in the future, and has a responsibility to represent our youngest 


residents' right to a livable world; and  


  


WHEREAS, city's obligation to our community's well-being compels us to counteract the 


interests of industries that rely heavily on production or consumption of fossil fuels; and 


  


WHEREAS, the city's public utility and its energy purchasing co-op arrangement allows it 


greater leeway in affecting local energy policy than a community with investor-owned utilities; 


and now 







  


LET IT BE RESOLVED that the City of Stoughton considers the climate crisis to be an 


emergency of both an immediate and long-term nature, which should inform every major 


decision made by its council and staff, 


  


that the City of Stoughton acknowledges the solutions to this crisis must necessarily emphasize 


support for the most vulnerable in our city and society, and 


  


that the City of Stoughton recognizes that any national plan must include a just transition for 


affected workers and populations such as that outlined in the Green New Deal, and 


 


that City of Stoughton commits the Community Affairs and Council Policy committee to act as a 


sustainability task force to explore and implement efforts that can move the community toward 


true sustainability. 


 


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Tim Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  


 








 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities Employee 


Compensation Analysis for 2020. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5-0 


Personnel Committee meets October 7, 2019. Finance Committee meets October 


8, 2019. 


 


 


 


 
Fiscal Impact: $47,324.00 


 
File Number: 


 
R-160-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 8, 2019 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities and City of Stoughton staff has identified the need to complete regulatory 


rate reviews as we move forward with our capital improvement needs and requirements, and 


WHEREAS, during a regulatory rate review, the Wisconsin Public Service Commission (PSC) reviews 


employee wages and compensation very closely, and if the PSC determines that an increase in wages is 


significant and exceeds increases seen at other utilities, a portion of wages may be excluded and not 


allowed to be recovered in utility rates, and 


WHEREAS, the last time a full utility market compensation analysis of Wisconsin municipal utilities, 


and follow-up adjustments occurred was in 2015 for the 2016 budget year, and the compensation for 


numerous positions require adjustment to remain competitive with regional competition, and 


WHEREAS, City of Stoughton staff reviewed employee wages, utilizing the Springstead study and utility 


market rates obtained from the Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW), and provided a list of 


recommended adjustments, with an estimated budget impact of $47,324 for such adjustments and the 


annual inflationary increase for the electric utility, water utility, and wastewater utility combined, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on September 30 to consider, approve and 


recommend Common Council approval of the market and inflationary wage adjustments, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Personnel Committee met on October 7 to consider, approve and recommend 


Common Council approval of the market and inflationary wage adjustments, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Finance Committee met on October 8 to consider, approve and recommend 


Common Council approval of the market and inflationary wage adjustments, now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby authorized and directed to approve the market and inflationary wage adjustment, estimated to 


have an impact of $47,324 on the 2020 Utilities Operating Budget. 







Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Tim Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, September 30, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  2 


Employee Compensation Analysis for 2020:  ** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) 


considering employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public employee over 


which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility.** 


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a proposed market and inflationary wage adjustment for 


Stoughton Utilities staff.  Staff informed the committee that during a regulatory rate review, the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission (PSC) reviews employee wages and compensation very closely, and if the PSC determines 


that an increase in wages is significant and exceeds increases seen for that year at other utilities, a portion of 


wages may be excluded and not allowed to be recovered in utility rates.  Staff explained that as more time passes 


between market wage adjustments and employees fall further behind comparable positions elsewhere, the 


resulting wage adjustments increase, which increases the potential for the PSC to exclude a portion of employee 


wages from recovery through utility rates.  Staff informed the committee that at this time, the compensation for 


numerous positions require adjustment to remain competitive with regional competition, and that not addressing 


these issues on a timely basis make cause issues with future PSC rate reviews.  Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that wage adjustments are only provided to employees in good 


standing that are meeting performance and behavior expectations and not undergoing disciplinary action. 


Employee’s behavior and discipline records are reviewed annually and employees have the opportunity to have 


their good standing restored.  Discussion followed. 


City of Stoughton staff explained the history of the Springsted compensation analysis methodology and explained 


that the proposed market and inflationary wage adjustment preserved the approach previously approved by the 


Stoughton Personnel Committee and Stoughton Common Council.  Staff confirmed that funding for the proposed 


adjustments, if approved, would be included in the 2020 operating budget and included in the regulatory rate 


reviewed scheduled to be filed by the end of the year.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Heili, to close the meeting pursuant to State Statute 19.85 (1)(c) for 


the purpose of considering employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public 


employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility.  The motion carried 


unanimously 5 to 0. The Stoughton Utilities Committee convened in closed session at 6:02 p.m. 


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to reconvene in open session.  The motion carried unanimously 


5 to 0.  The Stoughton Utilities Committee reconvened in open session at 6:24 p.m. 


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Hirsch, to approve the market and inflationary wage adjustment, 


estimated to have an impact of $47,324 on the 2020 Utilities Operating Budget, and recommend approval to the 


City of Stoughton Personnel Committee, City of Stoughton Finance Committee, and Stoughton Common 


Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Adjournment:  There being no further business before the committee, motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded 


by Heili, to adjourn the special Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting at 6:25 p.m.  The motion carried 


unanimously 5 to 0. 


Respectfully submitted 


Brian R. Hoops 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 



bhoops

Highlight







 


600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:   
  


September 26, 2019 


To:    


  


Stoughton Utilities Committee 


From:   Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  


    


  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Employee Compensation Analysis for 2020 


As we approach the end of the year, I have been working in partnership with the City of Stoughton 


Director of Finance to develop the Stoughton Utilities operating budget and 5-year capital improvement 


plan (CIP), including completing a review of all budget impacts.  During this process, we have identified 


the need to complete regulatory rate reviews as we move forward with our capital improvement needs 


and requirements.   


During a regulatory rate review, the Wisconsin Public Service Commission (PSC) reviews employee 


wages and compensation very closely.  If the PSC determines that an increase in wages is significant and 


exceeds increases seen at other utilities, a portion of wages may be excluded and not allowed to be 


recovered in utility rates.  The PSC’s review of wages does not analyze the appropriateness of the wage, 


but rather just any increase.  As more time passes between market wage adjustments and employees fall 


further behind comparable positions elsewhere, the resulting wage adjustments increase, which increases 


the potential for the PSC to exclude a portion of employee wages from recovery through utility rates.  


The last time a full utility market compensation analysis of Wisconsin municipal utilities, and follow-up 


adjustments occurred was in 2015 for the 2016 budget year.  As a result, the compensation for numerous 


positions require adjustment to remain competitive with regional competition.  


Upon recognizing the potential for such wage recovery conflicts with the PSC, I meet with Mayor 


Swadley, Director Friedl and Director Gillingham to discussed the PSC rate review process, utility 


employee market challenges, and the vision for the utility’s future.  Following this meeting, Director 


Gillingham reviewed employee wages, utilizing the Springstead study and utility market rates obtained 


from MEUW1, and provided a list of recommended adjustments.  Director Friedl estimates the budget  


impact to implement these recommended adjustments and the annual inflationary increase to total 


$47,324 for the electric utility, water utility,  and wastewater utility combined.   


Wage adjustments are only provided to employees in good standing that are meeting performance and 


behavior expectations and not undergoing disciplinary action.  Employee’s behavior and discipline 


records are reviewed annually and employees have the opportunity to have their good standing restored. 


                                                           
1 The Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) is a state association representing 81 municipal electric utilities 


throughout Wisconsin.  Each year they conduct a Wage & Benefit Survey which is shared with participating members to 


assist with personnel planning and budgeting. 







As each year passes without ongoing market adjustments to keep wages current with those offered by 


similar municipal utilities and regional competitors, the likelihood increases that the utility will not be 


able to fully recover future wage increases within the rate structure.  Further, without timely market 


adjustments, Stoughton Utilities will not be able to retain or recruit the talented staff it requires to operate 


successfully and provide the high quality of safe and reliable service our customers require.  There are a 


number of positions within the utility that are in great demand in the current labor force, and Stoughton’s 


proximity to large municipal utilities and a number of investor-owned utilities places us in a very 


competitive market.   


Addressing the required market adjustments to compensation is in response to the 2020 budgeting 


process and is necessary to ensure full cost recovery during upcoming PSC rate reviews.  Further, I am 


in the process of evaluating all utility positions and the organizational structure of the utility to best 


position us for the future.  This effort is to increase efficiency, address our internal needs and our 


customers’ needs, strategize positioning within the industry, and succession planning to respond to 


upcoming retirements and a current vacancy.  In the upcoming year, I will be proposing additional 


changes for the committee’s review and approval so that we may continue to be strategic and plan for 


the future needs of our customers. 


It is requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approve the market and inflationary 


wage adjustment, estimated to have an impact of $47,324 on the 2020 Utilities Operating Budget, and 


recommend approval to the City of Stoughton Personnel Committee, City of Stoughton Finance 


Committee, and Stoughton Common Council. 


  





		13a-2019-10-02 2.1- Compensation - Resolution

		13b-Utilities Committee - Compensation






 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated position 


description, grade level and pay rate for the City Treasurer. 


Committee Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0 on September 9, 2019 


Committee Finance Committee recommends approved 5-0 on September 24, 2019 


 
Fiscal Impact:      $2049.11 for the remainder of 2019 


File Number: R-157-2019 Date Introduced: October 8, 2019 
 


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee received a request to approve the updated City Treasurer 


position description, with an increase in grade level from 9 to 10, and pay rate increase from $25.93 


to $29.81, and 


 


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on September 9, 2019, to consider the updated City 


Treasurer position description, with an increase in grade level from 9 to 10, and pay rate increase 


from $25.93 to $29.81, and 


 


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval (4-0) of the updated City Treasurer 


position description, with an increase in grade level from 9 to 10, and pay rate increase from $25.93 


to $29.81, now therefore, 


 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby authorized and directed to approve the updated City Treasurer position description, with an 


increase in grade level from 9 to 10, and pay rate increase from $25.93 to $29.81. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote    ______ 


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                                                                 


Tim Swadley, Mayor                  Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:     _______   Override  Vote    ______ 







From: Amy Jo Gillingham
To: Brett Schumacher; Jamin Friedl
Cc: Tim Swadley
Subject: Finance Agenda Items
Date: Wednesday, September 18, 2019 10:09:43 AM


Greetings! 
The two positions below will be brought to the Finance Committee on Monday, September 23, 2019
for your review and consideration.  Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact
me. 
 
Information Technology Director
This position description was approved December 2016.  At the time that the position description
was being developed we were unsure of what the duties of the position would be as this was the
first time that the City of Stoughton would have an IT Director.  The Personnel Committee and
Mayor Olson agreed that we would review the position after 1-2 years to see if the position
description required any updated and to see if the compensation was in line with the duties.  It has
been two years since we hired Director Montgomery therefore the position is being reviewed. 
 
Following the Springsted grading system, a Position Analysis Questionnaire (PAQ- Springsted
document) was complete and the Position Description was reviewed and updated to properly reflect
the duties of the position. The PAQ was graded by Springsted.  The position responsibilities have
increased and the position grade is recommended to move from a grade level 14 to grade level 17. 
The grade and step placement is based on a matrix and placement process that was updated and
approved by the City Council in 2018.  John should be placed at step max which equals $46.15. 
Because the scale has not been kept current by City Council a 4% adjustment to the scale is
necessary for the compensation to be market competitive.  The 4% adjustment would increase the
compensation to $48.00/hr., salaried at $99840.00
 
Personnel unanimously recommended the compensation plan stated above move forward to
Finance and then to Council. 
 
Deputy Treasurer
The Deputy Treasurer has handled many of the Treasurer responsibilities off and on for several years
based on staffing needs. Prior to this past year, the department staffing has been unstable causing
the incumbent to have to handle higher level duties.  Because of this, the incumbents skill set and
knowledge has grown exponentially. The incumbent has done an excellent job with the Treasure
responsibilities. Shifting the Treasurer duties permantly to the current deputy treasurer would free
up the Assistant Director to work on more accountant related tasks and take on more projects and
tasks from the Director.   The position description has been re-written to reflect the assumed duties
and a PAQ was completed and sent to Springsted for scoring. 
 
The grade level, according to Springsted, would move from a grade 9 to a grade level 10.  The
incumbent would be placed at step 7.  The current compensation at step 7, grade 10 would be
$28.66.  Again, to make the scale competitive 4% should be added.  The compensation would be
$29.81 for grade 10, step 7. 



mailto:AJGillingham@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:bschumacher@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:jfriedl@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 
For both positions, the Personnel Committee agreed that the change should take effect once final
approval is received by Finance and Council.  The change would be effective the date of Council
approval.  The two employees, based on this system would be “right sized”.  Therefore, there would
be no increase as of 1/1/202.  The two employees are receiving the grade level, step placement and
the 4% increase to the scale.  Therefore, they are properly placed and compensated,
 
Again,  should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
***Please feel free to share with the Finance Committee, prior to the meeting on Monday.***
 
 
 
AmyJo Gillingham
Director of Human Resources & Risk Management
ajgillingham@ci.stoughton.wi.us
608.646.0272
 



mailto:ajgillingham@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 
 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 
Policy Name:   Request for Reconsideration Policy Page:   1 
 


 


Request for Reconsideration Process Policy 


1.0 Purpose 
Wage/Grade Level Reconsideration 


 


2.0 Policy Details 
The City of Stoughton contracted with Springsted Incorporated to conduct a classification 
and compensation study for all City positions in 2014. As a part of this study, employees and 
supervisors completed Position Analysis Questionnaire’s (PAQs) and reviewed job descriptions 
for each City position. The job descriptions along with information provided in the PAQs 
provided the information to develop job evaluation points for all positions and to gather 
comprehensive market survey information. The development and maintenance of job 
evaluation points allows for the comparison of positions in relation to one another within the 
City of Stoughton. In addition to the internal rankings of positions, the comprehensive market 
survey results were utilized to assign City positions to the proposed compensation plan. We 
continue to use this method for newly created positions as well as if there are significant 
changes to a position such as credentials required, educational requirements and or a 
permanent change to job duties or responsibilities. 
 
The job evaluation system utilized in evaluating all City positions is the Springsted Systematic 
Analysis and Factor Evaluation (SAFE®) job evaluation system. The SAFE system was developed 
specifically for public sector organizations, is widely accepted and used throughout the 
country in local government jurisdictions and non-profit organizations. The system has been 
tested in federal courts under an EEOC claim and been found to be an equitable tool for 
evaluating the internal relationships of positions within an organization. It has also been 
accepted under the State of Minnesota Local Government Pay Equity Act. 
 
The criteria and factors that the SAFE system utilizes to evaluate positions are described in the 
attached information. 
 
Annually, during the employee performance appraisal period, If the employee thinks that 
there has been a change in their position that justifies a review for grade placement the 
employee should determine whether they wish to request reconsideration of the placement of 
their position within the compensation plangrade level. 
The Request for Reconsiderationse must be job specific and relate to the job responsibilities 
and requirements. 
 







 
 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 
Policy Name:   Request for Reconsideration Policy Page:   2 
 


Contact the Human Resources and Risk Management Department for the Reconsideration 
Process forms. 
 


3.0 Procedures 
 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


5.0 Document History 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 





		11a-RESOLUTION Personnel City Treasurer

		11b-Position Email

		11c-Request for Reconsideration Process Policy Redline

		1.0 Purpose

		2.0 Policy Details

		3.0 Procedures

		4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms

		5.0 Document History








 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated position 
description, grade level and pay rate for the Information Technology Director. 


Committee Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0 on September 9, 2019 


Committee Finance Committee recommends approval on 5-0 on September 24, 2019 
 
Fiscal Impact:       $4558.40 for the remainder of 2019 


File Number: R-158-2019 Date Introduced: October 8, 2019 
 


 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee received a request to approve the updated Information 
Technology Director position description, with an increase in grade level from 14 to 17, and pay rate 
increase from $39.86 to $48.00, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on September 9, 2019, to consider the updated Information 
Technology Director position description, with an increase in grade level from 14 to 17, and pay rate 
increase from $39.86 to $48.00, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval (4-0) of the updated Information 
Technology Director position description, with an increase in grade level from 14 to 17, and pay rate 
increase from $39.86 to $48.00, now therefore, 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby authorized and directed to approve the updated Information Technology Director position 
description, with an increase in grade level from 14 to 17, and pay rate increase from $39.86 to $48.00. 


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote    ______ 
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                                                                 
Tim Swadley, Mayor                  Date 


 
 
 
Council Action:     _______    Override  Vote    ______ 







From: Amy Jo Gillingham
To: Brett Schumacher; Jamin Friedl
Cc: Tim Swadley
Subject: Finance Agenda Items
Date: Wednesday, September 18, 2019 10:09:43 AM


Greetings! 
The two positions below will be brought to the Finance Committee on Monday, September 23, 2019
for your review and consideration.  Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact
me. 
 
Information Technology Director
This position description was approved December 2016.  At the time that the position description
was being developed we were unsure of what the duties of the position would be as this was the
first time that the City of Stoughton would have an IT Director.  The Personnel Committee and
Mayor Olson agreed that we would review the position after 1-2 years to see if the position
description required any updated and to see if the compensation was in line with the duties.  It has
been two years since we hired Director Montgomery therefore the position is being reviewed. 
 
Following the Springsted grading system, a Position Analysis Questionnaire (PAQ- Springsted
document) was complete and the Position Description was reviewed and updated to properly reflect
the duties of the position. The PAQ was graded by Springsted.  The position responsibilities have
increased and the position grade is recommended to move from a grade level 14 to grade level 17. 
The grade and step placement is based on a matrix and placement process that was updated and
approved by the City Council in 2018.  John should be placed at step max which equals $46.15. 
Because the scale has not been kept current by City Council a 4% adjustment to the scale is
necessary for the compensation to be market competitive.  The 4% adjustment would increase the
compensation to $48.00/hr., salaried at $99840.00
 
Personnel unanimously recommended the compensation plan stated above move forward to
Finance and then to Council. 
 
Deputy Treasurer
The Deputy Treasurer has handled many of the Treasurer responsibilities off and on for several years
based on staffing needs. Prior to this past year, the department staffing has been unstable causing
the incumbent to have to handle higher level duties.  Because of this, the incumbents skill set and
knowledge has grown exponentially. The incumbent has done an excellent job with the Treasure
responsibilities. Shifting the Treasurer duties permantly to the current deputy treasurer would free
up the Assistant Director to work on more accountant related tasks and take on more projects and
tasks from the Director.   The position description has been re-written to reflect the assumed duties
and a PAQ was completed and sent to Springsted for scoring. 
 
The grade level, according to Springsted, would move from a grade 9 to a grade level 10.  The
incumbent would be placed at step 7.  The current compensation at step 7, grade 10 would be
$28.66.  Again, to make the scale competitive 4% should be added.  The compensation would be
$29.81 for grade 10, step 7. 



mailto:AJGillingham@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:bschumacher@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:jfriedl@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 
For both positions, the Personnel Committee agreed that the change should take effect once final
approval is received by Finance and Council.  The change would be effective the date of Council
approval.  The two employees, based on this system would be “right sized”.  Therefore, there would
be no increase as of 1/1/202.  The two employees are receiving the grade level, step placement and
the 4% increase to the scale.  Therefore, they are properly placed and compensated,
 
Again,  should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
***Please feel free to share with the Finance Committee, prior to the meeting on Monday.***
 
 
 
AmyJo Gillingham
Director of Human Resources & Risk Management
ajgillingham@ci.stoughton.wi.us
608.646.0272
 



mailto:ajgillingham@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 
 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 
Policy Name:   Request for Reconsideration Policy Page:   1 
 


 


Request for Reconsideration Process Policy 


1.0 Purpose 
Wage/Grade Level Reconsideration 


 


2.0 Policy Details 
The City of Stoughton contracted with Springsted Incorporated to conduct a classification 
and compensation study for all City positions in 2014. As a part of this study, employees and 
supervisors completed Position Analysis Questionnaire’s (PAQs) and reviewed job descriptions 
for each City position. The job descriptions along with information provided in the PAQs 
provided the information to develop job evaluation points for all positions and to gather 
comprehensive market survey information. The development and maintenance of job 
evaluation points allows for the comparison of positions in relation to one another within the 
City of Stoughton. In addition to the internal rankings of positions, the comprehensive market 
survey results were utilized to assign City positions to the proposed compensation plan. We 
continue to use this method for newly created positions as well as if there are significant 
changes to a position such as credentials required, educational requirements and or a 
permanent change to job duties or responsibilities. 
 
The job evaluation system utilized in evaluating all City positions is the Springsted Systematic 
Analysis and Factor Evaluation (SAFE®) job evaluation system. The SAFE system was developed 
specifically for public sector organizations, is widely accepted and used throughout the 
country in local government jurisdictions and non-profit organizations. The system has been 
tested in federal courts under an EEOC claim and been found to be an equitable tool for 
evaluating the internal relationships of positions within an organization. It has also been 
accepted under the State of Minnesota Local Government Pay Equity Act. 
 
The criteria and factors that the SAFE system utilizes to evaluate positions are described in the 
attached information. 
 
Annually, during the employee performance appraisal period, If the employee thinks that 
there has been a change in their position that justifies a review for grade placement the 
employee should determine whether they wish to request reconsideration of the placement of 
their position within the compensation plangrade level. 
The Request for Reconsiderationse must be job specific and relate to the job responsibilities 
and requirements. 
 







 
 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 
Policy Name:   Request for Reconsideration Policy Page:   2 
 


Contact the Human Resources and Risk Management Department for the Reconsideration 
Process forms. 
 


3.0 Procedures 
 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


5.0 Document History 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 





		12a-RESOLUTION Personnel Information Technology Director

		12b-Position Email

		12c

		1.0 Purpose

		2.0 Policy Details

		3.0 Procedures

		4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms

		5.0 Document History








Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, October 8, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.  


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, 


Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Brett Schumacher  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please  notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 White Cane Awareness Day Proclamation 


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


Utilities (8/19/19); CACP (9/3/19) 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  


 
 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. September 24, 2019 Council Minutes  


B. R-152-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants 


C. Stoughton Utilities August Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities July Financial 


Summary; Stoughton Utilities July Statistical Report  


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


5. R-153-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Change Order No. 


1 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project. (Utilities approved 6-0 on September 16, 2019)  


 


6. R-154-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Change Order No. 


2 to the 2019 Street and Utility Construction Project. (Utilities approved 6-0 on September 16, 2019) 


 


7. O-24-2019-  Amending Section 2-256 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the 


composition of the Utilities Committee (Utilities approved 5-0 on September 30, 2019)   


          FIRST READING 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA-AMENDED 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


 


 


8. R-155-2019-Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to enter into an agreement with 


Robinson Brothers Environmental, Inc. for the 2019 Demolition/Abatement of Former Public 


Works Facility (Finance Committee meets October 8, 2019)  


 


9. R-156-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of 


Stoughton five-year (2020-2024) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). (CIP Budget Committee 


recommended approval 6-0 on September 5, 2019) 


 


10. Discussion and possible action relating to questions regarding Kettle Park West Phase 2 Tax 


Incremental Financing (TIF) request 


 


11. Discussion and possible action regarding public participation in Kettle Park West TIF request  


 


 Option A:  Public Hearing & TIF 101 Presentation before the October 24, 2019 


Committee of the Whole meeting  


 Option B: Public Comment Periods on October 8th, October 22nd, November 


12th, and November 26th  


 


12. R-159-2019- Resolution on Climate Emergency (CACP approved 5-0 on October 1, 2019)  


 


 


13. R-160-2019-Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 


Employee Compensation Analysis for 2020 (Utilities Committee approved 5-0. Personnel meets 


October 7, 2019. Finance meets October 8, 2019) ***The Common Council may convene in 


closed session pursuant to State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, 


compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental 


body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. The Common Council may reconvene in open 


session to discuss and take action on the subject matter discussed in closed session. *** 
 


 


14. R-157-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated 


position description, grade level and pay rate for the City Treasurer (Personnel approved 


4-0 on September 9, 2019; Finance approved 5-0 on September 24, 2019) ***The 


Common Council may convene in closed session pursuant to State Statute 19.85(1)(c) 


considering employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public 


employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. The 


Common Council may reconvene in open session to discuss and take action on the subject matter 


discussed in closed session. *** 


 


15. R-158-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated 


position description, grade level and pay rate for the Information Technology Director 


(Personnel approved 4-0 on September 9, 2019; Finance approved 5-0 on September 24, 


2019) ***The Common Council may convene in closed session pursuant to State Statute 







19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation 


data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises 


responsibility. The Common Council may reconvene in open session to discuss and take 


action on the subject matter discussed in closed session. *** 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  


 








 


 CITY OF STOUGHTON  


WHIITE CANE AWARENESS DAY  


 


WHEREAS, the white cane, which every blind citizen of our city has the right to carry, 


demonstrates and symbolizes the ability to achieve a full and independent life and the 


capacity to work productively in competitive employment; and 


 


WHEREAS, the white cane, by allowing every blind person to move freely and safely from 


place to place, makes it possible for the blind to fully participate in and contribute to our 


society and to live the lives they want; and 


 


WHEREAS, every citizen should be aware that the law requires that motorists and cyclists 


exercise appropriate caution when approaching a blind person carrying a white cane; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, Wisconsin law also calls upon employers, both public and private, to be aware of 


and utilize the employment skills of our blind citizens by recognizing their worth as 


individuals and their productive capacities; and 


 


WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin, through its public agencies and with the cooperative 


assistance of the City of Stoughton, can and should facilitate the expansion of 


employment opportunities for and greater acceptance of blind persons in the 


competitive labor market: 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tim Swadley, Mayor of the City of Stoughton, State of Wisconsin, do 


hereby proclaim October 15, 2019, as 


 


WHITE CANE AWARENESS DAY 


 


in the City of Stoughton and do call upon our schools, colleges, and universities to offer 


full opportunities for training to blind persons; upon employers and the public to utilize the 


available skills of competent blind persons and to open new opportunities for the blind in 


our rapidly changing society; and upon all citizens to recognize the white cane as a tool of 


independence for blind pedestrians on our streets and highways. 


 


     In testimony whereof, I, Tim Swadley, Mayor of the City of 


    Stoughton, hereunto set my hand and caused the great seal of 


    the City of Stoughton to be affixed this eighth day of October 


    in the year two thousand and nineteen. 


 


        
Mayor Tim Swadley 


 


      








COMMUNITY AFFAIRS/COUNCIL POLICY MEETING MINUTES 


Tuesday, August 6, 2019 @ 6:00 PM 


ED OVERLAND ROOM, OPERA HOUSE, 381 E MAIN ST. STOUGHTON, WI  


Present: 


Alders Jean Ligocki, Brett Schumacher, Ben Heili, and Mayor Tim Swadley 


Also Present:  


City Clerk Holly Licht 


Absent and Excused: 


Regina Hirsch  


Call to Order:  


Ligocki called the meeting to order at 6:11 p.m.  


Communications: 


Ligocki requested to move agenda item #7 to the top of the agenda. There were no objections. 


Discussion and possible action regarding Stoughton Area Resource Team (START) occupying Space in 
the Municipal Building located at 381 E. Main Street 
Cindy Thompson gave background for START.  They currently rent one office out of the Senior Center. 


They are going to hire a case worker and are in need of space. A lot of the families do not have 


transportation and need to be located at a central location.  They want the office space in the same 


building. Alder Boersma said that he thought the planning department would be a great space for 


START. He doesn’t think that the Opera House needs all the space in the building and he doesn’t want to 


see it sit empty. Ligocki asked what their timeline was and how long they would need the space. Todd 


McVey, President from START said they are looking to approve job description in September and then 


the hiring process would start after that. He added they would like to be somewhere for at least 5 years. 


Thompson stated that participants that would be coming in and out of the building are not scheduled 


after 4:30 p.m. and they would be happy to adjust the hours due to Opera House Shows. Mayor Swadley 


said that VITA could also be another potential candidate for the space.  Sid Boersma said that we should 


have priorities with providing services.  Mayor Swadley stated that he didn’t believe the City could meet 


START’s needs. Ligocki stated that the City would communicate if the building were to go another route.  


Food Cart:  


Laura Trotter, Chamber of commerce suggested that the license year should be January 1-December 31. 


She said that most events where food carts are used are in the summer and having the license year start 


July 1st would be difficult. The committee agree and instructed Holly to make those changes. The 


committee also suggested taking out the part about schools and adding that food carts must be at least 


300 feet away from a licensed special event or brick and mortar vendor (special events would be an 


exception).  The committee would like to send the ordinance to council by the end of the year. They 


want to bring it back to the next meeting and then having zoning and the attorney take a look at it.  


 Discussion and possible action regarding a charitable donation policy: 


Motion by Heili, second by Ligocki to recommend that the council approve the charitable donation 


policy. Motion carried 4-0. 







Discussion and possible action regarding building use policy fees: 


The committee instructed Clerk Licht to take out the ¼ hour before and after and just leave the $10 flat 


fee and the $10/per hour. Motion by Heili, second by Schumacher to recommend that council approve 


with the changes outlined above. Motion carried 4-0.  


Approval of the August 6, 2019 Minutes:  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Heili to approve. Motion carried 4-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding resolution on Climate Emergency 


Heili stated that the City needs to take on the climate crisis and we need to let citizen know that we 


want to make this a priority and this resolution could be an accountability tool for the future. 


Schumacher suggested taking the part out about fossil fuel. Heili said that he would share with President 


Majewski before taking it to council. Mayor Swadley suggested talking to other members of WPPI to 


coordinate.  


Adjourn: 


Motion by Heili, second by Ligocki to adjourn at 7:53 p.m. Motion carried 4-0.  


Respectfully Submitted, 


Holly Licht, City Clerk   


 


 








Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.  


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, 


Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Brett Schumacher  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  


 


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted there were 11 alders present. Bartlett was absent and excused.  


 


Mayor Swadley expressed condolences to the families and friends of Odean Tiegen and Art Wendt.  


 


Boersma noted that the Stoughton American Legion is celebrating 100 year of existence. 


 


Caravello noted the RDA subcommittee is hosting an open house to receive feedback on the Downtown 


Revitalization Plan at the Lageret on October 1st.  


 


Renew Wisconsin is having a Future of Transportation day tomorrow from 10:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m. at the 


Capitol.  


 


Scheel stated that there will be a meeting for the HWY 51 Corridor Study on Thursday at the High 


School.  


 


Hirsch said Art Walk Stoughton is Saturday.  


 


Clerk Licht stated that it was National Voter Registration Day and that people can register to vote at 


myvote.wi.gov.  


 


Anti-Bullying Proclamation presented by Mayor Swadley. 


 


CIP Budget Presentation by Jamin Friedl.  


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record.  


Planning Commission (8/12/19); Landmarks Commission (8/5/19, 8/19/19); RDA (8/14/19); Finance 


(8/27/19, 9/10/19); Tree Commission (8/8/19); Parks & Rec (8/20/19); Whitewater Park Steering 


Committee (8/19/19); Public Works (7/18/19) 


 


Public Comment Period:  


Densie Duranczyk, 324 Sherman St., spoke in opposition of the KPW TIF request, specifically the 


housing development.  


 


  


 







Jordan Tilleson, 193 W. Main St., spoke in favor of R-149-2019. He suggested doing a case study on 


this type of business.  


 


Peggy Veregin, 225 N. Monroe St., spoke regarding the Landmarks Commission funding requests.  


 
 


CONSENT AGENDA 


A. September 10, 2019 Council Minutes  


B. R-143-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants 


 


Motion by Boersma, second by Reeves to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R- 144-2019-  Requesting Exemption from the County Library Tax 


 


Motion by Ligocki, second by Riley to approve R-144-2019 Requesting Exemption from the County 


Library Tax. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R- 145-2019-  Authorizing and directing the proper city official (s) to adopt the 2020 Benefits Renewal: 


Medical  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-145-2019 Authorizing and directing the proper 


city official (s) to adopt the 2020 Benefits Renewal: Medical. Gillingham said that there would be no 


increase for 2020 and a 6% increase for 2021. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-146-2019-  authorizing and directing the proper city official (s) to adopt the 2020 Benefits Renewal: 


Dental  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-146-2019 authorizing and directing the proper 


city official (s) to adopt the 2020 Benefits Renewal: Dental. Gillingham stated that there would be a flat 


renewal for full time employees and a 5% increase for those that work 30 hours or less a week. Motion 


carried 11-0. 


 


R-147-2019-  Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for property at 1111 Veterans Road which is 


owned by STI Holdings Inc., Stoughton, WI.  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Schumacher to approve R-147-2019 Approving a Certified Survey 


Map (CSM) for property at 1111 Veterans Road which is owned by STI Holdings Inc., Stoughton, WI. 


Planning Director Scheel stated that Stoughton Trailers is looking at having an ancillary business in the 


lot created by the CSM. Motion carried 11-0. 


 







 


R- 148-2019- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approving the Good View 


Condominium Preliminary Plat, 2209-2211 Wood View Drive, Stoughton, WI  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Riley to approve R-148-2019 Resolution by the Common Council of 


the City of Stoughton approving the Good View Condominium Preliminary Plat, 2209-2211 Wood 


View Drive, Stoughton, WI. Motion carried 10-0 with Riley abstaining.  


 


R- 149-2019- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Brianna Fero to allow an Indoor Commercial 


Entertainment use at 193 W. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Riley to approve R-149-2019 Approving a Conditional Use Permit for 


Brianna Fero to allow an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at 193 W. Main Street, Stoughton, 


Wisconsin. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-150-2019-  Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Reyes Aranda for La Cantina LLC 


(restaurant) at 620 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 


Motion Caravello, second by Heili to approve R-150-2019 Approving a Conditional Use Permit request 


by Reyes Aranda for La Cantina LLC (restaurant) at 620 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. Motion 


carried 11-0. 


 


R-151-2019- Acceptance of Certain Public Improvements made by Harvest Farms, LLC for Nordic 


Ridge Phase III  


 


Motion by Boersma, second by Reeves to approve R-151-2019 Acceptance of Certain Public 


Improvements made by Harvest Farms, LLC for Nordic Ridge Phase III. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding TIF Application for Kettle Park West Phase II   


Ron Henshue, Forward Development, stated that they have eliminated the multi-family portion of the 


plan. He emphasized that there were 5 different lot sizes and prices.  


 


A. Presentation by Finance Director Friedl regarding TIF Application for Kettle Park 


West Phase II 


 


Finance Director Friedl said that the request was a Pay-Go and there would be no 


upfront City borrowing. It poses no financial risk to the City. It would add 


approximately $69 million in assessed value to the City. There was question as to 


whether the connection to HWY 138 was required when the project when initially 


proposed. Dave Ferris said that Phase II will require to use some increment from 


Phase I to get it started. He stated that the City would not have to borrow money to 


finance the project.  


 


B. Common Council Discussion regarding a TIF Application for Kettle Park West 


Phase II ***The Council may convene in closed session, pursuant to Wis. Stat. 


19.85 (1) (e) for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 







properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 


business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. The 


Common Council may reconvene in open session to discuss and take action on the 


subject matter discussed in the closed session*** 


 


Motion by Boersma, second by Hirsch to go into closed session at 8:52 p.m., 


pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85 (1) (e) for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the 


purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 


specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a 


closed session Motion carried 11-0 on a roll call vote. Motion by Boersma, second 


by Riley to reconvene in open session at 10:27 p.m. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


Motion by Majewski, second by Riley to postpone a vote on the TIF request until 


the last meeting in November when the council deems they have received enough 


feedback from the community to make a decision. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


C. Common Council may convene in open session to take action on the TIF 


application for Kettle Park West Phase II  


 


ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Boersma, second by Reeves to adjourn at 10:31 p.m. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Holly Licht, City Clerk 








 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 


the following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Henry Guzman    Nauti Norske 


  Renee Barlass     Lon’s Tailgaters 


  Tim Bohn     American Legion   


  Mike Call     American Legion 


    


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 


applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 


 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-152-2019 


 
Date Introduced:   October 8, 2019 





